AGENDA

CORPORATE COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2018

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND

MEMBERSHIP: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A

Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr, K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

The meeting is scheduled to commence at .

EDBC18/45

EDBC18/46

EDBC18/47

EDBC18/48

REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS AND
CORPORATE COMMITTEE - MEETING 13 AUGUST 2018
(1D18/1346)
The Committee had before it the report of the Economic
Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting held 13
August 2018.

BOOTHENBA ROAD UPGRADE - APPLICATION TO THE GROWING
LOCAL ECONOMIES FUND (ID18/1394)

The Committee had before it the report dated 30 August 2018 from
the Economic Project and Grants Officer regarding Boothenba Road
Upgrade - Application to the Growing Local Economies Fund.

2017/2018 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS REPORT (ID18/1347)

The Committee had before it the report dated 28 August 2018 from
the Chief Financial Officer regarding 2017/2018 Budget Highlights
Report.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
MEETING 5 SEPTEMBER 2018 (ID18/1405)

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting held 5 September 2018.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC18/45

10 SEPTEMBER 2018

Report of the Economic Development
Business and Corporate Committee -
meeting 13 August 2018

gggﬁg{EG'ONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance

REPORT DATE: 28 August 2018

The Committee had before it the report of the Economic Development, Business and
Corporate Committee meeting held 13 August 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting
held on 13 August 2018, be noted.
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REPORT

PREF cconomic DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
CORPORATE COMMITTEE

counoit O 13 AUGUST 2018

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, A Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr, K Parker
and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Manager Governance and Internal Control, the
Governance Team Leader, the Community Support Officer, the Director Corporate Services,
the Director Economic Development and Business, the Communications Coordinator, the
Director Infrastructure and Operations (S Carter), the Director Planning and Environment, the
Manager Environmental Control, the Trainee Planner, the Director Community and
Recreation, the Social Justice Coordinator and the Youth Development Officer.

Councillor G Mohr assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 5.55pm.

EDBC18/40 REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE - MEETING 9 JULY 2018 (ID18/1234)

The Committee had before it the report of the Economic Development, Business and

Corporate Committee meeting held 9 July 2018.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor K Parker

MOTION

That the report of the Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting

held on 9 July 2018, be noted.
CARRIED

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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EDBC18/41 LGNSW ANNUAL CONFERENCE PROPOSED MOTION REGARDING AMENDING
REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTORAL WARDS (ID18/1261)

The Committee had before it the report dated 31 July 2018 from the Executive Manager

Governance and Internal Control regarding LGNSW Annual Conference Proposed Motion

Regarding Amending Requirements for Electoral Wards.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

That Council request that the following motion be lodged for inclusion on the LGNSW 2018
Annual Conference agenda:

That LGNSW make representations to the Minister of Local Government to consider the
feasibility and appropriateness of an amendment to the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW)
to allow a process for:
1. the creation of electoral wards with variations in the number of electors of
more than 10% in each ward in the area; and
2.  different numbers of councillors to be elected for each ward provided that the
councillor:elector ratio of each ward is such as to maintain the principle of
democratic representation across the area.
CARRIED

EDBC18/42 ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND INSURANCE MATTERS
(1ID18/1235)

The Committee had before it the report dated 30 July 2018 from the Executive Manager

Governance and Internal Control regarding Annual Risk Management Program and Insurance

Matters.

Moved by Councillor K Parker and seconded by Councillor J Diffey
MOTION

That the Risk Management Program review and the classes of insurance acquired for
2018/2019 be noted.
CARRIED

Councillor D Grant declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor D Grant works for Elders Insurance
who are underwritten by QBE. If Council were to call public tenders for insurances, QBE could
be involved in the process.
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EDBC18/43 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO FEES AND CHARGES OF THE 2018/2019
REVENUE POLICY (ID18/1194)

The Committee had before it the report dated 30 July 2018 from the Director Planning and

Environment regarding Proposed Amendment To Fees and Charges of the 2018/2019

Revenue Policy.

Moved by Councillor K Parker and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

1. That the attached draft amendments to the 2018/2019 Revenue Policy be adopted by
Council for the purposes of public exhibition for a period of not less than 28 days.
2. That following public exhibition a further report be presented to Council for its
consideration.
CARRIED

EDBC18/44 LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Requests for leave of absence were received from Councillors D Gumley and J Ryan who were
absent from the meeting for personal reasons.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor J Diffey

MOTION

That such requests for leave of absence be accepted and Councillors D Gumley and J Ryan

be granted leave of absence from this meeting.
CARRIED

The meeting closed at 6.06pm.

CHAIRMAN
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n REPORT: Boothenba Road Upgrade -
| _ Application to the Growing Local
Economies Fund

DUBBO REGIONAL

COUNCIL . . .
AUTHOR: Economic Project and Grants Officer
REPORT DATE: 30 August 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/1394

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Dubbo Regional Council is seeking funding from the NSW Government’s Growing Local
Economies Fund to deliver an upgrade to Boothenba Road, Dubbo specifically at the
intersection with the Dubbo Regional Livestock Markets (DRLM), at the western end of
Boothenba Road.

The existing arrangement of the Boothenba Road/DRLM intersection negatively impacts on
the safe and efficient operation of Boothenba Road and the surrounding arterial road
network.

The short approach to the DRLM, which incorporates a level rail crossing on a slope, cannot
sufficiently accommodate the ever-increasing longer heavy vehicles accessing the DRLM,
affects driver safety, animal welfare (stock standing in trucks), and results in the loss of
productivity with the stop/start of vehicles when approaching the rail crossing.

The project aims to improve general access arrangements to the DRLM from Boothenba
Road which would achieve greater safety measures, transport efficiencies and productivity
gains. Based on initial investigation and design commissioned by Council, possible options to
improve the intersection include road realignment to better accommodate vehicles accessing
the DRLM and signalling improvements at the intersection.

Council has identified the NSW Government’s Growing Local Economies Fund as an
appropriate avenue to seek funding to assist with the delivery of the project. The Growing
Local Economies Fund, administered through the Department of Premier and Cabinet (DPC),
is part of the NSW Government’s $1.3 billion Regional Growth Fund and is designed to
deliver economic growth and productivity in Regional NSW.

Council has submitted an Expression of Interest (EOI) for funding as a first stage in the
application process and is currently awaiting formal notification from DPC as to the success
of the EOI and an invitation to progress to a full business case application. Should the EOI
prove successful, Council would like to accept the invitation to prepare a business case with
the confidence of Councillors.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: This Council initiative, which aligns with key infrastructure themes in
Council’s recently adopted 2040 Community Strategic Plan (2018), will deliver significant
outcomes for the Dubbo region. With the community at the centre of everything Council
does, Council has sought external funding partners to deliver this project cost effectively and
ensure ratepayer’s money achieves greater benefit for cost.

Integrity: With transparency being a key tenant of grants governance, Council seeks to advise
Councillors of major funding strategies for use of ratepayer’s money to deliver priority
infrastructure projects that will benefit the Dubbo Regional Local Government Area.

One Team: This funding application and the delivery of the Boothenba Road upgrade project
will be a collaboration between Council’s Economic Development and Business Division and
Infrastructure and Operations Division.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

A requirement of the Regional Growth Fund: Growing Local Economies program is that all
projects must have a minimum financial co-contribution of 25 per cent of the total grant
amount.

The initial estimated total project cost is between $5 million and $6 million dollars (to be
refined during the development of a full Business Case), therefore Council would need to
provide a minimum co-contribution of between $1 million and $1.2 million.

Council’s funding will include contributions from the DRLM, the road infrastructure program
and a proportion from private partnerships with external stakeholders who will directly
benefit from the road upgrade project — to be negotiated through the development of the
full business case application.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That if Council’s Expression of Interest to the NSW Government’s Growing Local Economies
Fund is successful, then Council progresses with a full business case funding application for
the Boothenba Road upgrade project.

Matthew Taylor
Economic Project and Grants Officer

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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BACKGROUND

Dubbo Regional Council is seeking funding from the NSW Government’s Growing Local
Economies Fund to deliver an upgrade to Boothenba Road, Dubbo specifically at the
intersection with the Dubbo Regional Livestock Markets (DRLM), at the western end of
Boothenba Road.

REPORT

Boothenba Road is classified as a major arterial road in Dubbo, primarily linking the Golden
Highway with the Newell Highway and links with Troy Bridge Road and Bunglegumbie Road to
connect to the Mitchell Highway to the west of Dubbo. It is a key freight route that facilitates
significant economic growth and productivity in the Dubbo region. Please refer to Appendix 1
for a location map of Boothenba Road.

Key businesses and industries are located along Boothenba Road including the Dubbo
Regional Livestock Markets (DRLM), Fletcher International Exports — both the sheep
abattoir/processing facility and their grain storage/transportation facility, a number of
transportation companies and a potential new commercial truck stop facility to be located
opposite the DRLM (Council is currently assessing the proponent’s recently-submitted
Development Application).

Issues

The existing arrangement of the Boothenba Road/DRLM intersection negatively impacts on

the safe and efficient operation of Boothenba Road and the surrounding arterial road

network. The short approach to the DRLM incorporates a level rail crossing on a slope which
see the following challenges:

° The DRLM approach (between Boothenba Road and the rail crossing) no longer safely
accommodates the stacking and storage capacity of heavy vehicles entering or leaving
the DRLM. The ever-increasing truck combinations accessing the DRLM include Double
Road Train, B-Triple, AB-Triple vehicles.

. Large heavy vehicle combinations overhang the rail line when waiting to turn on to
Boothenba Road, which is a significant safety concern. This has resulted in serious
accidents in past years, specifically a collision between train and truck.

° With the rail crossing on a slope, the stop/start is hard on heavy vehicles and animal
welfare (with stock standing in trucks).

° The intersection does not sufficiently cope with the increased heavy vehicle movements
and stock accessing the DRLM.

Benefits

The upgrade project aims to improve general access arrangements to the DRLM from
Boothenba Road and improve the safety of heavy vehicle drivers and improve animal welfare.
Based on initial investigation and design commissioned by Council, possible options to
improve the intersection include road realignment to accommodate vehicles accessing the

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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DRLM and signalling improvements at the intersection. These options would see greater
transport efficiencies and productivity gains.

Proposed Truck Stop Facility

Investigation and design work to date has not included any provisions for the commercial
truck stop facility that is proposed on Boothenba Road opposite the DRLM. Such a facility
would result in significant economic benefits to the Dubbo region as the city does not have a
major commercial truck stop/truck wash/driver rest facility.

The road upgrade project provides an opportunity to align stakeholders to determine the
optimal access arrangements to both facilities. For instance, re-align the entrance to the truck
stop facility directly opposite to the DRLM entrance, which would simplify the movement of
heavy vehicles between the two facilities and enhance driver and animal safety.

Funding

Council has identified the NSW Government’s Growing Local Economies Fund as an
appropriate avenue to seek funding to assist with the delivery of the Boothenba Road
upgrade project.

The Growing Local Economies Fund, administered through the Department of Premier and
Cabinet (DPC), is part of the NSW Government’s $1.3 billion Regional Growth Fund and is
designed to deliver economic growth and productivity in Regional NSW. The minimum grant
amount is $1 million with no maximum grant amount.

The application process for the Growing Local Economies Fund is a two-stage approach. The
first stage is an Expression of Interest (EOI) with an overview of the project and funding
sought. Stage two, if formally invited by DPC, is the submission of a full business case for DPC
consideration.

Council has submitted an EOI and is currently awaiting formal advice from DPC as to its
success and if to progress with a business case. Should the EOI prove successful then Council
would like to accept the invitation to prepare a business case with the confidence of
Councillors.

Alignment with Strategic Plans

The project aligns with a number of strategic planning documents for the Dubbo region

including:

° Dubbo Regional Council’'s 2040 Community Strategic Plan (2018), specifically the key
infrastructure themes of the safety, functionality, efficiency and economic connectivity
of Council’s road network.

° The Central Orana Regional Economic Development Strategy 2018-2022, a central
document in accessing NSW Government funding, which identifies the Dubbo Regional
Livestock Market Rail Crossing Upgrade as a significant infrastructure upgrade project.

° The NSW Government’s Regional Development Framework — Making it Happen in the
Regions, providing quality infrastructure in regional NSW, support growing regional
centres and activating their economic potential.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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. The NSW Planning and Environment’s Central West and Orana Regional Plan which
includes goals of providing quality freight transport and infrastructure networks and
enhancing road and rail freight links.

° The Future Transport 2056: NSW Draft Freight and Ports Plan which provides for NSW
Government funding initiatives to support initiatives that improve efficient and higher
mass limit freight movement in regional NSW.

° The NSW Government’s 20 Year Economic Vision for Regional NSW (July 2018) that sets
out the NSW Government’s principles and economic enablers for increasing freight
transport efficiencies in regional NSW.

SUMMARY

If Council’s Expression of Interest to the NSW Government’s Growing Local Economies Fund is
successful, then Council would like to progresses with a full business case funding application
for the Boothenba Road upgrade project.

Appendices:
1l Boothenba Road Location Map - Report to the Economic Development, Business and
Corporate Committee (10.09.18)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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Appendix 1 — Boothenba Road — Location Maps
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n REPORT: 2017/2018 Budget Highlights
| . Report

DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Chief Financial Officer
COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 28 August 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/1347

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council has conducted a review of actual income and expenditure to budget for the quarter
and year ended 30 June 2018. This review is significant as it is the first harmonised budget
for Dubbo Regional Council. Although not required to be adopted by Council as a formal
Quarterly Business Review Statement, it is an opportunity to reflect on the year passed and
achievements for the year.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The Quarterly Budget reviews progress against the original and revised
annual budgets at the end of each quarter of the financial year. The June quarterly review is
an opportunity to inform the community about significant achievements.

Integrity: The Responsible Accounting Officer indicates if Council will be in a satisfactory
financial position at the end of the financial year.

One Team: The Budgets are consolidated across all of Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

It should be noted that the Financial Statements and Audited results for 2017/2018 have not
yet been finalised. The final results will be determined following the completion and audit of
the 2017/2018 Financial Statements which is scheduled for 31 October 2018.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the report of the Chief Financial Officer dated 28
August 2018 be noted.

Jane Bassingthwaighte
Chief Financial Officer

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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REPORT

The quarterly review for the period ending 30 June 2018 of Dubbo Regional Council’s
2017/2018 Budget Review Statements shows satisfactory implementation.

Council has conducted a review of actual income and expenditure to budget for the quarter
and year ended 30 June 2018. This review is significant as it is the first harmonised budget for
Dubbo Regional Council. Although not required to be adopted by Council as a formal
Quarterly Business Review Statement, it is an opportunity to reflect on the year passed and
achievements for the year.

After the completion of the June quarter review, there is an additional $2 Million in
organisational savings identified. This saving has been largely generated as a result of wage
savings due to staff vacancies now being quarantined. These funds are held in an internally

restricted asset to be available for additional projects as approved by Council.

A summary of the budget results are depicted as follows:

Income and Expenditure 2018

$212,153,742
$122,991,854
$78,044,849
511,117,039

Operating Income  Capital expenditure Operating expenditure Netincome

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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Income by type 2018

m Rates and annual charges

m User charges and fees

B Interest and investment revenue
Grants and contibutions (operating)

B Grants and contributions (capital)

m Net gains from the disposal of assets

m Other revenues

Dubbo Regional Council manages over $2.4 Billion of community assets and infrastructure
and has spent over $200 Million on the provision of services in 2017/2018. Significant
investment of over $17 Million in maintaining and improving Dubbo Local Government Areas
assets such as roads, footpaths and cycleways is a highlight of the Dubbo Regional Council
result for the 2017/2018 year. Another highlight is the significant grant funding received from
the State Government under the Stronger Communities Fund in the 2017/2018 year. $27.7
Million of funding is being invested in ten major projects including the Redevelopment of the
Wellington Pool, the Redevelopment of Victoria Park and the new SES/VRA headquarters.
Council has developed a dedicated team — Building and Infrastructure Leadership Team (BILT)
who together with internal staff and external consultants will focus on delivering the new
infrastructure within allocated timelines.

The Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 for Dubbo Regional Council are
prepared in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards and are due for completion by
31 October 2018. This is the final year Luka Group will act as the intermediate auditor for
Council. For the 2018/2019 financial statements the audit will be handled directly by the NSW
Auditor General.

Below is a summary in respect of various major capital projects undertaken during 2017/2018
and projects still in progress into 2018/2019:

Waste Collection Services

New household waste collection services commenced on the 1 July 2018. Dubbo residents
transitioned from two bins to three bins with Wellington and surrounding village residents
transitioning from one bin to three bins. Issues associated with the collections are being
resolved as quickly as possible.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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Dubbo Regional Organics Processing Plant

The Dubbo Regional Organics Processing Plant (DROPP) was officially opened in July 2018 at
the Whylandra Waste and Recycling Facility. The DROPP will process food and garden organic
waste from Dubbo Regional Council, Mid-Western Regional Council and Narromine Shire
Council. The plant has commenced operations and has been receiving food and garden waste
from residents across the region since 2 July, 2018. The DROPP will divert a significant volume
of organic waste from landfill, reducing environmental pollution caused by leachates and
methane gas production. At the end of the process, a valuable resource in the form of
compost will be available for use. In total, the new facility represents a significant investment
of more than $7 million into a new regional organics recycling industry. This project has been
funded by the NSW EPA, Dubbo Regional Council and JR Richards and Sons.

Gundy Creek Bridge

The Gundy Creek Bridge construction is complete and the formal opening occurred on 30 July
2018. The original timber bridge was replaced with a two-lane concrete bridge that can
accommodate higher mass limit vehicles and will improve freight transport and community
access. There was a total investment in the project of $1.37 million.

Rural Fire Training Facility

Demolition of the old Air Services Compound is complete. The major realignment of the
stormwater drainage channel is complete, along with bulk earthworks associated with
internal road construction. Construction of four bay sheds and hardstand is over 50%
complete.

Dubbo Airport General Aviation Precinct Project

The project is well advanced. Temporary side track access has been constructed for Judy
Jakins Drive. Earthworks are well advanced, pavement works are underway and sewer
installations are well advanced. The project is planned to be completed by early September
2018, weather permitting.

Victoria Park Project

The main construction of the Victoria Park No. 2 and 3 car park commenced at the start of
June 2018 with the works expected to take 8 to 10 weeks to complete. As part of this project
30 super advanced trees will be replanted within the immediate area (car park and oval
surrounds). Installation of the fences around Victoria Park 2 and 3 will commence at the
completion of the new car park.

Wongarbon Park

The redevelopment of Wongarbon Park has been completed. The park redevelopment
included a full playground renewal, installation of two park picnic settings and shelters, two
futsal soccer goals and a new hot water system unit within the club house. Additionally, a
granite path continuation was undertaken to create an accessible link to the recently
redeveloped infrastructure.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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Dubbo Regional Botanic Garden Playground

Bulk earthworks and pathways are completed and the amenity block has been installed. The
site fencing, irrigation and playground equipment (including the All Abilities Swing) is to be
installed in August and September 2018. The project is to be completed by the end of
October 2018.

Dubbo Regional Botanic Garden Carpark
The carpark was completed and officially opened on 23 July 2018. This was partly funded by
the Stronger Communities Fund of $240,000 with the remainder contributed by Council.

Dubbo Regional Theatre and Convention Centre Operable Door

Dubbo Regional Theatre and Convention Centre’s large auditorium had a new operable
acoustic dividing door installed in July 2018. Funding of $163,467 was received from the NSW
Government Arts and Culture Infrastructure Grants Program and Council contributed the
remaining $150,000. The project saw the original operable dividing door removed and
replaced with a new 21.5 metre acoustic door. The upgraded doors make the venue more
accessible and cost effective for hirers and the DRTCC will now be able to offer a versatile and
accessible space for weddings, community, cultural events, exhibitions, meetings, workshops
and conferences.

Playmates Cottage

Playmates Cottage celebrated the official opening of its purpose-built $1.8 million facility on
Moran Drive in June 2018. The new Playmates was built on Dubbo Regional Council land, and
its construction was fully funded by the NSW government.

Dubbo Aquatic Leisure Centre

The renewal of the Dubbo Aquatic Leisure Centre grandstand roof was completed by the end
of June 2018 at a cost of $120,000. The new water play area is currently under construction
and is on track to be completed by September 2018 with an opening event scheduled for 7
October 2018.

Wellington Aquatic Leisure Centre
Tenders for the Wellington Memorial Pool renewal are currently under determination having
re-entry closed on 4 September 2018. The estimated completion date is October 2019.

Boundary Road Extension

Wheelers Lane roundabout construction is advancing with asphalt placed on the western
side. Boundary Road/Wheelers Lane intersection has reopened with traffic travelling in the
western lane and detour through Avian Estate now removed. Construction of the eastern side
of the roundabout is continuing with stormwater installation and excavation work for road
pavement commencing.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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Report of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee - meeting 5
September 2018

gggﬁg{EG'ONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance

REPORT DATE: 4 September 2018

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held 5 September 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting held on 5
September 2018, be adopted.

Appendices:

10  Audit and Risk Management Committee - 05/09/2018 - Reports
20l  General Purpose Financial Statements 2017/2018

30  Special Purpose Financial Statements 2017/2018
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REPORT
PR¥ AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
couneit " 5 SEPTEMBER 2018

PRESENT: Core Members (Voting):
Councillors A Jones, B Shields, Mr J Walkom (Independent Member) and Mr A Fletcher
(Independent Member).

Attendees (Non-Voting):
The Executive Manager Governance and Internal Control, the Internal Auditor, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Audit/Statutory Reporting Accountant and Marco Monaco (Audit Office
of NSW) (via telephone).

J Walkom assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 11.05am.

WELCOME

AUD18/30 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (ID18/1350)

A request for leave of absence was received from the Chief Executive Officer, the Director
Corporate Services and Renee Meimaroglou (Audit NSW) who were absent from the meeting
due to prior work commitments and Mr S Bassett (Community Representative) who was
absent from the meeting due to the personal reasons.

Moved by A Fletcher and seconded by A Jones
RECOMMENDATION
That such request for leave of absence be accepted and the Chief Executive Officer, the

Director Corporate Services and Renee Meimaroglou (Audit NSW) and Mr S Bassett
(Community Representative) be granted leave of absence from this meeting.

AUD18/31 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (ID18/1351)
No conflicts of interest were declared.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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AUD18/32 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - MEETING 15
JUNE 2018 (1D18/1352)

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee

meeting held 15 June 2018.

Moved by A Fletcher and seconded by A Jones
RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting held on 15 June
2018, as amended be adopted.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
Update on Financial Statements

AUD18/33  REFERRAL OF THE 2017/2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO AUDIT (1D18/1318)
The Committee had before it the report dated 16 August 2018 from the Chief Financial
Officer regarding Referral of the 2017/2018 Financial Statements to Audit.

Moved by A Fletcher and seconded by A Jones
RECOMMENDATION

1. That the committee note that the 2017/2018 audit will commence on 10 September
2018.

2. That the draft financial statements be noted.

3. That the Audit and Risk Management Committee be provided with a report out of
session of the result of the investigation into the 2015/2016 road revaluation.

External Auditor’s Management Letters
No matters to report at this time.

Significant Developments in Financial Reporting Framework
No matters to report at this time.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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10 SEPTEMBER 2018

INTERNAL AUDIT

AUD18/34 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME STATUS REPORT AS AT 21 AUGUST 2018
(1D18/1327)

The Committee had before it the report dated 21 August 2018 from the Internal Auditor

regarding Internal Audit Programme Status Report as at 21 August 2018.

Moved by A Jones and seconded by A Fletcher
RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the internal audit program status report of the
Internal Auditor dated 21 August 2018 be noted.

AUD18/35 INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEW PLAN - EVENTS MANAGEMENT PROCESS
(1ID18/1338)

The Committee had before it the report dated 23 August 2018 from the Internal Auditor

regarding Internal Audit Review Plan - Events Management Process.

Moved by A Fletcher and seconded by A Jones
RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the report of the Internal Auditor dated 23 August
2018 be noted.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS REPORTS
No matters to report at this time

ACTION LIST

AUD18/36 ARMC ACTION LIST AS AT SEPTEMBER 2018 (ID18/1341)
The Committee had before it the report dated 27 August 2018 from the Executive Manager
Governance and Internal Control regarding ARMC Action List as at September 2018.

Moved by A Jones and seconded by A Fletcher

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the information contained in the report of the Executive Manager Governance
and Internal Control dated 27 August 2018 be noted.

2. That all items marked as completed be deleted from the list.
3.  That the action plan be noted and the completion dates updated accordingly.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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10 SEPTEMBER 2018

GENERAL BUSINESS

AUD18/37 RESPONSE TO THE ASSURANCE REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL QUALITY
ASSESSMENT OF THE BOD INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT (ID18/1326)

The Committee had before it the report dated 20 August 2018 from the Internal Auditor

regarding Response to the Assurance Report from the External Quality Assessment of the

BOD Internal Audit Unit.

Moved by A Jones and seconded by A Fletcher

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the report of the Internal Auditor dated 20 August

2018 be noted.

The Internal Auditor declared an interest in this report, and remained in the room.

The meeting closed at 12.37pm.

CHAIRMAN

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
AUD18/32

5 SEPTEMBER 2018

Report of the Audit and Risk

Management Committee - meeting 15
dﬁ{ June 2018

ggaﬁgEEGIONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance

REPORT DATE: 28 August 2018

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held 15 June 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting held on 15 June
2018, be adopted.
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:;J:;IEA;EEF:S:;EANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AUD18/32
- REPORT
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
DUBBO REGIONAL COMMI-ITEE
coonei " 15 JUNE 2018

PRESENT: Core Members (Voting):
Councillors B Shields, Mr J Walkom (Independent Member) and Mr A Fletcher (Independent
Member).

Attendees (Non-Voting):

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Manager Governance and Internal Control, the
Internal Auditor, the Director Corporate Services, the Manager Financial Operations, the
Audit/statutory Reporting Accountant and Marco Monaco (Audit Office of NSW) (via
telephone).

J Walkom assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 10.00am.

AUD18/19 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (1D18/953)

Requests for leave of absence were received from Councillor A Jones, Mr S Bassett
(Community Representative), Chris Harper (Audit NSW) and Renee Meimaroglou (Audit NSW)
who were absent from the meeting due to the personal reasons.

RECOMMENDATION

That such requests for leave of absence be accepted and Councillor A Jones, Mr S Bassett
(Community Representative), Chris Harper (Audit Office of NSW) and Renee Meimaroglou
(Audit Office of NSW) be granted leave of absence from this meeting.

AUD18/20 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (ID18/954)

No conflicts of interest were declared.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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AUD18/21 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - MEETING 13
MARCH 2018 (ID18/955)

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee

meeting held 13 March 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting held on 13 March
2018, be adopted.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
Update on Financial Statements

AUD18/22 FINAL MANAGEMENT LETTER FOR THE 2016/2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INTERIM MANAGEMENT LETTER FOR THE 2017/2018 FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (ID18/823)

The Committee had before it the report dated 5 June 2018 from the Manager Financial

Operations regarding Final Management Letter for the 2016/2017 Financial Statements and

Interim Management Letter for the 2017/2018 Financial Statements.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the report of the Manager Financial Operations
dated 5 June 2018 be noted with the inclusion of the revised final interim management
letter dated 7 June 2018.

AUD18/23  AUDIT OFFICE OF NSW CLIENT SERVICE PLAN FOR THE AUDIT OF DUBBO
REGIONAL COUNCIL FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 (ID18/922)

The Committee had before it the report dated 30 May 2018 from the Manager Financial

Operations regarding Audit Office of NSW Client Service Plan for the Audit of Dubbo Regional

Council for the year ending 30 June 2018.

RECOMMENDATION
1. That the Committee note the report Audit Office of NSW Client Service Plan for the
Audit of Dubbo Regional Council for the year ending 30 June 2018.

2.  That the Audit and Risk Committee meeting scheduled for 7 September 2018 be
rescheduled to the 5 September 2018.

Mr Marco Monaco (Audit Office of NSW) left the meeting, the time being 10.25am.
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AUD18/24  AUDIT OFFICE REPORT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2017 (ID18/948)
The Committee had before it the report dated 5 June 2018 from the Manager Financial
Operations regarding Audit Office Report on Local Government 2017.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Manager Financial Operations dated 5 June 2018 be noted.

External Auditor’s Management Letters
No matters to report at this time.

Significant Developments in Financial Reporting Framework
No matters to report at this time.

INTERNAL AUDIT

AUD18/25 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME STATUS REPORT AS AT 1 JUNE 2018
(1D18/926)

The Committee had before it the report dated 1 June 2018 from the Internal Auditor

regarding Internal Audit Programme Status Report as at 1 June 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

1.  That the information contained within the internal audit program status report of the
Internal Auditor dated 1 June 2018 be noted.

2.  That is be noted that the Chief Executive Officer advised the Committee that it is
Council’s intention to appoint an Internal Auditor and that Council formerly thank the
current BOD Alliance Internal Auditor, Shephard Shambira, for his efforts in this role.

AUD18/26 INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEW REPORT - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TRANSACTIONS -
TEST FOR DUPLICATE PAYMENTS (ID18/934)

The Committee had before it the report dated 1 June 2018 from the Internal Auditor

regarding Internal Audit Review Report - Accounts Payable Transactions - Test for duplicate

payments.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the internal audit program status report of the
Internal Auditor dated 1 June 2018 be noted.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS REPORTS
No matters to report at this time

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 6

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 25




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 05/09/2018 ITEM NO: EDBC18/48

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
5 SEPTEMBER 2018 AU D 18/32

ACTION LIST

AUD18/27 ARMC ACTION LIST AS AT MAY 2018 (ID18/958)
The Committee had before it the report dated 6 June 2018 from the Executive Manager
Governance and Internal Control regarding ARMC Action List as at May 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

1.  That the information contained in the report of the Executive Manager Governance
and Internal Control dated 6 June 2018 be noted.
2. That all items marked as completed be deleted from the list.

GENERAL BUSINESS

AUD18/28 INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE (ID18/950)

The Committee had before it the report dated 5 June 2018 from the Executive Manager

Governance and Internal Control regarding Independent Members of the Audit and Risk

Management Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council publically invite expressions of interest for the position of Independent
Member to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

2. That Mr Fletcher, Mr Walkom and Mr Bassett be formally thanked for their
contribution to Council’s Audit and Risk Management Committee.

3. That those expressions of interest once received be forwarded to Council for
determination of the independent members.

4, That the existing external members of the Committee remain members until the
completion of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting scheduled for 5
September 2018.
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AUD18/29 EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSESSMENT OF THE BATHURST, ORANGE DUBBO
ALLIANCE INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT (ID18/957)

The Committee had before it the report dated 6 June 2018 from the Executive Manager

Governance and Internal Control regarding External Quality Assessment of the Bathurst,

Orange Dubbo Alliance Internal Audit Unit.

RECOMMENDATION

1.  That the information contained in the report of the Executive Manager Governance
and Internal Control dated 6 June 2018 be noted.

2.  That a meeting be convened between Dubbo Regional Council, Orange City Council

and Bathurst Regional Council during August 2018 to discuss the results of the
external quality assessment review of the Internal Audit Unit.

The meeting closed at 11.13am.

CHAIRMAN
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' REPORT: Referral of the 2017/2018
\ Financial Statements to Audit
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Chief Financial foicer

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 16 August 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/1318

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Act 1993 requires that Council, by resolution, provide statements that
the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant Acts,
Standards and Codes of Accounting Practice, and that they present fairly the Council's
financial position.

Statements are required to be made by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Chief Executive Officer
and Responsible Accounting Officer to enable the current draft Financial Statements and
Special Purpose Financial Statements to be submitted for Audit. The audit is scheduled to be
completed in the ensuing three weeks. Following completion of the audit Council’s auditors,
Audit Office, will provide a presentation on the final audited 2017/2018 Financial Statements
to the October 2018 Ordinary meeting of Council.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The audited Financial Statements are presented to the community to
provide them a better understanding of Council’s financial position and to ensure they are
true and fair with no material misstatement. Notes in the Financial Statements are designed
to provide users with additional information on items appearing in the Income Statement
and Balance Sheet.

Integrity: Section 413 of the Local Government Act 1993, provides as that the general
purpose financial report must be prepared in accordance with this Act and the regulations,
and requirements of the publications issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
as in force for the time being, subject to the regulations, and such other standards as may be
prescribed by the regulations.

One Team: Preparation of the Annual Financial Statements requires coordination and input
from across all of Council’s operations.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The financial statements show Council to be in a sound financial position as at 30 June 2018.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.
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RECOMMENDATION

1. That the statement in accordance with Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act

1993, and Clause 215 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005, for the
General Purpose Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June 2018 be made.

2. That the statement in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Accounting

Practice in relation to the Special Purpose Financial Statements for the year ending
30 June 2018 be made.

3. That the statements be signed by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Chief Executive Officer

and Responsible Accounting Officer.

Jane Bassingthwaighte
Chief Financial Officer

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 10

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 29




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 05/09/2018 ITEM NO: EDBC18/48

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
5 SEPTEMBER 2018 AU D 18/33

REPORT
Section 413 of the Local Government Act 1993 requires that:

1. A Council must prepare financial reports for each year, and must refer them for audit as
soon as practicable (having regard to the requirements of Section 416 (1)) after the end of
that year.

2. A Council's finandal reports must include:

a)  ageneral purpose financial report; and

b)  any other matters prescribed by the regulations, and

c¢)  a statement in the approved form by the Council as to its opinion on the general
purpose financial report.

3. The general purpose financial report must be prepared in accordance with this Act and
the regulations and the requirement of:

a)  The publications issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, as in force  for
the time being, subject to the regulations, and
b)  Such other standards as may be prescribed by the regulations.

The statement required by Section 413 (2) (c) and the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, clause 215 requires the following:

215 (1) That the statement required by Section 413 (2) (c) of the Act must:

a) be made by resolution of the Council, and
b)  be signed by:
i) the Mayor; and
ii) at least one other member of the Council; and
iii)  the Responsible Accounting Officer; and
iv)  the Chief Executive Officer (if not the responsible accounting officer)

215(2) The statement must indicate:

a)  whether or not the Council's annual financial reports have been drawn up in
accordance with:

i) The Act and this Regulation; and
ii)  The Code and the Manual; and
iii)  The Australian Accounting Standards issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board, and

b)  whether or not those reports present fairly the Council's financial position and
operating result for the year; and
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c) whether or not those reports accord with the council's accounting and other
records; and

d) whether or not the signatories know of anything that would make those reports
false or misleading in any way,

and include such information and explanations as will prevent those reports from being
misleading because of any qualification thatis included in the statement.

215(3) The council must ensure that the statement is attached to the relevant annual
financial reports.

The Financial Statements of Council have been prepared to comply with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 1993, the Australian Accounting Standards, the Local Government
Code and Manual. Copies of the Financial Statements have been provided as an attachment
to this report (Appendix 1 and 2).

A statement must also be made in relation to the Special Purpose Financial Statements. The
statement must be made by resolution of Council, signed by the Mayor, at least one other
member of the Council, the Responsible Accounting Officer, and the Chief Executive Officer.

The statement by Council must indicate whether or not the Council's Special Purpose
Financial Reports have been drawn up in accordance with the Code and Manual.

The Special Purpose Financial Statements have been drawn up in accordance with the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting and the Department of
Local Government guidelines "Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses: A Guide to
Competitive Neutrality."

It must be noted that a prior year accounting error, in relation to the 2015 roads revaluation
has been identified, but is has not been reported in the attached Financial Statements as the
actual value of the error was unable to be finalised prior to this report. This will be further
investigated during the 2017/2018 audit.

As indicated above, the statements are required to be made to enable the Financial
Statements and the Special Purpose Financial Statements to be submitted for audit. The
statements are included within Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. The audit is scheduled to be
completed in the ensuing five weeks. Following completion of the audit, Council’s Auditors,
Audit Office, will provide a presentation on the Annual Financial Reports to the October 2018
Ordinary meeting of Council.
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’ REPORT: Internal Audit Programme
\ Status Report as at 21 August 2018
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Internal Auditor

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 21 August 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/1327

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The strategic objective of the Council’s internal audit function is to provide a consultancy
service to management which focuses on providing insight on key risk issues and generating
effective solutions to enhance the Coundil’s risk management framework.

The internal audit programme (Appendix 1) was prepared based on the former Dubbo City
Council risk registers. The programme was also presented to Executive Leadership Team for
further input and feedback from Executive Leadership Team was considered. Executive
Leadership Team noted that the list of presentations included in the proposed internal audit
programme was based on the recent amendments to the Local Government Act (1993) NSW
which are not yet in force. The Committee therefore resolved to defer adoption of such
changes pending proclamation of the legislation and related Regulations.

At the time of preparing this report, a review of rates and charges transactions in accordance
with a review plan approved by the Committee was substantially completed. The draft report
is awaiting management comments. It was expected that management comments would be
provided soon after the completion of certain financial year end external audit tasks, and the
report will be presented to the next meeting.

An audit of the events management process is included in the approved internal audit
programme. During the period under review, the Internal Auditor completed preliminary
research into the Council’s event management processes with a view to establish an outline
of potential auditable issues of interest. Opportunities for improvement were identified
based on these preliminary internal audit enquiries and it is recommended that the
Committee consider this review complete on the basis of the preliminary findings and
recommendations.

Completion of the scheduled internal audit programme tasks has been delayed by the fact
that the scope of investigations arising from data extractions for a review of creditors’
transactions and rates and charges transactions utilised more time than what was expected.
The review of large samples of transactions can be time consuming, especially where the
data extraction process requires to be refined to isolate more specific risk scenarios
modelled after considering initial findings. Resolution of the Internal Auditor’s enquiries on
rates and charges transactions was also stalled by the current staffing level in the Revenue
Accounting section. Furthermore, the Internal Auditor also carried out a follow up review of
cash receipting processes at the Wellington Caves at the request of the Committee. The
Internal Auditor’s involvement in the BOD Alliance Internal Audit Quality Assessment Review
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was not induded on the approved internal audit programme. The BOD Alliance member
Councils engaged a consultant to carry out an evaluation of the 3 Councils internal audit
processes and procedures in line with the standards set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
During the period under review, the Internal Auditor completed further work on the Quality
Assurance Review report.

As aresult of these factors, the following tasks scheduled for completion by June 2018 were

not finalised as planned:

. Rates and charges transactions review — This task was substantially completed as at the
time of preparing this report.

. Project management — This task was deferred at the request of management. The audit
will be commenced once a new system and procedures currently being implemented is
in place.

. Data integrity — testing of aspects of data integrity considered during the rates and
charges review.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The strategic objective of the Council’s internal audit function is to
provide a consultancy service to management which focuses on providing insight on key risk
issues and generating effective solutions to enhance the risk management framework.
Enriched risk management processes improve efficiency and effectiveness in the attainment
of service delivery promises to the Council’s customers.

Integrity: A robust internal audit function supports the integrity of Council within the
community.

One Team: The internal audit function supports cohesion and cooperation to minimise risk
and improve the delivery of services to the community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the internal audit program status report of the
Internal Auditor dated 21 August 2018 be noted.

Shephard Shambira
Internal Auditor
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BACKGROUND

The BOD (Bathurst Regional Council, Orange City Council and Dubbo Regional Council)
Alliance share an internal auditor. The General Managers/CEOs of the three (3) councils
indicated that as much as is possible, it is desirable to carry out common audit assignments
across the three (3) councils in order to facilitate the exchange of best practice. However, it is
also acknowledged that in some cases the three (3) councils have differing requirements. As
such it is not possible to always have a common internal audit programme.

The former Dubbo City Council had a comprehensive suite of operational risks registers and a
corporate risks register which were actively monitored by management and utilised by the
Internal Auditor to inform the development of a rolling three (3) year internal audit
programme. The corporate risks and operational risks registers for the Dubbo Regional
Council have not yet been prepared. This internal audit programme was partly informed with
the operational risks registers for the former Dubbo City Council as it was considered that
while the amalgamation with Wellington Council has changed some aspects of the Council’s
risk profile, the generic risks for most areas remains broadly the same. Consultation with
management were carried out to ensure that any knowledge of current issues arising from
the amalgamation are incorporated into formulating this internal audit programme.

The strategic objective of the Council’s internal audit function is to provide a consultancy
service to management which focuses on providing insight on key risk issues and generating
effective solutions to enhance the risk management framework.

REPORT
How the current internal audit programme was established

The three (3) year internal audit programme was established through the following process:

1. The corporate risks register was reviewed to identify high risk areas.

2. The Internal Auditor reviewed the Operational Plan Performance Review reports for the
quarter ended September 2016 and related Quarterly Budget Review Statements.
Gaining an understanding of the Council’s strategic objectives and progress towards
attainment of such objectives ensures that the internal audit programme is aligned with
the coundil’s strategic objectives. Gaining an understanding of the Council budget and
related movements helps to give insight on the significance of various auditable areas
to the organisation.

3. Reviewed the Interim General Manager’s six (6) Monthly review of the Dubbo Regional
Council Delivery Program, incorporating the former Dubbo 2036 (2013-2017) and
Wellington 2025 (2014-2018) Delivery Programs, as at 31 December 2016.

4. The External Auditor’s scope of work as presented to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee meeting of March 2017 was also evaluated to determine areas which
required no additional detailed coverage. This includes the Internal Auditor’s own
understanding of typical issues addressed through an external audit as required by the
Auditing Standards.
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5. The internal auditor considered internal audit programmes for other councils and
identified common topics.

6.  The internal auditor considered the topics included in the internal audit programmes
for the other BOD Alliance member councils and included some of these topics in the
Bathurst Regional Council internal audit programme.

7. Requirements of the General Manager.

8.  Consulted with the Executive Manager Governance and Internal Control, Manager
Financial Services and the Manager Management Accounting and obtained
commentary on proposed internal audit areas of focus.

9.  The internal audit programme was also presented to the Executive Leadership Team for
further input. The Executive Leadership Team were requested to suggest specific areas
on which they require internal audit input in addition to what had been suggested in
the draft programme. Where other substantial process improvement work is planned
for some areas, it may not be prudent to commit limited internal audit resources in
duplicating effort.

10. The current internal audit programme was then approved by the Interim General
Manager and the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 1 June 2017.

The internal audit process

The internal audit process follows one of three (3) routes as described below.

1.  Carry out preliminary research and prepare a review plan, obtain approval for the plan
and carry out relevant enquiries and produce a report of findings.

2. Carry out preliminary research and formulate an opinion and conclude the review on
the basis of initial findings. There are various reasons for choosing this option. For an
example, issues known at the time of including the topic on the programme have since
been resolved and audit evidence to this effect is sighted during the preliminary
planning stage. For audits which are included on the programme every year, the key risk
indicators may be reviewed and an opinion formulated at the preliminary planning
stage that the process is working well and that no further benefit may be derived from
investing limited internal audit resources into evaluating more transactions.

3. Some audit reviews are included in the programme as a follow up to previous reports.
Audit objectives might already be specified on the ARMC Action List. Preliminary
enquiries at the start of the review can highlight audit evidence which clearly shows
that the issue is now resolved. In such scenarios, it is desirable to conclude the review
on this basis, and apply internal audit resources to other areas.

4. The internal audit programme is designed to ensure that the Internal Auditor is able to
provide input and insight on various matters not included in the approved internal audit
programme as and when required to do so by management. The process is that where
such requests do not take up a significant proportion of internal audit time they are
resolved as they arise. However, where it is likely that a request not included in the
approved internal audit programme is likely to take up a significant proportion of time
with an adverse impact on the delivery of the approved programme, the General
Manager's approval is formally required before the task is added to the internal audit
programme.
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Where management is aware of specific concerns with a process being audited, a request is
made to the internal auditor to provide assurance and/or advice as required if the matter is
not adequately covered in the internal audit plan/report. The opportunity for management to
request for specific internal audit input occurs at the commencement of each audit when the
review plan is prepared and at the end of each audit when the review results are discussed
with management.

In the same way, at the commencement of every review, all internal audit review plans are
submitted to the Audit and Risk Management Committee for consideration. Internal audit
review reports are also submitted to the ARMC for their input and consideration. The ARMC
utilises these opportunities to highlight specific issues of concern on which they require
additional assurance and/or information.

The proposed internal audit programme shows an estimated time allocation to each of the
tasks identified. It should be noted that this time estimation is only a guide and that as noted
above, depending on the circumstances around each and every audit task, some tasks will be
completed in a very short space of time while others may take long to complete. For an
example, where an initial test sample indicates an exception, it may be necessary to increase
the sample size in order to establish whether the exception is a sign of a general process
weakness or just a once off error which may not be recurring.

Assurance Framework

In order for the ARMC to effectively discharge its duty as defined in the ARMC Charter,
appropriate information should be provided on a regular basis. The ARMC gets information
through a number of ways. Members of the ARMC receive reports and presentations from
management including visits to various Council projects and sites. The Internal Auditor
prepares reports which give insight and/or assurance on various matters. In some cases,
internal audit reports focus on providing advice aimed at enhancing performance and
attainment of organisational objectives. The ARMC also considers the external auditor’s
management letter and a presentation on the process and outcome of the annual audit of
the council’s financial statements.

REGULAR MANAGEMENT REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO THE ARMC

Report Topic Responsibility Target Completion
Date
1) Compliance Executive Manager |« ARMC Meeting -
* Submit an annual management reportto | Governance and September
the Committee which gives assurance Internal Control Annually

that the Council framework for
compliance with major legislative
requirements is in place and operating
effectively.

For example, a management report that
allitems listed on the Office of Local
Government Calendar of Compliance
were resolved as appropriate.
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Report Topic Responsibility Target Completion
Date
* A bi-annual exceptions report on any ¢ By daterequired
areas of major non-compliance with as specified
legislation or policy requirements binding within the Local
the Council. Government Act.

2) Risk management, Executive Manager s Corporate risk
= Corporate risks register. This can be a Governance and register to be
standing item on the agenda for all Internal Control presented to all
meetings. Highlight key changes as and ARMC meetings
when there are significant changes to the from 2018
corporate risks. including
* Presentations by divisional directors on highlights of any
key risks and related risk mitigation changesto
strategies for their divisions. The corporate risks.
presentations can be spread throughout ¢ One annual
the year such that only one director will presentation
make a presentation at each meeting. from each
* Ad hoc management reports on risk Divisional
management framework for selected Director
processes based on feedback from the highlighting key
Committee arising from consideration of risks and risk
other information provided to the management
Committee. framework.
3) Fraud control, Manager Financial ¢ ARMC Meeting —
* Annual review of the fraud management | Services/ Executive November
policy. Manager annually.
*  Bi-annual review of management Governance and
feedback on fraud risk management Internal Control
framework.
= Management feedback should highlight
any significant incidences.
= Major changes in risk profile.
4) Financial management, Director Corporate | e By date required
= Consider quarterly budget review reports. | Services as specified
» Consider quarterly investment reports. within the Local
Government Act.
5) Governance, Executive Manager ¢ Onceevery3
= Review relevant risk registers and Governance and years
consider risk mitigation strategiesin Internal Control e« Adhocasthe
place. governance
framework
changes.
6) Implementation of strategic plan, Director Planning s By date required
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Report Topic Responsibility Target Completion
Date

» Quarterly reporting on performance and Environmental as specified
management and key performance Services within the Local
indicators. Government Act.

7) Delivery program and strategies, Director Planning By date required

= Quarterly reporting on performance and Environmental as specified
management and key performance Services within the Local
indicators. Government Act.

8) Service reviews, Transition Project Ad hoc

» Ad hocreports aon service delivery Leader
reviews and related risk mitigation or
performance improvement strategies.

9) Collection of performance measurement | Director Corporate By date required
data by the council, Services as specified

= Consider performance measurement within the Local
reports on a bi-annual basis and Government Act.
recommend opportunities for
improvement to the framework where
necessary.

10) Any other matters prescribed by the Ad hoc On-going
regulations.

SUMMARY

The current internal audit programme was prepared based on the risk registers for the
former Dubbo City Council. An updated internal audit programme will be prepared once a
comprehensive risk assessment for the Dubbo Regional Council has been completed. The
completed tasks on the programme include the following, Cash receipting processes review,
creditors transactions and other ad hoc tasks such as the BOD Alliance internal audit quality
assurance review. At the time of preparing this report, the audit of rates and charges
transactions and event management processes was in progress. The audit of project
management processes and data integrity remained outstanding. The position is that the
Council has recently engaged a contractor to manage Council’s project management
processes and an audit of this process will be carried out in due course once the new process
has been fully implemented. At the time of preparing this report, work was in progress to
develop a review scope and identify an external consultant to assist with the completion of
the data integrity audit testing.

Appendices:
11l Internal Audit Programme July 2017 - July 2019
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Dubbo Regional Conncil
List ol audil (opics universe considered in preparing the (20017-2019) 3 Year Lnternal
Audit Programme

AUDIT UNIVERSE TOPICS

Giranils

Ciovernance health check

GST Compliance’ FB Tax

Land purchases, development, sales

Leisure/aquatic centres & Museum/ Art Gallery /Cultural Centre

Library Svstems (accounting)

Human resources, Payroll Management, inchuding data integrity, Time Recording, Leave
Managemen!, | ernnnalion payments

Pelly Cash

Procurement’ Purchasing’ contract management

Project Management incl variation authorisations. documentation, recording & reporting

Rates

Regulation / Compliance / Fines/ Parking fincs

Risk register including validation of controls

594 Connbubons

Tender Processes / System

Tnist acconnt anagement

Accounts payable data analytics and EFT Payments review

Tixed Assets

I'raud control health check

Fee for service ransactions (Local Gevernment Act 1993 Section 608)

Wastc Management

Chuld care cenires. cash handhing, mlis. follow up oo oulcomes from stalulory audils

Even L geInen

Accounts receivable

Cieneral ledger control processes

Investments

Budgetary control process

Performance management process

Development applications process

Seciwon 64 coninbulions

1T processes & business continuity planning

Occupation and building certificates

Revenue receipting and cash handling processes
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T RISK RESIDUAL RISK ENTERPRISE RISK
Onginal Current Current
Nature of Risk Risk Description c/L** Rating JExisting Controls C/L** |Rating  [Accept JC/L** Rating
Jesr radr e M anial - section on bind strikes,
Public Liability Joir strike by birds and other foreign abjects 25/45 Extreme Inzpections for Fol's 2525 |kwtreme [Ves 24/ 2% Extreme
Mo integrated management system for WHS, HR
ntormation results in duplication, opportunity for errors, resource
Technokgy o antirrely data et hurgry, provision 20425 High b ity [ s tigating solutions (Due December 2015) (20,25 |High Nuy 20725 High

Pricritising work

F xtes nal contactors
increased staff levels
Nevelopment works increasing public oper spaces for Reduction in service level
[Business Activitics_[additional maintenance 23/d5 Extrome Phase up additional Funding 23/25 |bxtrome |Ves 20f 2 High
) Lisi ness Continuity Plans

infrastructure design to mitigate fAooding
e e 14

Natural Hazards Fl aoding 23)25 Extreme Fiestricted asset far flooding everis 20425 |High res Lo/ as High
ir1s e tio

roials regime
Fiick identification
otaffing levels

Insufficient resources 1o undertake all Statutory Pricntisation of work
o bligatians (e g. Awnings, Fire Safety Statements, Insurances
Bublic Liability E oarcing Houses, Pools, eic.). 23045 Extreme Professionaliem aof staff 21/25 |High No L1/ High
jCorporate ssue
Documents Council s1aff producing not recordec and Folicy & Procedures
Ausiness Activities Jallocated into TRIM (records managem ent system) 23/725 Fxtrems [Training #1/75 |High Ny 21/25 High
I_BL siness Activities BINComect o Derator input into TRIM tystem 21)35 Hign COroorana issug 21/25 |High No 21125 High
infarmation that should be in TRIM s not captured or oroorate lssug
Husiness Activities Jrecorded 21/35 High E scalation processes 21/25 |High NO L1/5 High
Staff Training
WHS Advisar

Folicy procedure

External WHS audit |Completed by
December 2014)

internal Audits

[WHS Mor-comaliance of WHS Legislation 25/2% Extreme fcafety Systems Development Plan High No 21725 High
s1aff Training
NIIS Adhisar
Policy procedure
External WHS Audit [ Completed by
Dacember 3014)
Internal Audits

(WHS Lack of commiimaent by workers 1o WHS Reguirem ents |25/35 Exirome satety systams Developmant Plan 24/15 |Exireme |No 31725 High
inzufficient furding - submission for
5 dditional funding dependent on Asset

inancil/ Inadeguate infrastructure for stormwater M anagement Plan completion - expected

nfrasoructure managemant 13/35 Extreme une 2016 2325 |Extrame |No 31/25 High
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Fotertial financial impact of changing guidelines from
Financizl fehe niatura| Disaster Reliet Funding arrangemente 21/25 Hign rcne 21/25 |High Yeu 31425 High
I ouncil staff - Incarect or lack of use of radio M onitaring
i-equancy by Council staff - leading to collision of investigation of bresches and reporting to
Public Liakility pircraft - damage and injury 24/35 [xtreme JaTsn 24/25 |[wtreme |No [22/25 High
M aintenance programme of pool
ignage
inspactions and water testing
Juustralian Standards complance
Safoty concerns with respact 1o Caravan Park Focl acjacent 1o office
[WHS Evvim ming Mool 25/25 Extreme l'encing and anti-slip paving 22/25 |High No 22/ 25 High
WHS Syslem
Fires as a result of slashirg on road [EOPS/5WMS
Sublic Liability o egguns/ i nchon s e chuse s 25/35 Exi rurrm P PE 2275 |High Now 12/75 High
[ccreening at weigh-bridge
s e tions
<pecific location
HAZMAT - speific lncalion
HAZMAT (asbestos) exposures when delivered by Iraining of staff
WHS rustomens 1o Waste Depot 22/25 High WHS Syslem 2325 |High Ny 22/25 High
NHS System
Mersonal Safety - site visits - working within the road "'PE
[WHS network 15/35 Extrome [SOPS & SWIMS complatad by June 2015 2225 |High No 12/ High
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’ REPORT: INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEW PLAN -
\ EVENTS MANAGEMENT PROCESS
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Internal Auditor

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 23 August 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/1338

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council events management process includes events hosted by the Council and events
facilitated by the Council but hosted by third party organisations. The Council Marketing,
Events and Partnerships Team is responsible for sourcing events which promote economic
activity in the local government area. The team is also responsible for facilitating the hosting
of events by third party organisers. The role of the Marketing, Events and Partnerships Team
is mainly that of a facilitator and the host is responsible for the task of administering detailed
requirements for hosting the events. Where the event is hosted by a third party at a private
location, the risk to Council is generally not significant. Where an event is held at a Council
owned facility, the Council is liable for risks such as the security of the facility and public
liability. In addition, events hosted by the Council also expose the Council to financial risks
where there is a limited budget to fund the event. In all cases, the Council might also be
exposed to reputation risks depending on the outcome of the event.

The Council Marketing, Events and Partnerships Team does not host any event. The events
hosted by Council are coordinated and managed by the Council Branch responsible for the
asset where the event is hosted. The Council Branches where most of the Council hosted
events are managed are shown in the table included in Appendix 1.

No risk issues of concern arising from an assessment of the progress reports on each of the
key performance indicators and the related budget variances came to the attention of the
Internal Auditor. This report recommends that the Chief Executive Officer and the Audit and
Risk Management Committee approve that the audit of events management processes
across the Council be considered complete on the basis of the Internal Auditor’s preliminary
findings and opinion regarding the risk management environment.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The strategic objective of the Council’s internal audit function is to
provide a consultancy service to management which focuses on providing insight on key risk
issues and generating effective solutions to enhance the risk management framework.
Enriched risk management processes improve efficiency and effectiveness in the attainment
of service delivery promises to the Council’s customers.

Integrity: A robust internal audit function supports the integrity of Council within the
community.

One Team: The internal audit function supports cohesion and cooperation to minimise risk
and improve the delivery of services to the community.
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the report of the Internal Auditor dated 23 August
2018 be noted.

Shephard Shambira
Internal Auditor
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REPORT

No risk issues of concern arising from an assessment of the progress reports on each of the
key performance indicators and the related budget variances came to the attention of the
Internal Auditor. This report recommends that the Chief Executive Officer and the Audit and
Risk Management Committee approve that the audit of events management processes across
the Council be considered complete on the basis of the Internal Auditor’s preliminary findings
and opinion regarding the risk management environment. Further details are provided within
the events management process review as attached as Appendix 1.

Appendices:
1l  Events Management process review
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SUBJECT: Internal Audit Review Plan — Events Management Process

TO: The General Manager & The Audit And Risk Management Committee
FROM: Internal Auditor

DATE: 8 May 2018

FILE:

Background

The Council events management process includes events hosted by the Council and events
facilitated by the Council but hosted by third party organisations. The Council Marketing,
Events and Partnerships Team is responsible for sourcing events which promote economic
activity in the local government area. The team is also responsible for facilitating the hosting
of events by third party organisers. The role of the Marketing, Events and Partnerships Team
is mainly that of a facilitator and the host is responsible for the task of administering detailed
requirements for hosting the events. Where the event is hosted by a third party at a private
location, the risk to Council is generally not significant. Where an event is held at a Council
owned facility, the Council is liable for risks such as the security of the facility and public
liability. In addition, events hosted by the Council also expose the Council to financial risks
where there is a limited budget to fund the event. In all cases, the Council might also be
exposed to reputation risks depending on the outcome of the event.

The Internal Auditor was advised that the Council has an arrangement in place to ensure that
the public liability insurance cover for small events is included under the Council’s insurance
policy. Organisers of big events are required to supply evidence of $20 million public
liability insurance cover as a part of the conditions for hosting certain events. An audit of the
risk management framework around this aspect 1s included with the review of the various
business processes where these events are held. For an example, the audit of activities of the
Dubbe Regional Theatre and Convention Centre included an assessment of compliance with
requirements for public liability insurance cover and financial risks.

The Council Marketing, Events and Partmerships Team does not host any event. The events
hosted by Council are coordinated and managed by the Council Branch responsible for the
asset where the event is hosted. The Council Branches where most of the Council hosted
events are managed are shown in the table below.
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Council Marketing department sources events or provides support to organisers seeking to host an event in the local government area.

Events hosted by a third party

Council involvement

e entifies hiring a Council facility to host events

¢ Providing information and checklists
e  Approving event to be hosted on Council facility

s Regulatory function where required

e entities hosting event on private location

e Council provides promoter with general information on requirements and City data

s Regulatory function where required

Events hosted by Council

Council Operations which host events include:

Key event management risk considerations

e Dubbo Regional Theatre and Convention Centre

e Dubbo Aquatic and Leisure Centre

e Old Dubbo Gaol

¢ Western Plains Cultural Centre

¢ Dubbo Showground

¢ Dubbo Visitors Information Centre

e Recreation and Open Space

e Mayoral/Council functions

e Public liability insurance related risks
o Risk of injury and
o risk of destruction of property.

e Financial risk where the Council promotes an event and expects to achieve a surplus, and where
the cost of hosting an event should not exceed the allocated budget vote.

s Reputation risk where any negative attributes of an event might be associated with the Council
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General Event promoter
information, list of liaise th promoter makes
payment and

Event identified/requested requireme cle 0
issued to event Departments to hosts event
promoter fulfill requirements
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The Dubbo Regional Council Operational Plan for 2017-2018 section 5.6 identifies City
Development as a principal activity, supported by the Marketing, Events and Partmerships

Team function. The objective of the function is:

To provide an effective and efficient destination marketing, corporate communications and

destination information services in a professional manner.

The Operational Plan notes that this functional objective is to be achieved through a number
of activities including Events Aitraction, Prometion and Support. The Operational Plan
identifies the following actions and performance targets in respect of Events Aftraction,
Promotion and Support. The table below shows the actions and performance targets/service
levels as set out in the Operational plan and an update provided as at the end of the March

2018 quarter.

attraction activities and
projects as identified in
the Economic
Development — Strategy
and Action Plan.

Actions Performance Progress update — Manager Business
targets/Service Level | Support Comments as at April 2018
Implement event | All idenfified Events | The Event Strategy is to be integrated

projects delivered on
time and budget.

into the Regional Economic

Development Action Plan to be

completed by February 2018.

Actions regarding event development

are continuing to be completed.

e Event Network Meeting held

o 2 event bids submitted

e Targeted marketing campaigh —
conferences

e 37 events provided high level
support

e Stream I of the Event Development
Fund and Major Event Sponsor
Program opened.

e Stream 2 of the Event Development
Fund and Major Event Sponsor
Program resulted in 13 not-for-
profit events sharing $69,700.
These events combined will return
some $4M to the LGA in 2018.

e Bid successfill — 2018 NSW
Aboriginal Rugby League Knockout

Implement event support
and promotion program
mcluding event network
and what’s on activities.

All major Events
across Local
Government  Area
provided with

appropriate level of
support and
promotion.

This is being achieved. Event network
events held and what's on activities
provided weekly.

Tmplement Event funding
program including Event
Development Fund and

All funds provided
by June 2018 in line
with Financial and

This is being achieved.
Opportunities  for assistance under
Stream 1 of the Event Development
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Major Event Sponsor Inkind  Assistance | Fund and Major Event Sponsor Fund
Fund. Policy. remain open.
Stream 2 now closed.

The budget position in respect of the events management aspect of the Council Marketing,
Events and Partnerships Team function is shown in the table below.

Project 2017/2018 Budget | Actuals as at 31 March
Amount

Events Attraction $10,000 52,388

Event Development Stream 1 $17.,500 $10,340

Event Development Stream 2 530,000 525,000

Major Events Sponsorship Stream 1 | $25,000 $9.586

Major Events Sponsorship Stream 2 | $60,000 $35,700

Travel & Sustenance $2,000 0

Dream Festival $40,000 $40,000

TOTAL $184,500 $123,014

An overall favourable budget variance of 8% does not appear to be material in the scheme of
Council operations.

The Operational Plan 2017-2018 also includes key performance indicators regarding the
“number of event bids submitted/supported”, and “number of events assisted”. The “number
of event bids submitted/supported™ indicates events that have been approached in order to
attract them to Dubbo (not events that approach us year on vear). The “number of events
assisted” refers to events provided support via marketing, promotion, tool kit resources,
funding ete. The table below sumimarises the relevant statistics.

Workload Prev. | Est.| YTD
Number of event bids 6 6 6
submitted/supported

Number of events assisted 50 50 38
Risk Considerations

The key risk considerations with the events management process include the following:
1. Council rights and obligations.

a. Ensuring that Council organised events comply with all the necessary requirements.
b. Ensuring that third party events receiving Council donations satisfy set criteria.

c¢. Ensuring that events orgamised or hosted by the Council are covered by appropriate
public liability insurance and or other general insurance cover as necessary for each
event.
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Accuracy of transaction amounts. Ensuring that the amounts paid are correct and
accurate.

3. Compliance with legislative requirements

a. For an example, ensuring that events which require Council regulatory approval are
identified and assessed as appropriate.

b. Ensuring that event organisers are informed and set to comply with traffic
management, alcohol control, public health requirements and other risk management
considerations.

¢. Public liability obligations

4. Ensuring that the Council infrastructure and facilities utilised in hosting events is
safeguarded and protected.

5. Ensuring that events associated with the Council are properly run to ensure that the
Council’s reputation is safeguarded.

Preliminary Findings

The Operational Plan key performance indicators and strategic objectives for the events
management process are shown above. No risk issues of concern arising from an assessment
of the progress reports on each of the key performance indicators and the related budget
variances came to the attention of the Internal Auditor.

Recommendation

That the Chief Executive Officer and the Audit & Risk Management Committee approve that
the andit of events management processes across the Council be considered complete on the
basis of the Imternal Auditor’s preliminary findings and opinion regarding the risk
management environment.

Shephard Shambira
Internal Auditor
ss

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 32

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 51




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 05/09/2018 ITEM NO: EDBC18/48

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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' REPORT: ARMC Action List as at
\ September 2018

DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Executive Manager Governance and
COUNCIL Internal Control
REPORT DATE: 27 August 2018

TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/1341

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) of Dubbo Regional Council requires
monitoring implementation of its resolutions and agreed action plans. The Committee is
required to be updated with details of implementation of recommendations and action plans
arising from internal audit reviews and other activities initiated or considered by the
Committee. Where action is deferred to a future date, the item is listed on the ARMC Action
List until it has been resolved.

The ARMC Action List is in three parts. The first part shows a list of regular reports to the
Committee. These are reports which the Committee require on an on-going basis. This can
be once a year or once every quarter. There is no fixed completion date for such items. The
second class of action items relate to action items which arise from Committee requests
which have a set completion date. The third class of items relates to actions arising from
internal audit review reports. Agreed management action plans in response to internal audit
recommendations and findings are included on the ARMC Action List and deleted once the
Committee has been provided with assurance that the issue has been resolved.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The strategic objective of the Council’s internal audit function is to
provide a consultancy service to management which focuses on providing insight on key risk
issues and generating effective solutions to enhance the risk management framework.
Enriched risk management processes improve efficiency and effectiveness in the attainment
of service delivery promises to the Council’s customers.

Integrity: A robust internal audit function supports the integrity of Council within the
community.

One Team: The internal audit function supports cohesion and cooperation to minimise risk
and improve the delivery of services to the community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising from this report.
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POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the information contained in the report of the Executive Manager Governance
and Internal Control dated 27 August 2018 be noted.
2.  That all items marked as completed be deleted from the list.

Michael Ferguson
Executive Manager Governance and Internal Control
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BACKGROUND

Where an issue has been raised by the Committee or through findings of the Internal Auditor
or other assurance service providers providing information to the ARMC, it is important for
the Committee to be advised of the action taken to resolve such matters. The ARMC Action
List is a tool which enables the Committee to monitor the progress of implementation of the
recommendations and in ensuring that outstanding matters are resolved satisfactorily.
REPORT

The detailed ARMC Action List as at September 2018 is attached (Appendix 1) to this report.
SUMMARY

Refer to Appendix 1 for a summary of the action plans and related progress reports.

Appendices:
11  ARMC Action List as at September 2018
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REPORT
Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) Action List as at September 2018.

1. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - REGULAR REPORTS

Committee in respect of
dates for meetings of
the Committee in

Action item reference Nature of outstanding Responsibility Target Completion Date Comment/Status report
number and date action/information/ as at September 2018
initiated report
Action item 2014- That the Chief Executive Chief Executive Correspondence close Proposed schedule:
317/10/14 Officer be requested Officer/ ARMC off Special meeting to
liaise with the Chairman Chairperson To be advised by March | consider 2017 Financial
Audit and Risk 2018. Statements 19 February
Management 2018

13 March 2018 —11am
15 June 2018 — 11am
7 September 2018 — 11am

Australia Audit
Committee members
training course be
offered to all members
of the BOD Alliance
Audit and Risk
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March/ June/ August/ 14 December 2018 —
October 2018. 11am
Action item 2014-05 That the Institute of Chief Executive Officer | Ongoing Internal Auditor attended
6/6/14 Internal Auditors of the Local Government

Internal Audit Conference
in November 2017. Future
opportunities will be
identified and advised to
members.
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Action item reference Nature of outstanding Responsibility Target Completion Date Comment/Status report
number and date action/information/ as at September 2018
initiated report

Management

Committees.
Action item 2016- 1. That the committee ARMC Chair On-going Pending assent to new

513/12/16

amend the standing
Agenda template for
the ARMC to align with
the list of key results
areas identified in the
new legislation.

2. Thatin addition to an
Internal Audit
programme, a regular
management reporting
timetable is
established which
ensures that the
Committee considers
information as
necessary to
accomplish its
objectives as stated in
the proposed section
428A of the amended

legislation. Key result
areas for the ARMC are
listed below for the
Committee’s reference.
Related agenda items and
expected delivery dates
are also listed below. A
status report is shown
against each agenda item.
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Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

legislation with no
action to be taken until
section 428(A) comes
into effect.

1.7. Service reviews

ARMC Purpose (As stated in the ARMC Charter)

1.1. Financial reporting process
1.2. Business ethics, policies and practices

1.3. Management and internal controls

1.8. Adoption of the Internal Audit Plan

1.6. Encouraging continuous improvement of Council’s systems and practices

The proposed changes to legislation note that the Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) will be called the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee (ARIC). That the ARMC is an independent advisory Committee assisting the Council to fulfil its risk management,
governance, process improvement and oversight responsibilities. The primary duties and responsibilities of the ARMC are to assist the Council
to discharge its responsibilities relating to:

1.4. Monitoring the integrity of the Council’s financial reporting practices and finance and accounting compliance

1.5. Reviewing internal controls, key corporate risks and all audit related matters

1.9. The Council's process for monitoring compliance with policies, laws and regulations and the Council code of conduct.
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Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

The Committee will achieve the above purpose by reviewing regular reports from internal audit and external auditors. In addition, the
Committee will also consider various reports and presentations from management as stated below.

1)

Compliance

Submit an annual management report to the
Committee which gives assurance that the Council
framework for compliance with major legislative
requirements is in place and operating effectively.
For an example, a management report that all items
listed on the Office of Local Government Calendar
of Compliance were resolved as appropriate.

A bi-annual exceptions report on any areas of major
non-compliance with legislation or policy
requirements binding the Council.

Executive Manager
Governance and Internal
Control

e ARMC Meeting -
September Annually

e ARMC Meeting —
March annually

e No major non-
compliance with
legislation or policy
identified.

Formal reporting format

under development to be

presented in December

2018.

2)

Risk management,

Corporate risks register. This can be a standing item
on the agenda for all meetings. Highlight key
changes as and when there are significant changes to
the corporate risks.

Presentations by divisional directors on key risks
and related risk mitigation strategies for their
divisions. The presentations can be spread
throughout the year such that only one director will
make a presentation at each meeting.

Ad hoc management reports on risk management

Executive Manager
Governance and Internal
Control

e Corporate risk register
to be presented to all
ARMC meetings
including highlights of
any changes to
corporate risks.

e One annual
presentation from each
Divisional Director
highlighting key risks
and risk management

Council has engaged
Jardine Consulting
Services to facilitate the
review of its risk registers.
This is 80% complete with
several high risk functions
remaining including
Wellington Caves and
Bodangora Airstrip. To be
completed by December
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Action item reference Nature of outstanding Responsibility Target Completion Date Comment/Status report
number and date action/information/ as at September 2018
initiated report
framework for selected processes based on feedback framework. 2018
from the Committee arising from consideration of
other information provided to the Committee.
3) Fraud control, Chief Financial Officer/ e ARMC Meeting — Council’s Internal
= Annual review of the fraud management policy Executive Manager June annually Ombudsman has
* Bi-annual review of management feedback on fraud | Governance and Internal | ¢ ARMC Meeting — commenced drafting the
risk management framework. Control November annually Fraud Management Policy
= Management feedback should highlight any based on the model Fraud
sig;giﬁcant inci@enFes. Management Policy
= Major changes in risk profile provided by the Audit
Office. This will be
completed following
recruitment of the
Internal Auditor position
and Risk Advisor.
4) Financial management, Chief Financial Officer Quarterly at each ARMC Meeting schedules to be
= (Consider quarterly budget review reports meeting redefined as new
= Consider quarterly investment reports legislation is enacted.
5) Governance, Executive Manager Once every 3 years Council has engaged
= Review relevant risk registers and consider risk Governance and Internal Ad hoc as the Jardine Consulting
mitigation strategies in place Control governance Services to facilitate the
framework changes. review of its risk registers.
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Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

This is 80% complete with
several high risk functions
remaining including
Wellington Caves and
Bodangora Airstrip. To be
completed by December
2018

6)

Implementation of strategic plan,
Quarterly reporting on performance management
and key performance indicators.

Chief Financial Officer

e Quarterly

Meeting schedules to be
redefined as new
legislation is enacted

7)

Delivery program and strategies,
Quarterly reporting on performance management
and key performance indicators.

Director Planning and
Environment

e Bi-annually

A new Delivery Program
commenced 1 July 2018
for Dubbo Regional
Council as per the
proclamation.

8)

Service reviews,

Ad hoc reports on service delivery reviews and
related risk mitigation or performance improvement
strategies

Transformation Leader

e Adhoc

Through the creation of
the Executive Services
team and recruitment of
the Internal Ombudsman,
a program for service
delivery reviews is
currently under
development.

9)

Collection of performance measurement data by
the council,

Chief Financial Officer

e Half yearly — March
and September

Meeting schedules to be
redefined as new
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Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

= Consider performance measurement reports on a bi-

annual basis and recommend opportunities for
improvement to the framework where necessary.

legislation is enacted.

10) Any other matters prescribed by the regulations.

Ad hoc

On-going

2. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - FIXED COMPLETION DATE

Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

Action item 2013-52
2/03/13

1. Thata quarterly
report on Council
Payments and
Contract Variations be
provided to
subsequent meetings
of the Audit and Risk
Management
Committee

2. With effect from
1/9/2017. That future
reports to the
Committee in respect

Chief Financial Officer

Quarterly

For the 2018 financial
year to 27 August 2018
there were 15 contracts
that have been finalised.
There were 14 contracts
where the original
contract value was
exceeded.
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2. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - FIXED COMPLETION DATE

Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

of contracts where
the original contract
value has been
exceeded contain
advice as to whether
the necessary
variation payment
process has been
followed.

Action Item 2014-1
17/03/14

1. That a status report on
The progress of
implementation of
recommendations of the
ICAC's Operation Jarek be
submitted to the next
meeting of the Audit and
Risk Management
Committee.

2. That recommendations
marked as completed be
deleted from future
reports and a narrative
provided for only those

Chief Financial Officer

On-going

Actions still outstanding
that will be reviewed by
Corporate Procurement
when the team is fully
staffed.

1. That Council develop a
proactive and
comprehensive
supplier engagement
framework.

2. That Council review
which reports are
available to the
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2. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - FIXED COMPLETION DATE

Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

items being updated.

3. Resolved on 13/12/16,
that Action Items
3,4,5,6,12 13 and 14 as
contained in the report,
have been completed and
can be removed from
future reports.

managers of stores and
ensure they can
generate a report
showing the orders
placed by any
individual across all
cost centres.
Action to date: Report
has been created

3. That Council analyse
inventory management
systems with a view to
improving controls
and reducing waste.
Action to date:
Overview of stores is
completed and actions
have commenced

Action Item 2014-6
17/10/14

Council payments and
contracts variations:
1.That future reports with
regard to Council
payments and contract
variations include a

Chief Financial Officer

Quarterly

There was 7 supplier paid
a total of over $150,000
for materials and services
in the 2018 financial year
to date that had no
contract in place.
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2. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - FIXED COMPLETION DATE

Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

breakup by Division of:
Number of creditors paid
$150,000 or more for
materials.

Number of contracts
where original contact
value was exceeded.

2. That a further report be
presented to the Audit
and Risk Management
Committee including
outcomes to address
those creditors identified
as exceeding $150,000 in
a financial year

Action item 2017-
021/06/17

Risk registers

That the Chief Executive
Officer be requested to
prepare a report to the
March 2018 meeting of
the Audit, Risk and
Improvements
Committee regarding the
updated organisation risk

Executive Manager
Governance and Internal
Control

March 2018

Council has engaged
Jardine Consulting
Services to facilitate the
review of its risk registers.
This is 80% complete with
several high risk functions
remaining including
Wellington Caves and
Bodangora Airstrip. To be
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2. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - FIXED COMPLETION DATE

Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

registers.

completed by December
2018

0405/09/17

Wellington Caves

That the Internal Auditor
be requested to further
review cash receipting at
the Wellington Caves
Operations for further
advice to the Chief
Executive Officer and

Manager Visitor
Experiences and Services

Action item 2017- Internal Audit Chief Executive Officer December 2017 The Chief Executive
0205/09/17 Programme That the Officers met in January
Chief Executive Officer be 2018. A joint presentation
requested to hold from the Chief Executive
discussions with the Chief Officers will be presented
Executive Officers of pending the outcomes of
Bathurst Regional and the External Report of the
Orange City Council’s with Internal Audit Quality
a view to increasing the Assurance Review.
level of resources
provided to the internal
audit function.
Action item 2017- Cash Receipting Process — | Internal Auditor/ December 2018 The point of sales system

— Bepoz has now been
implemented and now
operational on site.
Testing continues with
reports, but full day
transactions and banking
now takes place through
system.
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2. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - FIXED COMPLETION DATE

Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

Committee members.

0813/03/18

Management Committee
Charter

That the draft Audit and
Risk Management
Committee Charter as
attached to the report of
the Executive Manager
Governance and Internal
Control dated 23 February
2018 be endorsed noting
an amendment to the

Governance and Internal
Control

Action item 2018- Internal Audit review Chief Financial Officer December 2018 Information Services

0713/03/18 report — Creditors enquiring from Civica the
Transactions future development of
That a report be Accounts Payable
presented to the next Workflow and
Audit and Risk investigating possible
Management Committee enhancements to Invoice
regarding resolving Approval to be
integration issues maintained by the same
between three purchasing platform as On Line
platforms. Requestions.

Action item 2018- Audit & Risk Executive Manager June 2018 Complete
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2. Action/Information/Reports requested by the ARMC - FIXED COMPLETION DATE

Action item reference
number and date
initiated

Nature of outstanding
action/information/
report

Responsibility

Target Completion Date

Comment/Status report
as at September 2018

composition to include

the Mayor as a non-voting
member and submitted to
Council for consideration.

Action item 2018-
0913/03/18

Wellington Caves — Cash
Receipting Process

A further review will take
place once the new Point
of Sale system is installed
and operational with the
Internal Auditor to report
back to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee
highlighting the
improvements achieved.

Internal Auditor/Manager
Visitor Experiences and
Services

December 2018

Target completion date
expected to be met.
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item
reference
number and
date initiated

Issue

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

5.94 Contributions process review

Action Item
2011-02
5/4/2011

Some developer
contribution plans
are overdue for a
review. PRIORITY:
HIGH

Update developer

contributions plans.

December 2014
Original target
date:

June 2012

Director Planning and
Environment

Preliminary report adopted by
Council at the September 2015
meeting. Legislation not yet
resolved. A further report was
tabled to Council in September
2016.

Section 94 Plan for Urban
Roads and Car parking
reviewed however
development of the new Plan
and capital works schedule
delayed pending outcome of
the RMS consideration of
options for a third bridge over
the Macquarie River.

Revised Section 94 Plan for
Open Space and Recreation
Facilities adopted by Council
on 22 June 2016 and
commenced operation on 1
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item
reference
number and
date initiated

Issue

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

July 2016.

Operational Review of Section
64 Policy for Water and Sewer
underway. New Policy will not
be commenced until
2018/2019.

No further progress to date.

Cash Receipting Process
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation
Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018
number and
date initiated
Action Item Wellington Waste | Ensure that 31 October 2017 Manager Business With the appointment of the
2017- Transfer Station revenue receipts Support — Technical new Manager he will embark
0605/9/2017 Revenue receipts summaries are Services on a project to review
summaries supported with a Council’s policies, systems and
submitted to the copy of the relevant procedures at all of Council’s
Financial Services primary receipting Tacilities in relation to
department not system revenue standardise software and cash
supported with reports. taking. Timing wise, this
copies of the projectis likely to commence
primary receipting in the later part of this year,
system reports. probably September 2018
Incomplete banking however there may be some
may go undetected. processes we can consider in
the shorter term to improve
until we can embark on the full
review.
Action Item Wellington Caves; | Recommendation December 2018 Chief Financial Officer | A review is underway.
2017- Wellington Waste | Establish a process
0705/9/2017 Transfer Station, whereby all refund
Whylandra Waste | transactions as per
Depot the bank statement
Potential for are reconciled with
incorrect refunds relevant supporting
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item
reference
number and
date initiated

Issue

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

going undetected.

Comments

Council
procedures do
not allow the
processing of
cash out
transactions at
cash receipting
sites.

Bl Wherea
customer
payment
processed
through the
EFTPOS system
is incorrect it is
expected that a
refund should
be generated as
necessary to
correctany
errors.

documentson a
regular basis —for
all remote
receipting sites
across Council.
Agreed
Management
Action Plan

1. Revenue Officer
currently reconciles
all refund
transactions as per
the bank statement
with relevant
supporting
documentson a
regular basis for all
remote receipting
sites across council
2. Areview of the
automatic card
validation process
to which arefund is
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018

number and
date initiated

Enquiries with processed and

staff who copies of official
process EFTPOS | receipts details of a
transactions refund transaction.
indicated that

refund

transactions do
not necessarily
involve an
automatic
validation of the
details of the
card to which a
refund is
processed. The
details of a
transaction
which may be
the subject of a
refund are
generally based
on copies of
official receipts.
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation
Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018
number and
date initiated
Action Item The use of different | Recommendation 31 December 2017 | Chief Financial Officer | A review is underway with the
2017- stand-alone Evaluate the merits implementation of BEPOZ
0805/9/2017 software systems of introducing a being implemented for the
for different sites standard cash Caves and in the Visitors
across the council receipting software Information Centres (by 1 July
might increase the | package for use at 2018). BEPOZ will be
operational costs stand-alone recommended to other sites
associated with receipting sites requiring updating of Point of
user training, IT across the whole Sales systems. A review of the
support and Council. implementation will be
licencing of Agreed complete after 12 months.
different software Management
systems. Action Plan
Stakeholder
meeting to be held
to discuss possible
actions and
synergies.
Action Item Wellington Caves December 2018 Internal Auditor/ Update will be provided by
2017- Cash Receipting Manager Visitor action date.
0118/12/2017 | Process Review Experiences and
Services
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation
Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018
number and
date initiated
Creditors Transactions
Action item Procurement Ensure that the June 2018 Corporate Review of report requirements
2018- transactions exceptions report Procurement underway.
0113/03/18 approval delegated | showing Specialist
authority limits transactions where
Issue purchase order
No information amounts exceed
came to the the delegated
attention of the authority limit is
Internal Auditor reviewed and
indicating that the | signed off on a
Creditors team regular basis.
regularly reviewed
and signed off on
the exceptions
report highlighting
transactions where
the purchase order
amount is greater
than the delegated
authority limit.
Action item “Self Audit” 1. Ensure thatthe | December 2018 Chief Financial Officer | Review of report requirements
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item
reference
number and
date initiated

Issue

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

2018-
0213/03/18

Exceptions reports
Issues

1)

2)

No evidence
that the
Requisitions and
Quotes Audit
exceptions
report is
reviewed was
sighted during
this review.
The structure of
the Requisitions
and Quotes
Audit
exceptions
report does not
isolate specific
issues in a
manner which
makes it easier
to review
specific

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Requisitions and
Quotes Audit
report is
reviewed by an
appropriate
official on a
regular basis
and document
evidence of
such review and
follow up action
taken.

Consider
breaking down
the current
Requisitions and
Quotes Audit
exceptions
report into
sections
covering the
following
aspects:
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation
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the requisition
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the approved
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Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018
number and
date initiated
potential (a) Transactions
transaction where the
risks. number of
quotations
Implications attached is less
Incorrect than the
transactions may go required based
undetected, which on (i) the
can result in requisition
incorrect payments amount and
and/or a breach of | (b) a separate
the Council section showing
purchasing policy. transactions
based on (ii) the
quotation
amounts.
(c) Transactions
where the
quotation

Page 57



APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 05/09/2018 - REPORTS | | ITEM NO: EDBC18/48

APPENDIX NO: 1 - ARMC ACTION LIST AS AT SEPTEMBER 2018 | l ITEM NO: AUD18/36

Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018

number and
date initiated

delegation for
the officer who
approved the
purchase
requisition is
less than the
guotation
amount.

(d) Transactions
where the
requisition
amountis
greater than the
delegated
authority limit
for the officer
who approved
the transaction.
Considering the
results of the
current internal
audit enquiries,
this report is
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item
reference
number and
date initiated

Issue

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

expected to
show no
transactions.
Yet where there
has been a
manual
intervention to
facilitate the
approval of
unusual
transactions,
such
transactions will
be highlighted
on this report.

Action item
2018-
0313/03/18

Creditors Paid
more than
$150,000 within 2
years

Issue

Breach of tendering
guidelines and

Consider
establishing a
routine review of
transactions with a
cumulative value
exceeding a limit
closer to $150,000,

June 2018

Corporate
Procurement Specialist

Review of report requirements
underway.
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item
reference
number and
date initiated

Issue

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

legislation

and review the
nature of
transactions to
determine whether
competitive
procurement may
be necessary. The
report can be
generated ona 24
months cycle or
other shorter
period as
appropriate to
ensure that
competitive
tendering decisions
can be taken where
necessary.

Action item
2018-
0413/03/18

Purchase Order
and/or Goods
Received Note
amount less than

1. Establish a
regular report
whereby all
transactions for

June 2018

Corporate
Procurement
Specialist

Review of report requirements
underway.
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Issue

Allowing for the
processing of
invoices for which
the transaction
amount exceeds
the approved
purchase order
amount is likely to
result in a breach of
delegated
purchasing
authority limits.

invoice amount
processed is
greater than the
goods received
amount and/or
the purchasing
authority limit.
2. Ensure thatthe
exceptions
report in
recommendatio
n (1) above is
reviewed and
signed off by an
appropriate
official on a
regular basis.

Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018
number and
date initiated
Invoice Amount which the

Action item
2018-
0513/03/18

Vendor account
changes

Issues and
implications

1. Ensure that
evidence of a
review of the
report on

June 2018

Manager Financial
Operations

Action 1 - Review of report
requirements underway.
Action 2 - Follow up phone
calls are made to customers
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item
reference
number and
date initiated

Issue

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

1. Where a record
has been
reviewed but no
notes or
comments are
added to the
record, errors in
such areview
may go
undetected.

2. Where an
existing
supplier’s
details are
amended
without
verifying the
details of the
amendment,
improper
changes to
supplier bank
details may go

amendment of
bank details is
entered in the
notes section of
the record at all
times.

2. Consider
requesting for a
confirmation of
changes to bank
details from
regular
suppliers. For an
example, where
a regular
supplier has
issued a notice
to change bank
details, follow
up the request
with a
telephone
confirmation or

that have requested change of
account details via email
where here is not supporting
Invoice (with account details)
provided separately.
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

recent incident
based on similar
procedures at
Brisbane City
Councilis a
relevant
example of why
it is necessary
to verify
requests to
change bank

known contact
at the supplier,
and record
evidence of
such
confirmation
against the
relevant Council
record.

Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018
number and
date initiated
undetected. A e-mail to a

Sub-delegation of
transaction
approval authority
without a formal

delegations is
required to be
signed off by an
appropriate officer

details for
existing
suppliers.
Action item Online Requisitions | Consider December 2018 Chief Financial Officer | No action to date.
2018- System establishing a
0613/03/18 Issue and procedure whereby
implications the amendment of
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

authority, can
result in a breach of
delegated authority
limits.

delegating their
responsibility.

Action item Issue Agreed Action Target Completion Responsibility | Comment/Status report as at
reference Date May 2018
number and
date initiated
letter confirming other than the
delegation of official sub-

Action item
2018-
0713/03/18

Purchase
Requisition versus
Purchase Order
Amounts

Issues

1. Purchase orders
which are not
approved.

2. Purchase order
values
exceeding
original
purchase
requisition
amounts.

1. Establish a
routine report
highlighting all
purchase orders
and requisitions
pending
approval. Take
corrective
action where
the transactions
have not been
approved after
a set time limit.

2. Establish a
routine report
which highlights
transactions

December 2018

Chief Financial Officer

Review of report requirements
underway.
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Transactions
processed on the
basis of
unapproved
purchase orders
can resultin a
breach of
purchasing policy
provisions such as
delegated authority
limits.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

received note
has been issued
against an
unapproved
purchase order.
Investigate and
take
appropriate
corrective
action on such
transactions.

3. Establish a
routine report
which highlights
transactions
where the
goods received
note value
exceeds the
approved
purchase order
value.
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Internal Audit Recommendations Pending Implementation

Action item Issue
reference
number and
date initiated

Agreed Action

Target Completion
Date

Responsibility

Comment/Status report as at
May 2018

Investigate and
take corrective
action on all
such
transactions.

SUMMARY

The ARMC Action List is as shown in the table above. It is recommended that the information in the report be noted and that the Committee
acknowledges that all items marked as completed be deleted from the list.
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’ REPORT: Response to the Assurance
\ Report from the External Quality
buBRO REGIoNaL  ASSESSMeEnt of the BOD Internal Audit

COUNCIL Unit
AUTHOR: Internal Auditor
REPORT DATE: 20 August 2018

TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/1326

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Internal Auditor’'s opinion is that the overall assessment provided by the external
reviewer shows a generally positive position considering the level of resourcing of the BOD
(Bathurst Orange Dubbo) Internal Audit unit. The consultant’s Assurance report from the
External Quality Assessment of the Internal Audit Unit for the BOD Alliance member Councils,
pages 4 to 13 show that the BOD Internal Audit Unit is assessed as colour code green which is
a good rating. The areas where the consultant assigned a yellow colour code which indicates
that there are opportunities for improvement are mainly areas where the current level of
resourcing cannot be stretched to deliver more. For an example, while several aspects of IT
audit issues have been addressed, IT audit is a specialist area which is constantly evalving
with technological changes. None of the sections assessed were assigned with a red colour
code.

The Internal Auditor notes that in comparison with the findings of a recent Commission of
Enquiry into the banking sector, the BOD Alliance Internal Audit Quality Assurance Review
report highlights some strengths in the Councils’ risk management framework. For an
example, the 3 Councils maintain an Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) Action
List which tracks all recommendations and requests by the Committee to ensure that they
are properly implemented and that any issues are resolved and an update on the resolution
is provided to the Committee. The Commonwealth Bank processes were found to be
inadequate in ensuring that recommendations arising from internal audit reviews were
properly implemented and followed up.

This report provides an explanation on how Council currently deals with some of the issues
raised by the consultant in her recommendations. In some area, it is proposed that Council
introduce additional procedures as suggested by the consultant.

Terms of reference

The BOD Alliance member Councils Audit and Risk Management Committees met at Orange
City Council on 10 August 2018 to review the Assurance report from the External Quality
Assessment of the Internal Audit Unit for the BOD Alliance member Councils. The report is at
Appendix 1. This meeting requested the Internal Auditor to submit a report to each of the 3
Councils” ARMC meetings providing commentary and recommendations on issues raised in
section 3 of the consultant’s report.
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ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The strategic objective of the Council’s internal audit function is to
provide a consultancy service to management which focuses on providing insight on key risk
issues and generating effective solutions to enhance the risk management framework.
Enriched risk management processes improve efficiency and effectiveness in the attainment
of service delivery promises to the Council’s customers.

Integrity: A robust internal audit function supports the integrity of Council within the
community.

One Team: The internal audit function supports cohesion and cooperation to minimise risk
and improve the delivery of services to the community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This report proposes the engagement of external consultants which will require to be
funded. The report also notes that the Council should allocate more resources to the internal
audit function. The amounts relating to these proposals are still to be determined.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the report of the Internal Auditor dated 20 August
2018 be noted.

Shephard Shambira
Internal Auditor
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BACKGROUND

The BOD Alliance member Councils engaged a consultant to carry out a quality assurance
assessment review of the BOD Internal Audit Unit. The assessment provides assurance
regarding the Councils’ internal audit processes, resourcing, quality of work and reporting as
measured against the Institute of Internal Auditors International Professional Practices
Framework and Standards.

REPORT
Responses to Section 3 of the consultant’s report — Opportunities for Improvement

Recommendation 3.1(a) — The internal audit charter should be enhanced to reflect changes
to the “International Professional Practice Framework” Standard 1010.

The mandatory nature of the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing,
the Code of Ethics, the Standards, and the Definition of Internal Auditing must be recognized
in the Internal Audit Charter.

Internal Auditor’s Comment

The Council ARMC Charter is based on the Office of Local Government (OLG) template per
Internal Audit Guidelines issued under section 23A of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW).
These Guidelines are modelled in line with the IPPF framework.

It should be noted that the {ocal Government Act 1993 (NSW) was amended in August 2017
and that while this amendment will only be effective after receiving Royal Assent. The ARMC
Action List has an action item where the Committee resolved that a review of the ARMC
Charter be deferred until after promulgation of updated OLG Internal Audit Guidelines. At this
stage, indications are that the OLG is likely to issue updated Guidelines for implementation
soon after the next Council elections in 2020-2021.

RESPONSE

The Council reviews the Charter annually. The consultant’s recommendation will be
implemented at the next scheduled review of the ARMC Charter and the Internal Audit
Activity Charter.

Recommendation 3.1(b) - Reference to Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AUASB)
Standards should be removed

RESPONSE

The consultant’s comment relates to section 6.12 of the Council’s Internal Audit Activity
Charter. The Internal Audit Activity Charter is a management operational policy which defines
the scope of internal audit and authority of the internal audit function and operational
arrangements. The Council’s Internal Audit Activity Charter is modelled in line with the OLG
template. At page 59 under section 7, the OLG model specifically refers to the AUASB
Standards.
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The Internal Auditor’s interpretation of this clause is that the intention of the OLG Guidelines
is that the internal audit team should observe the same standards of ethical conduct as
stipulated in AUASB Standards, more specifically, AUS110. The preamble to AUS110 clearly
states that AUS110 requires compliance with provisions of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board provisions. The main instrument for providing guidance to
accounting professionals is the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board Standard
—APES5110.

While the consultant is correct to state that the strict interpretation of the construction of
AUS110 is that AUS110 is applicable to external auditors only, the standard provides
extensive guidance on non-assurance engagements and engagements other than statutory
audits. More importantly, an evaluation of the terms of the AUS110 standard and other
Auditing Standards references to ethical guidelines contained in APES110. Provisions of
APES110 under APES200 series and APES300 series, clearly applies to all accounting
professionals including those in business.

In view of the foregoing, it can be extrapolated that the OLG’s intention in mentioning the
AUASB Standards in the Internal Audit Guidelines was to require the application of APES 110,
and any other relevant AUS Standards where relevant.

The Internal Auditor therefore concludes that the impact of adopting the consultant’s
recommendation on this point is not likely to enhance the Council’s governance and risk
management framework.

Internal Auditor’s Recommended Response
That no action be taken in response to this recommendation by the external quality
assurance review consultant.

Recommendation 3.1(c) — The Internal Audit Charter should be reviewed by the Audit
Committee and updated annually.

RESPONSE

Members of the ARMC will be aware that the ARMC Action List includes an item which
requires the annual review of the Charters. That the Committee has a current resolution
requiring that a detailed review of the Charters be deferred pending publication of the OLG’s
updated Internal Audit Guidelines.

ACTION
The Council Governance teams will be advised to ensure that official copies of updated
charters are duly signed.
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Recommendation 3.1(d) - The Charter should include a statement regarding the Quality
Assurance and Improvement Program

RESPONSE
Noted. The Charter will be updated with this information. The clause had been edited out of
previous versions of the Charters over the years.

Recommendation 3.1(e) — Reporting arrangements for Internal Audit should be reviewed

Response:
Noted. The Dubbo Regional Council has reviewed the reporting arrangements for the Internal
Auditor, as previously reported to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Recommendations 3.2 — Information technology audits
RESPONSE
The Chief Executive Officer indicated that additional resourcing will be sourced as required to

facilitate information technology audits. The requirement for IT audits will be informed by
risk assessments.

Recommendations 3.3 — Continuing professional development
RESPONSE
Noted. The current position is that training needs are identified on an annual basis during the

performance appraisal process.

Recommendations 3.4 — Quality assurance and improvement programme

. Ongoing monitoring such as
o Engagement Supervision/Work paper reviews
o Staff Performance reviews
o Annual Performance evaluations of the IA Function
o Actual versus budgeted analysis for each engagement
o Customer feedback surveys for each engagement
o Performance measures (KPIs) for Internal Audit
o Ongoing Professional Development
. Periodic Assessment, an annual self-assessment evaluating
conformance with the internal audit standards. The assessment
is presented to the Audit and Risk Committee for review.

RESPONSE
The points noted above are generally addressed through the Council’'s performance

management system. The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviews and monitors
progress in completion of the internal audit programme on a quarterly basis. In addition, the
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ARMC Chair's annual report includes a commentary regarding the planned reviews and
completed reviews and a discussion around the reasons for any variances.

Customer feedback surveys have not been prepared to date due to time constraints.
Considering the amount of internal audit resources available, a customer survey is an
optional cost which has been avoided.

The independent members of the Committee have provided a limited oversight on the quality
of working papers. The key risk mitigation in place is that the internal audit review reports are
signed off by the responsible divisional directors and managers who ensure that the factual
content of the reports is appropriate. The reports submitted to the Committee are detailed
and comprehensive to enable the Committee to form a view regarding whether the audit
opinions provided are supported with sufficient and competent audit evidence.

The proposed periodic assessment is a desirable quality control tool. However, the Council
should consider the resource implications of this task.

Recommendations 3.5 — Internal audit planning

There is an opportunity to further enhance the internal audit planning process through
increased consultation with management and the development of an integrated audit
universe and risk assurance map.

Comments

The consultant acknowledges that the Council’s internal audit planning process involves
consultation with management. In all cases, the internal audit programme is informed with
contributions and advice from the Executive Team.

The Internal Auditor also consults with the Executive Manager Governance and Internal
Control who is responsible for facilitating risk management processes across Council. The
internal audit programme is informed with outcomes of risk assessments as depicted in
Council’s risk registers.

“Assurance is an objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an
independent assessment on governance, risk management and control processes for the
organisation. An assurance map is a structured means of identifying and mapping the main
sources of assurance in an organisation across the 4 lines of defence and coordinating them to
best effect.”

The Council’s Audit and Risk Management Committee receives regular reports from
management on various aspects of the Council business. This process is aimed at providing
information to the Committee regarding the state of internal controls in various areas of the
Council. The Committee also receives an annual comprehensive report on the state of the
corporate risks register and a management report on results of a comprehensive review of
the operational risks registers. The Council’s risks registers identify the key risks and related

! Assurance mapping: A vital governance and management tool (2018) Institute of Chartered Accountants
England and Wales https://www.icaew.com/technical/audit-and-assurance/assurance/assurance-mapping.
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systems of internal control in place or proposed to mitigate the identified risks. This process
addresses the objectives of an assurance map to a great extent. The quarterly report to the
ARMC includes an update on the internal audit programme status and an Action List which
highlights “Regular management reports and presentations to the ARMC”. The “Regular
management reports and presentations to ARMC” highlight the information which is
considered relevant to the ARMC under the 3 lines of defence model. This addresses an
important aspect of an assurance map. For an example, the aim of assurance mapping is to
identify “assurance gaps”. Therefore, as “Regular management reports and presentations to
ARMC” are considered by the Committee on a quarterly basis, any potential assurance gaps
can be identified and considered as the Committee reviews the internal audit programme on
an on-going basis.

The current approach adopted by Council is that the audit programme is primarily informed
by results of a comprehensive risk assessment framework with detailed risk registers. In
addition, the Internal Auditor consults with the Chief Executive Officer and Management on
additional areas of audit coverage required. The Internal Auditor considers this framewaork to
be the Council’s audit universe.

RESPONSE

It appears that the current framework includes elements of the assurance mapping tool, even
though the information is not formally collated and labelled as an assurance map. The Council
is enjoying the substantial benefits of an assurance mapping process. The Council’s audit
universe is well documented in the form of risk registers and the practice of considering
additional management requirements is deemed to be an effective way of identifying and
prioritising the Council’s audit universe.

Internal Auditor’s Recommendation: Consider engaging a once off consultant to prepare an
assurance map and identify additional procedures which may be required to enhance the
current framework.

Recommendations 3.6 — Internal audit resourcing
RESPONSE
Noted. The Council has already taken a position to address this issue.

Recommendations 3.7 — Internal audit manual

Internal Auditor’s Comments

The consultant’s suggested contents of an internal audit manual is covered in various
documents currently adopted by the Council. For an example, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee Handbook provides a collection of all the relevant documents and
references to best practice in running the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
Council’s internal audit and risk management functions. It is however noted that this
document requires to be updated to incorporate changes which have occurred over the
years.
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RESPONSE
An updated internal audit manual will be prepared in due course after consultations
regarding resource allocation for the task.

Recommendations 3.8 — Engagement planning

Comments

The consultant emphasised the importance of ensuring that the engagement planning
process takes into account the following factors:

. Definition of risk concerns as they relate to each audit objective. At present risks are
defined in a generic manner and not directly linked to objectives.

. Reconfirmation of audit budget
. Data analytics

. Subject matter expertise

. Fraud considerations.
RESPONSE

The above information is currently considered during engagement planning. The Council
follows a risk based internal audit programme which is informed with a comprehensive suite
of risk registers. Where appropriate and justified by the risk assessments in place, any of the
above matters have been elevated to take a prominent position in internal audit reviews.

The position is that each of the internal audit programme tasks is linked to a specific
corporate risk item. The audit objectives are generally a collection of procedures which
collectively assist in forming an opinion regarding controls in place to mitigate identified
corporate risks.

POINTS FOR DISCUSION

. The ARMC should consider whether they require a more detailed report showing
comprehensive operational details of how the Internal Auditor would have considered
each of the above points.

L] The Committee currently receives an annual report from management regarding the
fraud risk management framework and changes to the fraud risk profile.

Recommendations 3.9 — Internal audit reporting

a) Format of Internal Audit Reports

Whilst they are comprehensive and address all identified issues, the current format of

internal audit reports could be simplified to improve readability. In particular, reports

contain a large amount of background detail, including;

. Detailed descriptions of the testing approach taken.

. Detailed system descriptions.

. Discussion regarding how planning review queries by Audit Committee members
were addressed during the audit.
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Reports also contain detailed descriptions in relation to objectives and testing for which no
exceptions were noted and no action is required. To enhance readability, contemporary
internal audit practice is to report findings in internal audit reports on an exception basis.
In addition, the executive summary for audit reports is presented as a separate document
(covering report) to the detailed findings and whilst it summarises findings and
recommendations it does not identify the risk rating Opportunities for Improvement of
findings. Reporting could be enhanced by reviewing the format of the executive summary
and combining it and the detailed findings into one document.

An example of a contemporary internal audit report format can be provided if required.
Format will also need to be discussed with stakeholders to ensure their needs are met.

RESPONSE

The content of the internal audit reports has been driven by requirements of the Committee.
For an example, the additional information suggested in the Consultant’s Recommendation
number 3.8 above is likely to result in an even bigger documentation of background
information. On this basis, the Internal Auditor is proposing to retain the current format
unless and until the Committee requests otherwise.

b) Risk Rating of Audit Findings

Internal audit report risk ratings are not aligned to align to the BOD Alliance Council’s Risk
Management process. Contemporary internal audit practice is to apply an organisation’s
Risk Management process to establish criticality of audit findings.

Internal Audit should use a risk matrix to grade audit ratings that aligns with the
corporate Risk Management process. This would include defined criteria related to
business risk factors.

RESPONSE

The internal audit programme tasks are aligned with the Council’s corporate risks register.
The link between internal audit review reports and the corporate risks register is therefore
retained through this association of internal audit tasks with the corporate risks register.

The additional grading used is an internal audit opinion regarding the significance of the audit
issues identified. This grading system shows the priority rating for performance improvement
observations raised. The priority rating assigned to deficiencies identified provides guidance
on the internal auditor’s view regarding the urgency required in addressing identified issues.

Therefore, no action is being proposed in response to the consultant’s recommendation.

¢) Agreed Management Actions

Internal Audlit reports contain both recommendations and management responses/actions
to address recommendations. Recent developments in internal audit practice have seen a
move toward the use of agreed management actions to replace the use of
recommendations and management responses.
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Using this approach internal audit will develop proposed management actions which are
discussed with management at the closing/ exit interview and amended as necessary to
take into account business constraints that internal audit may not be aware of.
Timeframes for implementation are also agreed at the exist interview. Use of this
approach improves management “buying” into solutions for identified problems and
reduces the likelihood of management disagreement with recommendations. Agreement
of the actions and implementation timeframes at exit interview stage also reduces the
| timeline for the issue of internal audit reports.

RESPONSE

The Audit and Risk Management Committee members of the BOD Alliance member councils
at their meeting of 10 August 2018 agreed that the current report format is preferable.
Therefore, no change to the existing report format will be required as a result of the

consultant’s recommendation.

d) Audit Report Opinion and Conclusion

Audit reports do not contain an overall opinion or conclusion aligned to audit objectives.
Standard 2450 requires that when an overall opinion is issued, it must consider the
expectations of senior management, the Board, and other stakeholders and must be
supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant, and useful information.

An overall opinion can provide either positive or negative assurance in relation to the audit
objectives. The use of negative assurance opinions is however discouraged as their value
to management is limited.

An example of a positive opinion could be;

Based on the work performed, there are some weaknesses in the design and application of
controls and/or opportunities to increase efficiencies in XXX, impacting the achievement of
the audit objectives identified in Appendix A. In particular, improvements are required to
ensure achievement of the following objectives;
e Objective 1

_® Objective 2

RESPONSE

The current format of the internal audit reports is that an executive summary is provided in
addition to a detailed report of findings and recommendations. The Internal Auditor

considers this executive summary to be the overall opinion and conclusion.

The Internal Auditor requires further guidance from the Audit and Risk Management

Committee regarding any further changes to the report.
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e) Positive Reporting

Internal audit reports prepared at the end of each internal audit engagement do not
generally include positive comments to provide balanced reporting. The Internal Audit
Standards encourage acknowledgement of satisfactory performance in audit reports.

It can also have a positive influence on the relationship between Internal Audit and the
people audited.

RESPONSE

The Internal Auditor generally focuses on providing commentary which is supported with
sufficient and competent audit evidence, but within the limits of set audit objectives. The
reports show whether the audit objective was achieved or not. In addition, the reports
include an audit opinion and details of test samples assessed to inform the audit opinion.
Where an audit test shows that systems of internal control are in place and working properly,
this fact is reported as such. There are generally 2 possible outcomes in a test of controls. A
pass or a fail. In an audit of operational issues for an example, the internal audit reports show
the number of audit test items considered and the proportion of exceptions noted. Where no
exceptions have been noted these statistics testify a positive outcome.

The Internal Auditor takes note of the consultant’s comment but is not proposing to change
the current format of the report to provide additional commentary where the test results do
not highlight exceptions.

f) Internal Audit Annual Report

Internal Audit could consider an annual report each year to summarise its work and
achievements for the year, and to demonstrate the value it has delivered. There is a trend
for annual reports to capture details on Internal Audit activities and achievements to be
presented to the Audit Committee and Executive Management.

An Annual Report showcases the Internal Audit contribution over the previous year and
features the capability of personnel. It also provides trends, analysis, and commentary on
themes. It reports where systemic issues were identified and highlighted. By doing so, it
helps to enhance Internal Audit credibility by drawing the ‘whole story’ together.

This document would be in addition to and assist in informing the content of the Audit and
Risk Committee annual report.

RESPONSE

The Committee receives an annual ARMC Chair’s report which includes information
suggested by the consultant. The Internal Auditor supplies the information highlighted by the
consultant to the ARMC Chair as required for the Chair’s report. This process ensures that the
internal audit function’s assessment and reporting on its annual activities is reviewed and
authenticated by an independent person.
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It is recommended that no action be taken in response to this this recommendation by the
consultant.

SUMMARY
This report provides an explanation on how Council currently deals with some of the issues

raised by the consultant in her recommendations. In some areas, it is proposed that Council
introduce additional procedures as suggested by the consultant.

Appendices:
1]l  External Quality Assurance Report BOD Alliance Internal Audit Unit
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT BOD ALLIANCE ITEM NO: AUD18/37

INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT

OCM

Bathurst, Orange &
Dubbo Councils

External Quality Assessment
Internal Audit Unit

July 2018
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O'Connar Marsden

& Assoclates Pty Limited

AN 135 703 92

I eve 3,1 Yerk Stroet

) syaney MSW 2000

The Direcrars of Corporate Services B

Bathurst, Oramee and Dubbo Coumceils 1DD: +61 2 8252 2555
Fi +812

18 Tuly 2018

Dear Sir and Madam,

Re: Assuranee Report from the External Quality Asscssment of the Internal Andit Unic

O'Cennor Marsden and Associates (OCM) were engag
the shared Intemal Audit finetion of the Bathurst, O
55 lhe Inlernal Awdil [unclion’

ed to conduct an external quality assessment (CQA) of
nege and Dubbo (BOD) Alliance. The purpose of the
5 nformanee o the Instilule of Internal Auditors
onal Practices Iramewetk and Standards.

assessmenl was (o
International Prof

The asscssment was completed in March 2018 with final feedback reccived from each Couneil in Taly 2018

he final report from our assessment is attached for y

Should you require amy Lrther miormalion or wish o elarily any matlers i relabion (o he conlents ol he
repart, please do not hesitate to contact me on Y252 2565,

Y ours sincerely

Pamela Robertson-Gregg
Director
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Executive Summary

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Introduction

O'Connor Marsden and Associates (OCM) were engaged to conduct an extermal quality assessment (EQA) of
the shared Tntemal Andit [metion of the Balhursl, Orange & Dubbo Couneil Alliance (BOD Alliance). The
purpose of the assessment was to assess the Intermal Andit function's conformance to the Institute of Internal
Auditors (ILA) Intemational Professicnal Practices Framework (IPPT) and Standards (the Standards).

Further information in relation to the extent of the procadures performed and the scope of owr engagemen
detailed in Appendix A and the Inherent Limitations and Restrictions of Use Statement in Appendix E.

1.2 Background

The BOD Allisnce have a shared mlerpal audil serviee provided by an inhouse slall member employed Ty
Orange Council. Internal Audit develops a three year risk=based Internal Audit Plan for each Conneil. The
number of audits conducted for each Couneil varies however total audit days for each Council is 50.

The Audil Commitlees ol the BOD Alliance Couneils requesied mn independent Qualily Assessimenl ol the
Internal Audit function. This Quality Assessment satisfies the requirements of the Internal Audit Standards.

The standards applied 1o Internal Audil are the ‘[nlemalional Slandards lor the Prolessional Praclice ol Internal
Auditing” (Standards ), contained in the *International Professicnal Practices Framework™ (IPPF) issued by the
Institute of Internal Auditers (ILA) internationally.

1he Standards require Internal Andit functions to develop and maintain & Quality Assurance and lmprovement
Program, which includes a periodic independent Quality Assessment of Intemal Audit at least once every 5
years

1.3 Assessment of the BOD Internal Audit Function

In conducting the Quality Assessment, we assessed the BOD Intemnal Audit Function against a range of
measurss. These are summarised in the following tables. The assessments have been rated according to the
following legend:

Geoerally conlorms with

» Internal Audit good practice OR

= The Tnlermahonal Stan: Iior (he Professumal Praches of Tnlernal Awhbtng

Partially conforms with:

 Tutemal Audil puod prachee OR

» ‘The International $tandzrds for the Professional Practice of Internal Audinng
Does net conform with:

= Internal Audil guod pracice OR
= The International 5tandards for the Professional Prachice of loternal Auditing

Relerences conlained m (he Lables are w opportunities for improvement identilied in Section 2 ol ihi
‘Lhese opportunities have been classified as either stratepic or process improvement.
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INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT

Executive Summary

1.3.1 Assessment against the Quality Assessment Objectives

OCN [oumd (hal, al the hme [he Qualily Assessmenl was perlormed, Tnlermal Andil 15 performmng
satistactorily, with some opportunities for improvement. Assessient against the Quality Assessment
objectives is shown below

Conformance of Internal Audit services with mandatory requirements of the
‘International Professicnal Practice Framework” (IPPF) issued by the Institute of
Tnlernal Auditors, ineluding, the “Tnlernational & landards Tor The Prolessional
Practice of Internal Auditing’

Ixpectations of Intemal Audit services expressed by the General Managers, Audit
and Risk Commirtee, and Exeenutive Management, and whether these are being
mel

Effectiveness of the approach and methodology adopted by the Internal Auditor in
the conduct of reviews undertaken in the review period.

Whether Intemal Audit operations represents conterporary good practice,

Assessment of skills, knowledge and experience eapability within Infernal Aundit

Whether Intemal Andit adds valoe and contmibutes o improving business
operations

1.3.2 Assessment against the Internal Audil Core Prineiples

The “International Profess

nal Practices Framework” issued by the Institute of Infernal Auditors prescribes

10 Core Prineiples for Intermal Audit funchions. We assessad BOID Internal Audit as:

Core Principles

Demonsirales inlegrily.

Demonstrates competence and due professional eare.

3 Ts ohjective and free from undue influence (independent)
4 Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the crganisation
5 Is appropriatelv positioned and adequately resourced.
Page 5
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Core Principles

Demonstrates quality and eontimions improvement.

Executive Summary

7 Commumicales elleclively
g Provides risk-based assunmce

9 1z insightful. proactive, and fuhwe-focused.

1o Promotes erganizational improvement

1.3.3 Asscssment against the attributes of effeetive Internal Audit

We reviewed Tnlernal Andil againsi sliributes ol eTective Infernal Audil pronoumeed by the TIA inils CROK

repart

Altriboutes

1 Operates from a elear, updated lnternal Audit Charter.

Assessment

Onporunity
for mprovement 1.1

Adapts its activities to the needs of the organisation.

Ogporuny

for mprovemend 3.1

3 Uses arisk-based approach

4 Repaoris directly lo the Awiil Commmnillee

5 Enjoys full support of the Andit Committee and management

I Maintains open communication with the Audit Committee and management

1las “clout’ within the Txecutive ranks.

o

Ingenders respect and integrity threughout the organisation.

o Teams with other inrernal and cxtemal resources, as appropriatc.

10 | Provides leadership on issues of internal control. fravd. financial repeorting, risk
[];HT!HIH_E'IZLHLL el corpor ale BOVEITIANCE.

11 | Leverages rechnology

Ogporunity
for mprovement
E13

12 Deploys hest-available methodologies
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Attributes

Engages contimious education and staff development.

Executive Summary

BEL T

14 | Consistently re-evaluates its performance.

Onparunty
for mprovement 3¢

s Provides support to the organisation's anti-frand programs.

1.3 4 Assessment against the Internal Audit Standards

There is general confonmance to the Standards and the 1A Code of Ethics, with three overall standards
identified as partial conformance. Oppertunities for improvement were noted in relation o other standards and

these have been identificd below

The overall ass

ment against the overarching Standards is:

Standards

Attribute Standards

1000 Purpose, Authanty and Responsibality
1100 Indepzndence and Objectiity

1130 | Tmpewment o Tndependenee ar Objertnaty

1200 Profieicney and Due Professional Care

1300 Quality Assuranes and Improvement Program

Cpporn ty for marovement
pil

‘Opporiunty for marevemant
34

Performance Standards

2000 Manzgmg Lbe Internal Audil Activily

Walurs ol Work

2200 Engapement Flanning
2300 . Performing the Enpagement
2400 Communicating Results
2500 Momtenng Progress

2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risk

Code of Ethics

Code of Fihies
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Executive Summary
For delailed assessmenl against (he Standards please see Section 2
1.4 Opportunitics for Improvement

The following epportunities for improvement have been identified, please refer to Section 3 for more detail:

1. Infernal Audit Charters
a. The Internal Audit Charter could be enbanced to reflect recent TPPF changes
b Relerence to Audiling and Assurance Slandards Board (AUASE) Slandards should be removed
¢. The Internal Audit Charter should be reviewed by the Audit Committee and updated annually.
d. The Internal Aauvdit Charter should include a statement regarding the Quality Assurance and
Improvement Program.
e, Reporting arrangements for Internal Aundit shonld be reviewed
2. An approprate means of resowreing Information Technology audits should be determined as a matter of
priority
Further prolessional development could be considered [or (he Internal Awditor o keep thern up-lo-dale
with contemporary and emerging internal audir practice.
4. A Quality Assuranec and Improvement Prozram should be developed and ineluded in the Internal Aundit
Manual.
£ There is an epporfunity to finther enhance the inremal audit planming process threugh increased
consultation with management and the development of an inteprated audit universe and risk assurance
map.
6. There is an epporamity (o review Tniernal Andit Resoureing across (he (hree Councils o ensure (hal
internal audit coverage is commensurate with the risk profile and operations of each Couneil.
Ann internal andit roamul should be developed

a

7.
5. There are oppermunities to enhance Internal Audit engagement planning.
9. There arc opperumilics (o cohanee intemal audil reporling Lo stakeholders specifically o e gard o
a. Format of Internal Audit Reports
b, Risk Raling ol Audil Findings
c.  Agreed Management Actions
d. Audit Report Opinion and Conclusion
e Positive Reporting
f Intemal Audit Annual Report

1.5 Matters for Consideration

‘The Audit and Risk Comumittee Charter of each Council within the BOD Alliance contains the following
statement [Section 3.2) regarding composition of the Committee:
The ARMC wili consist of -

Core Memibers rvonng)

& Mavor of the day (or a Councillor nominated by the Mayor as his‘ier representaiive)

+  Cne Councifior

o Twa independent external menbers (nof members af Counctl and one o be Chairperson)
The Local Government Internal Audit guidelines recorumend that the Mayor is not a voting member of the
Audit and Risk Committec. This is supported by corporate governance berter practice which states that:

*  Board Chairs (to which a Mayor may be equared) should not, as a general rule. be a voting member of

an Audit Comimnittee although they may attend in a non-voting capacity.
+  Audif Committee membership should be hased on the skills and experience necessary to discharge the

responsibibities al the commillee nol by virlue ol position.
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Executive Summary

Whilst il was nol directly wilhin the scope ol (his review, the Councils within the BOD alliance may wish (o
consider amending Audit Committes membership requirements to align with better practice

1.6 Acknowledgement

We wish totake this opportuniry to thank BOD Alliance Couneils and personnel (refer Appendix B) for their
co-operation amd assistance during our review.

1.7 Conclusion

The maturity of the internal audit function was assessed against the IIA’s Maturity Matrix, which assesses
inrernal audit functions aeross the Standards. (Refer Appendix D for detailed assessment)

Our assessment concluded that Internal Audit is operating satisfactorily with some epportunities to enhance
the valve prepesition provided to each Council Those opportunities are outlined in this repert
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Detailed Assessment against the Standards

2 Detailed Assessment against the Standards

Partially

Attribute Standards Conforms

1000 — Purpose, Authority, and Responsibility (Internal Aundit Charter)

Upporunity for

1010 — Recogmsing Mandatory Guidance i (he Tnlernal Audil Charler erowe 31

1100 — Independence and Objectivity -

1110 Orzanisarional Independence

Opporunity for
mprovement 3.9e

1111 — Direet interaction with the Board/ Audit Committes

1112 — Chief Audit Executive Roles beyond Internal Auditing

1120 — Individual Objectivity

1130 — Impairment to Independence and Ohjectivity

1200 — Proficiency and Due Professional Care

Opparunity for

1210 Proficiency mprovement 3.2
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Detailed Assessment against the Standards

Partially

Artribute Standards
€ St ‘ Conforms

1220 — Due Professional Care

1230 — Conlinuing Prolessional Developinen!

1300 — Quuality Assurance and Improvement Program

Cipporunity for

1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Program rprevement 3.4

Ohpparunity for

1311 Intemal Assessments mprovemend 3.4

1312 — External Asscsaments 2018 Quality Asscssment makes this conforming

1320 — Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement Program ?:;;Em?;.:i
1321 — Use of “Conlorms with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing™
1322 — Disclosure of Non-conformance
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Detailed Assessment against the Standards

Partially

Performance Standards
Conforms

2000 — Managing the Internal Andit Activity -

2010 — Planning

2020 Communication and Approval

2030 — Resource Management ﬁm::ﬁn;s

2040 — Policies and Procedures ﬁﬁmﬁ ;7

2050 Coordination and Reliance

2060 — Reporting to the Semor Management and the Board

2070 — Fxternal Serviee Provider and Organisarional Responsibility for Tnternal Auditing

2100 — Nuture of Work

2110 — Governance fﬂx:‘ﬂ,‘:”;,

2120 — Risk Management
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Detailed Assessment against the Standards

Partially

Performance Standards
Conforms

2130 — Control

2200 — Engagemenl Planning

2201 Planning Considerations

2210 — Iingagement Objectives

2220 — Engagemenl Scope

2230 — Engagement Resource Allocation

2240 — Engagement Work Program

2300 Performing the Engngement

2310 — Identifying Information

2320 — Analysis and Evaluation

2330 — Documenting Information

2340 — Engagemenl Supervision
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Detailed Assessment against the Standards

Partially

Performance Standards
Conforms

2400 — Commmunicating Results

2410 — Crileria [or Conmmmicaling

2420 Quality of Communications

2421 — Errors and Onmussions

2430 — Use of “Conducted in conformance with the Internaticnal Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Audiring™

2431 — I'ngagement Disclosure of Non—canformance

2440 — Dissenunaling Resulls

2450 — Overall Opinions hn;immrgﬂkgg

2500 — Monitoring Progress

2600 — Communicaring the Acceptance of Risks
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3 Opportunities for
Improvement

The observations below apply across all three Councils unless specifically stated
3.1 Internal Audit Charters
a) The Internal Audit Charter could be enhanced to reflect recent IPFT changes.

The Intemnal Audit Charter has not been updated to reflect recent changes to the ‘Intemnational Professicnal
Practices Framework' Standard 1010

The mandatory nature of the Core Principles for the Frofessional Praciice of internal Auditing, the Code of
Ethics, the Standareds, and the Defimitian of niemal Auditing must be vecognized in the Imernal Audit Charter

The 1A model Internal Audit Charter suggests the following wording;

The mtemal audit (departmentacnvinyg wiil govern ircelf by adherence to ihe mandatary elemenis of The
Instrtuie af internal Auditors’ Internatwnal Professwanal Pr v Framewark, moluding the Core Prineiples
Jor the Professional Practice of Iniernal Auditing. the Code of Ethics. the International Standards for the
Frofessianal Practice of Internal Audiiing, and rhe Definiiion of Internal Audining. The chief audit execurive
will repar! peniodicalh to sersor masagemen! ond the | hoodaudil commitieeSupenvisery commilieef
regarding the mternal audit [deparment'activity] ‘s conformance to the Cade of Ethics and the Standards.

shonld be removed

) Relerence o A ng and Assurance Standards Bowrd (ATTASB) Stan

The standards [or intemal auditing are e Tolernaticnal Standards Lor the Prolessional Practice of Internal
Auditing” issued by the Institite of Internal Andirars.

The Internal Audit Charter states that, in addition to compliance with Internal Andir Standards, internal andit
operations should comply with the Standards and Code of kFthics issued by the ALUASH. The AUASH is
responsible for developing and issuing standards applicatle to extemal andit engagements. AUASD standards
arc not relevant to internal audiring

¢} The Internal Audit Charter should be reviewed by the Audit Committee and updated annually.

Bathurst Council

The Charler menlions periodic review by Tnlemal Andit bul does nol specily that (he Charler should be
reviewed and approved by the Audit Comumittee. We note that the charter is reviewed ammally and approved
by the Committze however that is not evident as the Charter does not contain the latest revizw date and is not
signed.

Orange Council

The charler provided conlans provision for Audil Commmillee approval. We note thal the charler is reviewed
annually and approved by the Commuttee however that 1s not evidznt as the Charter does not contain the latest
review date (it is dated Seprember 2015) and is not signed

Dubho Council

The charter provided contains provision for Audit Commirtee approval. We nore that the charfer is reviewed
ammually and approved by (he Cormmillee however thal is nol eviden| as the as the Charler does nol contam (he
latest review date (it is dated July 2012} and is not signed.
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) The Charler sh
Program

ild include & stalement regs

ding the Qualily Assurance and Tmprovement

‘The Interpal Audit Charter does not include a reference to the mamtenance and operation of a Quality
Assurance and Improvement Program. The ILA model Internal Audit Charter suggests the follewing werding:

“ihe mternal audit fdepartmentactivityy will mantan @ quality assurance and improvement program that
covers all aspects of the internal audit [deparment/activiy]. The program widl include an evaluation af the
internal mudif [deparimentiaciivitv) s conformanee with the Siondards and an evoluniion of whelher infernai
auditors apply The i14's Code of Eihics. 1he program will also assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the
mnternal audtt [depariment/activity] and 1dentifi opportunittes for improvement. The chtef audit executtve will
communicate to senior managenent and the [board audit conmmittee/supervisary conmiitee] on the mremal
audel [departmeniactoth ] s quelily asswrance and unprovemeni poogram, cfuding results of wilernol
assessmenis (both engoing and pertedic) and external assessments conducted at least ence every five years by

Tm

a gualified, independent assessor ar assessment team fram ouiside fname of organizarion].

€) Reporting arrangements for Internal Audit should be reviewed

Lhe concept of administrative and functional reperting lines is used to protect the independence of Intermal
Audit. The Charter states:

“ . Internal Audht shall have mdependent status within BOD Aihance, and for this purpose shall be
responsible directly through the internal Auditor ro the respective Audir & Risk Management Commitiees and
Ceneval Manager and adm mistramely ta the:

*  Director Corpurate Services & Finonee  Bathurs! Regional Counci?
v Director Corporate Services  Qvange Cily Crneif
*  Directer Corporate Development — Dubbo Regional Council.

We nole thal the Andil & Risk Managemenl Commiliee acls as a lunclionsl reporting line [or the Inlernal
Auditor threugh the review and appreval of the internal audit plan, individual intermal audit planning
documents and review of draft reperts, Whilst review of individual planning decuments and draft reports would
generally nol occur by Audil & Risk Managemenl Comrmilles members, given thal no alther mechamsm is
avallable for quality review of internal audit’s work (i.2. there is only one staff member) this is considered
appropriate.

Ilewever, although the Charter specifies that the reporting line to the respective Directors of Corporate
Services' Development is administrative only, during the assessment, we;

*  TReviewad documentalion mdicating thal the reporting line, particularly al Orange Couneil, 15 [imelional
rather than administrative in nature. This includes siznificant influence on the content of the internal audit
plan, dircetion being provided as to the internal audit approach for cermain cngagements and amending
internal audit reports prior to their issue,

+ Received comments from a variety of stakeholders interviewed indicating that the level of influence
cxereised over infernal audit eperations by the Directors of Corperare Serviees constituted a funetional
rather than an administrative reperting line

Standard 1110.A1 {{rzganisational Independence) requires that the internal andit activity must be free from
interference in determining the scope of internal auditing, perferming work, and communicating results. The
situation deseribed above represents non-eonformance with this standard and threarens the independence of
intemal andit

To cosure compliance with Srandard 1110, the A model inrernal audit charter specifies the following hest
praclice reporiing mgernenls for mlermal audil:

The chief mude! executive will report funchonally io the (board/andi commilleesupervisery commiltee] and
admimsiranvely (i.e. day-lo-day eperaftens) to the {clief executive gfficer].1e establish, maimtaw. and assure
that fmame af organization] s imternal auwdit {department/activity] has sufficient authoriny to fidfill ity duries,
the {hoardairdit conimi ftee superisory cammniiee] wili:

v _Approve the infernal audil [deparfmenUactoviivg s charter.
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& _dpprove the risk-based ternal audir plan.
*  _dpprove the tnternial audit [deparomenracnving s budger and resource plan.
*  Recenve commumcaions from e chef midt! exeruinie on the niecaal audnt [degartmentaotvelyf s

o

peiformance relafive fo its plan and other matiers

s _dpprove decisions regardmg the appornment and removal of the ciief audit executive

& _dpprove the remuneration of the chief audit executive.

& Make appropriate maguiries of management and ihe clhief audit execurive 10 determmne whether there s
.’JJH_H,'N"?I{.'!'F(.'FF.’ SCONE G5 YESIRIITE Jimita fions.

3.2 Information Technology Audits

An appropriale means of resourcing Tnformation Technology audils shonld be determined as 0 mal ler
of priority.

At present the internal audit plans for all three Councils do not include any information technolegy audits. This
mcludes (bul 15 nol hrmled to) andils such as:

* Il General Control Environment
+ IT Gevernance
+ Digiral Information Sceurity (including Cyber seeurity)

»  Specihic Applicabion Syslems audils

We were advised that in the past reliance had been placed on consulting reports commissioned by the IT
sechons al each Counetl. Owr discussions with relevant slikeholders mdcaled however tal the last ol these
engagements was conumissionasd four te five years age. Given the reliance on technelogy to manage and deliver
services, this 15 a significant area of risk around which no assurance is currently being obtained.

Standard 2110.A2 requires that the internal aundit activity must assess whether the information technology
governance of the organisation supports the organisation’s strategies and objectives.

To addition, Stamdarnd 1210 requires thal inlernal audilors possess the knowledge, skills, and ofher compelencies
needed to perform their individual responsibilities. The internal audit activity collectively must possess or
obtain the knowledge, skills, and cther competencies needad to perform these respensibilities,

Given that the infernal audit unit comprizes one persen. it is not reasonable to expect that they have the
expertise to conduct detailed IT audits and this is recognised in Standard 1210.A3 however Standard 1Z10.A1
requires that in the absenee of such skills infernal audit sheuld abiain competent adviee and assistance.

In considering resowrcing to conduct Information Technology audits, the Councils may wish to censider;

+  Allocating a specifie budget to fund the conduer of IT audits, speeified on the internal audit plan, by an
onisourced provider

*  Paving for the Internal Auditer to undertake the Certified Information Systems Auditor progzram through
ISACA. It should be noted that by obtaining this qualification the Intsrnal Auditor will obtain the skills to
conducted audits of IT govemanec and general conmrols however they still may not obrin the skills
required (o underlake deiailed lechmical TT audils.
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3.3 Continuing Professional Development

Further professional developmenl could be considered for (he Tnternal Auditor (o keep them up-to-dale
wilh contemporary and emerging internal andil praclice.

As part of comfinuing professional development, it is useful for internal audit staff to he exposed to
conlemporary and emerging internal audil practice.

Tt need nar be an expensive exereise, and eould include, for example:

*  Allendanee al seminars condueled by service providers

*  Tresculations by the ITA

* 1LA webinars.

+ Helevant professional development training conrses and conferences.

* Internal audit certifications

We acknowledge that the loternal Auditor makes every effort to undertake contuuing professional
development within the limitations of the budget provided.

3.4 Quality Assurance and Improvement Program

A Qualily Assurance and Tmprovement Pragram shonld be developed and included in the Tnlernal Andii
Manual

Srandard 1300 (incorporating Srandards 1310 1o 1322) require the Chief Andir Exceurive to maintain a quality
issurance and mprovernenl program [or all aspects of the mlernal audil netion. This ineludes mitermnal
(ongoing monitoring and periodic self-assessments) and extemal quality assessments. reporting, stating that
audit work conforms to the Standards and disclosing issues of non-conformance to the Standards

‘Lhe Internal Audit Unit has not cenfonmed o Standard 1311 Internal Assessments, Internal assessments
satisfying the requirements of the standard include;
+  Omgoing menitoring such as

o Engagement Supervision/Work paper reviews

o Staff Performance reviews

evaliuations ol the LA Funch
o Actual versus budgeted analysis for each engagement
o Cuslomer [eedback surveys lor each engagemesnt
o Performance measurss (KPIs) for Internal Audit
o Ongoing Professional Development

»  Periodic Assessment, @

o Anmual Per lonm:

mul sel [Fassessimenl evaluali
The assessment is presented to the Audit and Risk Commitree for review.

2 conlomance with the mlernal audil standards

We acknewledge that given the individual nature of the internal audit unit, workpaper reviews are difficult to
achicve. Atpresent, engagement supervision is effecrively provided by the Audit and Risk Commitree in their
review ol engagement planning docurnents and drall audil reports. This is considered approprizle and should
be included i the QAIP to satisfy engagement supervision requirements.
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3.5 Internal Audit Planning

There is un opporiunity (o further enhance the internal andil pla
wilh management development af am inlegrafed

process (hrough increased
verse nnd risk ass

Standard 2010 requires he Chiel Audil Executive (o establish a risk based plan lo delenmine (he prioribes of
the lnternal Audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals

The inlermal audil plan is developed based on the orgamsational risk regislers ol each Coumeil and (hrough
discussions with some members of management. The linka ge to the organisational sk rezisters has allowed
the plan to evolve to more clearly align to the key risks of each Couneil. Ilowsver, in discussiens with
stakeholders it was noted thal;

+  Risk managemer till maturing across the three Councils and as a result there may be a guestion around
the complerencss of risk registers.

*  Whilsl somne members ol managemenl were provided will the opportunily (o provide mpol o the miermal
aundit plan through discussions with the internal auditor, others indicated that they had not provided input
and had limited visibility of its content. This was particularly the case for those members of management
responsible for more operational arcas of Council's serviees. Increased consultation with management will
potentially allow Intermal Aowdit 1o identily risks, or emerging risks, it have nol been nwded in nsk
registers

#  There was a view amongst some stakeholders that the role of internal audit was enly to previde assurance
arownd [naneial and corporale [unetions and nol over operational areas. To some degree, this is rellecled
in the content of the infemal audit plan

In addition, a detailed audil universe and overla ying sk assurance map has nol been developed to identily and
assess assrance provided over key risks which may further inform the internal andit plan. Internal Andit 1=
only one assurance mechanism in a suite of assurance mechanisms, These are often identified as the *3 Lines
of Defence’, plus exremal assurance mechanisms. Ideally, all review mechanizms shonld be visible to the
General Manager and the Audil and Risk Commillee.

The purpose of an assurance map is T

* Assess assuninee coverage againsl (he key organisalion st legies, risks and assuranes requiremnenls.
»  Fusure thal there 15 a comprehensive nisk and assurance process.

*  Mininuse duplication of effort.

+  Tdenrify assurance gaps.

*  Minimise assurance cost

*  Provide comlonl 1o skakeholders aboul the level ol assurance

* Help to understand where overall nsk and assurance roles and accountabilities reside.

+  Tdenrify skills required to deliver necessary assurance as a guide to resourcing.

Asstrance maps provide comfort that key organisational risks are adequately covered by assurance activities
Implementation of an assurance map conld provide the assurance seught over the financial functions within
the necd for as much inrermal audit coverage, and inerease the internal audit resources available for andits over
key stralegic and operational nsks

Page 19

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 97

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 116




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 05/09/2018 - REPORTS | | ITEM NO: EDBC18/48

APPENDIX NO: 1 - EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT BOD ALLIANCE INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT | ‘ ITEM NO: AUD18/37

Opportunities tor Improvement

3.6 Internal Audit Resourcing

There is an opportunity to review Internal Audit Resourcing across the three Councils to ensure that internal audit coverage is commensurate with the risk
profile and operations of each Council.

Standard 2030 requires (he chiel audil execulive o ensure (bal inlernal audil resvurces are appropuiate, sullicient, and e[fectively deployed Lo achieve the approved
plan.

Al presenl the resowcing of the Internal Audil [unction cousists of 1 stall member across 3 Councils, equaling lo approximalely 60 audil days per Council al a cost of
$56.480 per Council. Whilst lzave requirements elc are considered in calculaling available days, ravel lime between the geographically dispersed Councils 1s nol.

In considering the extenl o[ Inlemal Audil coverage, in Figure 1, we have benchmarked each Council's ‘spend” on Tnternal Audil against data [om two sources. This
was dong lo ascerlain whal could be considered, through benclmarking, (o be a reasonable organisation ' spend” on Inlernal Audil with respecl (o olher organisations.
In Figure Two we have provided a deidenlified analysis of the Internal Audil speud ol eight similar sized NSW Couneils.

Although benchmarking should only be considered as a guide and one factor to be considered when assessing an organisation's overall assurance coverage, based on
the analysis in Figures One and Two il appears (hat the BOD Alliance Councils are spending significantly less than benchmark and less thal other NSW Councils of
sinmlar size. As aresull, Internal audil resources may be msulfcient for auditing the key risks o the Councils, resulting m significanl gaps i the assurance amework.

Figure One
_ _ ) Benchmarked spend on Internal Audit
Source Revenue Spend on Internal Audit : . )
NEW (ovt =.1U4% GAIN = 40
Bathurst Couneil 128,580,000 56,4849 128 580 | 514,320
Orange Council 119,603,000 56,489 119 603 478 412
Dubbe Council 201,796,000 56,459 201,796 807,184

* New South Wales Government Internal Audit Capacity in the NSW Public Sector’, NSW Department of Premier & Cabinet, 2008

** The Instihite of Intemal Auditors Global Audit Information Network (GAIN) — mnder S500 million categary
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Figure Two: NSW Local Government Internal Audit Spend
Conneil A Comneil B Connedl C Council D | Conneil E - Conneil F Connell G Council H
Operating Expenditure $06m $120m $1361m $167m $168m $245m $265m $263m
EFT Internal Audit Staff e 1 1 1.2 4 2 1.5 8
IA Staff Budget-$ 176.000 | 153,000 154,000 217,000 h 400,000 177.000 - 145,000 . 90,000
LA Consultancy Budgel $  [RUGKIY 24,000 109,000 47,300 240.000 40,000 140.000
Toral TA Blll’lgt"f—.‘; ZR2.000 I 177,000 263,000 217,000 h 447 300 417.000 - 1ES5.000 230,000

LA with Risk No Yes No No No No
Management

Responsibility

Dedicated Risk Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Manager/Officer

Non-Audit NA NA Public Officer Privacy Complaints

Responsibilities Public Interest for o Privacy
ser - Commissioner

Disclosures

Officer Rotaring

GIPA Review Assesf;mleu'. .
Submission Review
Panel Independsnt
Chair
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3.7 Internal Audit Manual

An internal andit manual should be developed.

Standard 2040 — Policies and Procedures requires that policies and procedures are developed to guide the
inrernal andit activiry. Whil st the internal auditar docs have some documentation, including remplates. ta zuide
the work el intemal audil, an overarching inlernal suwdit mamal does nol exisl

A table of contents for an internal andit mannal for an inhouse intemal andit funerion is provided helow:
1. Forewaord
2. Inrroduction
2.1.  Definition of Internal Audit
2.2 Purpose ol this Mamual
3. Overview of Internal Audit
31 Management ol Inlemal Audit
3.2, Role, Scope and Objectives of Internal Audit
3.3 Audit and Risk Management Comunittee
34 Taaison wilh Fxlermal Aundit
3.5, Standards and Guiding Prineiples
3.6 Independence, Objectivily amd Flhieal Standards
37  Co-Sourcing — Managing Serviee Providers (If applicable)

4, evelopment of the Internal Audit Plan

»

Audit Approach
5.1.  Overview of the Internal Audit Process for Audit Enga gements
.20 Awdil Management
6. Fngagemenr Planning
6.1, Planning and Research
6.2 Declarslion ol Conllicls of nlerest
€.3.  Scoping and Risk identification
6.4 Sysiem Descriplions and Risk and Conlrol Analysis
6.5 Audit Plan and Program
€.6. Terms of Reference
7. Fieldwork
7.1, Conduct Audit
7.2 Analyse Findmgs and draw conclusions

7.3 QA Review

5. Reperting
21  Exil Iulerview
§.2. Report Finalisation
2.3 Auwdil Fmalisaton
o Trocess for Follow up of Agreed Action Implementation

10, Quality Assurance and Improvement Program
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11 Adrmmisiration
11.1. Staff and Recruitment
112 Stall Development, Professional 1maining and Fducation
113, Performance Review

11.1. Record Retention
3.8 Engagement Planning

There are opportunities to cnhance Infernal Audit engagement planning.

The “Internal Audit Review Plan” produced by the Internal Auditor when planning audit engagements iz
comprehensive however we have neted some opportuniries to enhance the planning process and add further
value (o the Coumeils

Planning for internal audit engagements could mclude:

+ Definition of risk concerns as thev relate to cach audit objective. At present risks are defined in a generic
manner and not directly linked to objectives.

* Reconfirmation of Audit budget — When the anuoal Internal Audit Plan is preparsd. days are estimated to
perfimm cach inlemal audil engagement. I is uselul o the audil budgel to be reconlinmed al the

completion of planning for each engagement. “This allows for early nc
more tine than erigimally anticipated due to issues identified during the planning stage

fication of audits that may take

*  Dalg analylies A secton within the planning template o ensure dala snalylics is considered [or every
andit. Whilst not every engagement will require the use of computerised audit techmques, the Internal
Audit Srandards indicate that due professional care requires the use of such fechniques wherever
approprate.

* Subject matter expertise — A section within the planning template to ensure use of specialist technical
cxperts 15 considered for every audit. Subject matrer experts ( SMEs) with specialist technical kmowledge
can assist in more valug-add from Internal Audit work. SMEs are used in some organisations as guest
auditors to supplement Internal Audit knowledge, subject to independence issues being addressed. Use of
EMFEs has potential Lo provide a more credible and elTective audil reporting ouleome For andils ol iechni cal
argas.

& Traud— A section within the planning template to ensure frand is considered for every andit,

3.9 Internal Audit Reporting

There are opportunities to enhance internal audit reporting to stakeholders.

a) Format of Intcrnal Audit Reports

‘Whilst they are comprehensive and address all identified issues, the current format of internal audit reports

could be simplified fo improve readability. In particular, reparts contain a large ameunt of backeround detail.

mclhudm g:

* Detailed descriptions of the testing approach taken.

& Detailzd system descriptions

+  Discussion regarding how planning review queries by Audit Committes members were addressed during
the anudil.

TReports also conlain delailed deseriptions in relation w objectives and tesling for which ne exceplions were
noted and no action is required To enhance readability, contemporary internal andit practice is to repart
findings in internal audit reperts on an exception basis.

In addition, the executive summary for audit reports is presented as a separate document (cove
the detailed findings and whilst it summarises findings and recommendations it dees not identi

repart) to
v the risk rating
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Opportunities for lmprovement

ol ndings. Reporting could be enhanced by reviewmg the [ommal ol the execulive summiry and combimng 1
and the detailed findings into one docwment.

Amexanmle af a contemporary imlemal audil report [onnal can be provided 1 required. Formal will also need
to be discussed with stakeholders to ensure their needs are met.

) Risk Rating of Andit Findings
Internal audit report risk ratings are net aligned to align to the BOD Alliance Council’s Risk Management
process Contemporary inrernal avdit praetiee is to apply an organisation's Risk Management proccss m
eslablish eriticalily ol audil Mndings.

Internal Andit should usc a risk mamix ro grade audir ratings that alizns with the corporate Risk Management
process. This would inelude defined criteria related to business risk faetors

¢} Agreed Management Actions
Internal Audit reports contain both recommendations and management responses/actions to address

recommendations. Recent developments in internal audit practice have seen a move toward the use of agreed
managemenr actions to replace the use of recommendations and management responses.

Using this approach internal audit will develop propesed management actions which are discussed with
managemenr af the closing’ exit interview and amended as necessary to take into accounr business constraints
thal inlernal audil may nol be aware o) Time frames Tor unplementabion are also agreed al the exisl miendew
Use of this approach improves management “buyin” into solutions for identified problems and reduces the
likelihood of management disagreement with recommendations. Agreement of the actions and implementation
tmnclrames al exil miervicw slage also reduces the helme [or he 1ssue ol mtcmal audil reports.

d) Audit Report Opinion and Conclusion
Aaudil reperts do nol conbain an overall opinion or conclusion aligned to awdil oljectives. Slandand 24350

requires that when an overall opinion is 1ssued, it must consider the expectations of senior management, the
Board, and other stakeholders and must be supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant, and useful information.

An overall opimon can provide either positive or negative asswance w relation to the andit objectives. The use
of negative assurance opinions is howsver discouraged as their value to management is limited,

Am example ol a positive opiiom could be;

Based on the work peifarmed, there are some vweaknesses in the design and applicanon of contrals and‘or
apportuniiies i increse efficiencies in KXY, impacting the arhevement of the audil abjeciives deniified in

Appendix A in particular, improvements ave required to ensure aclevement of the follovwing elyectives.

s Objective |

v Objective 2

¢} FPositive Reporting

Inlemmal audit reports prepared al the end of each internal awdil engagement do nol generally inclhude positive

comments to provide balanced reporting. The Internal Audit Standards enceurage acknowledgement of
satisfactory performance in andic reports.

It can also have a positive influence on the relationship between Internal Audil and the people mudiled

1) Internal Andit Annual Report
Internal Audit could consider an annual report each vear to summarise its work and achievements for the year,

and to demonstrate the valne it has delivered. There 1s a rend for annual reperts to eaprure details on Internal
Audil activibies and achievements Lo be presenled to the Audil Comilles and Fxeculive Managemenl

An Annual Report showeases the Internal Andit contribution over the previcus year and features the capability
of personnel. It also provides trends, analysis, and commenrary on themes. It reports where systemic issues
were identified and highlighted. By doing so, it helps to enhance Internal Andit credibality by drawing the
‘whele story' together.

L his document would be in addition to and assist in informing the content of the Amndit and Risk Committee
amual repert.
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Appendix A: Terms of
Reference

Objectives and scope
The overall ebjeclive ol the Qualily Asscssmnent was Lo provide an independenl assessmenl on the cllectiveness
of the Infzmal Audit function. 1 his inchided asseszment of’

+ Conformance of Internal Audit services with mandatory requirements of the ‘International Professional
Praclice Famewaork' (IPPF) issued by the Institule ol Internal Auditors. including the ‘Inlemational
Standards [or the Prolessions| Practice ol Internal Auditing .

+ Expectations of Internal Audit services expressed by Audit and Risk Committes Members, the General
Managers, Senior Executives and Middle Management, and whether these are being mer.

+ Effectiveness of the approach and methodology adopted by the Internal Auditor in the conduet of reviews
undertaken in the review period

s biffectiveness of the lntemal Audit Plan to address identified risks.
+  The cffectiveness of the stueture of the intemally resourecd internal audit fanetion

»  FEllectiveness ol inlegralion ol TA inlo each Council's govern.

8 Process.
+  Assessment of skills, knowledge and experience within Internal Audit

The scope of the Qualitv Assessment focused onthe Infernal Audit finetion, its operations, and its relationships
with key stakeholders inchiuding the (General Managers, Audit and Risk Committees and Fxecutive
Management

Mcthodology

Our methodology for the review inchuded:

ring and documenting the le
ming an imlermal audil (el

lative, policy and other requirements for establishing and

1 NSW Local Government

+  Reviewing the establishment of the internal audit function within the BOD Alliance, including charter,
organisational structure and resowreing, reporting arrangements and internal audit documentation such as
mamual, lemplales, working papers and reports;

*  Reviewing intemal audil processes mcluding shralegic and ammual plamning, engagemeni plarming, [1eld
wotk, communication, reporting and following up audit recommendations;

+  Discussing the performance of the internal andit funetion with key stakeholders.

+  Assessing the maturity of the University's intemal andit function against the TL4 Maturity Marrix

+ Benchmarking internal audit resoureing against berter practiee benchmarks

»  Assessing Lhe aliniules and perlormance ol the miernal audil lonetion against the TPPF and the Standards

Our [eldwork meluded reviewmg a sample of in-house prepared olernal sudit working papers  [or
conformance against the requirements of the IPPF and the Standards. 1 he sample included intemal audits
conducted at each council

s
Ui
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Appendix B: Personnel who
assisted the review

We wish to take this opporhanity to th

their co-operatien and assistance during the course of our review:

k the BOD Alliance Councils as well as the following personnel for

Shephard Shambira

Intermal Anditor

BOD Alliance

Scoll Maunder

Direcior Communily, Recreation & Cullural Services

Orange City Couneil

Murray Weod

Director Community & Recreation

Dubbo Regional
Council

Michazl Ferguson

Manager Grovernance and Risk Services

Dubbo Regional
Council

Matthew Green

Manager Informarion Services

Dubbo Regional
Counetl

David Shirley

General Manager

Bathurst Regional
Connel

Allan Cattermole

Director Cultural & Community Services

Bathurst Regional
Couneil

Melissa Watkins

IYirector Planning and Environment

Dubbo Regional

Couneil

Craig Giffin Director Corporate Services Dubbo Regional
Couneil

John Walkom Independent Chair Dubbo Regional
Couneil

Phil Burgett

Michelle Catlin

Independent Chair

Tndependent member

Manager Administration & Governance

Orange City Council

Rallursi Regional
Counell

Orange City Council

Tason Cooke

Manager Financial Sarvices

Orange City Couneil

Michae]l McMahen General Manager Dubbo Regional
Couneil

Pat McDonald Manager Information Systems Orange City Council

Nick Redmend Acting Director Corporate & Community Services Orange City Couneil
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Gamry Styles

Crenzral Manaper

Orange City Couneil

Cr Joanne MeRae

Dieputy Maver

Orange City Couneil

Brian [rayer

Manager Govermance

Baltmrst Regional
Couneil

Cr. Reg Kidd

Mayor

Orange Cily Coungil

Darren Sturggiss

Director Engineering Services

Bathurst Regional
Council

David Waddell

Director Development Services

Orange City Council

[an Greenham

Director Lngineering Services

Orange City Council

Cr. Anne Joncs

Councillor

Dubbo Regiomal
Couneil

Tomy Burgoyne

Manager Financial Services

Bathurst Regional
Counetl

Steve Dassett

Community Representative on Audit Committee

Dubbo Regional
Council

Andrew Fletcher

Independent member

Dubbo Reglonal
Council

Andrew Fletcher

Independent Chair

Batlurst Regional
Cemncil

Michacl ONeil

Manager Informarion Services

Bathurst Regional
Counetl

Aaron Jones

Director Corporate Services & Finance

Bathurst Regional
Council

Cr Graeme Hanger

Mayor

Bathurst Regional
Council

Tane Bassinglhwaighle

Manager Financial Services

Dubbo Regional
Cemncil
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Natasha Comber Director Economic Development and Business Dubbo Regional
Counal
Page 17

Page 105




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 05/09/2018

- REPORTS

APPENDIX NO: 1 - EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT BOD ALLIANCE
INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT

Appendix C: Stakehelder Feedback

Appendix C: Stakeholder
Feedback

As an integral part of the Quality Assessment process, the Assessor held discussions with the stakeholders
named in Appendiz B above 1o obrain their feedback on the quality of Internal Audit services provided

The following reflects the theme of comments received in the face to face meefings, thonzh care is needad
not to give too much weight to a particnlar comment withont further investigation

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Inrernal Auditor is professional, has a good business knowledge, a constructive approach an
built good relalionships.

Reporting limes [or the nlermal Audilor o the Dareclors of Corporale Services are more [unchional than
administrative in pature and in some circumstances, this has impacted the ability of internal audit ton
funetion independently.

Intcrnal Andit is currently under-resourced. Additional resourcing would allow internal audit to examine
mare operational areas and to provide governance and contro! advice on projects as requirad.

Internal audit could be given a higher priority waithin the organisation. Education of management and
councillors as lo IA value may be approprate

There is a key person risk in regand (o intemal audit

Breadth of business operations at Council is an issue. Significant areas of the business not getting
attention. Not reasonable to expect that one rescurce is able to be across all areas.

Tnlemnal Aodil reports are thorough and address 1ssues however lenglh and readabilily ol reporls (o users

could be improved

Internal audit reperts would benefit from having a ¢lear expression of epinion.

Timeliness of internal audit reports is somerimes an issue however this is due to delay in the receipt of
management respenses and nol (the faull of the iolernal audilon

The anmual audit plan s generally ;
about the completeness of risk registers in some areas.

izned oo alional sk regislers however there 1s some queslion

Intermnal audits could provide a feedback leop to verify the effectivensss of controls in risk registers and
o 1denbily additicnal risks

Cousultation with management prior to the formulation of the internal audit plan could be improved to
identify areas of prierity where most value would be gained

Intcrnal Andit's risk and control assessments are appropriare, and Internal Audit is w
the assessnents;

g 0 moderate

Have concems around the absence of assurance in relation to Information Technology.
Streng relationships are in place with the ARC.

Inlcmal Audil has commnenced using date analvies moils audits, as appropnale. bul Lave yel lo make
substantial progress in this area.
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Internal Andit
Maturity Rating

Standard 1000

Furpoese, Authoriy and
Respansibility

Standards 1100, 1130

Tudde pendence amd
Objectiviy

Standard 1200

Proficiency and Due
Profesdonal Care

Standard 1300

Quality Assurapce and
Tmprovement Pragram

Standard 2000

Managing the Intermal
Andit Activity

Srandard 2100
Mamre of Work

Optimised

Totemal Audi: Charter iz place,
reviewsd and apmoved by Awdil
COMIUTER o0 MEA] basls, Cleatly
Im b 1, Corpemate prveramc s
shijactive, specEian oo practes
Totemal Audi repasting
auasgrmeaty

Toverma] Aud reporiag
mapement delinel o Tueml
AMICHarer eciles good
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ndepmdmcs and hjpctivay
qumements defized by Tntema
Awdi pulicy inculing 1 equiremes
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Tosrm] At it

Intermal And t sesourse: aoe

oot aled, e inlb e es aie
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REF Assasumant ¢omeuctes
cagoing 14 parpdic Quality
Aswrrazce processes in place
tmizing puoEams seinkuce Tieum]
AUdT Credeniis ard SUupporT
UACETOT, OF INteraa| ABT TATE

Deocumented ongeng a2d paisdic

Quali v Asvaan e Fiom am o phie,
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Iztamnsl A
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cmlwied m e eveay  yems
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ttectva Intsmal Auehr sperRy
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Interaal andt focuses ox contrals,
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plDs e Cleanly Lmied o
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Interaal Andtuses meopmised

oo ol Commew ouks fuils wen
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Intemal Audi Charter ia place,
seviewsd and approved by Andi
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HmEec 70 COUPOTAIe FOTEMBCE
e
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mangemest defned ia Ererna
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sought
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Standard 2200
Engagement Planning

Seandard 2300

Performing the
Fugagemeni

Standard 2400
Communicating Kesults

Standard 2500
Monitoring Progress

Standard 2600

Communicating the
Acceptance of Risks

Code of Ethics

Optimised

Pamning parisrmad i colldsration
with stak ebald s, plazming adjusted
o il i ik st s,
Plmning documenced, CosisE
e il 7 Spp 1801 TR |
il snpipemants cupsrvissry
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SR TA WS SPSrTIRACY reU W 3Te
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wecking paper sstem o place,
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WOVEY Tied
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Appendix E; Inherent Limitations & Kestrictions on Use

Appendix E: Inherent

[imitations & Restrictions on
Use

This report has been prepared at the request of the BOD Allian
an independent Quality Asscssment of its Infernal Andir fur

in connection with our engagement to perform
on

All information included in this report is proprietary and cenfidential and is intended for intemal use by the
BOD Alliance

“T'his report has been prepared solely far the use of management and should not be quoted in whole or in part
without our prior written censent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been
prepared. and is not intended, for any other purpose.

We believe the statements made in this report are accurate, but no warranty of accuracy or reliability is given
in relation to information and doeumentation provided by the BOD Alliance.

Our comments should be read in the context of the scope of our werk as detailed in the terms of reference.
Where possible, mana gement represenrarions are independently verified, though some findings in this report
ity have been preps red on (e basis ol managemen| representations which have nol een independen ly lested
Suggestions for improvemenr should be assessed by management for their full commereial impaet before they
arc implemented.

Considerable professicnal judgment is involved in performing a Quality Assessment and developing this
repart. Accordingly, it should be recognised that orhers could evaluate the results differently and may draw
dilTerent conelusions.
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Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Contents Page
1. Statement by Councillors and Management 2
2. Primary Financial Statements:

— Income Statement

— Statement of Comprehensive Income

— Statement of Financial Position

— Statement of Changes in Equity
— Statement of Cash Flows

~N @ kW

3. Notes to the Financial Statements 8

4. Independent Auditor’s Reports:

— On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])
— On the Conduct of the Audit (Sect 417 [3])

Overview

Dubbo Regional Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of
business at:

Church Street
Dubbo NSW 2830

Council’s guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

* principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,
* principles to be applied when making decisions,

* principles of community participation,

* principles of sound financial management, and

* principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).
Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum

cost. All press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website:
www.dubbo.nsw.gov.au.

page 1
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Financial Statements 2018

Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

* the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,

e the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board

* the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:
* present fairly the Council’s operating result and financial position for the year,
* accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 10 September 2018.

Ben Shields Annemarie Jones OAM

Mayor Councillor

10 September 2018 10 September 2018

Michael McMahon Jane Bassingthwaighte

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
10 September 2018 10 September 2018

page 2
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Financial Statements 2018

Original
unaudited Actual Actual
budget 13/5/16
2018 $°000 Motes 2018 to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
Revenue:
59,306 Rates and annual charges 3a 56,909 59,787
38,329 User charges and fees 54,371 55,912
4085 Interest and investment revenue ic 6,494 6,291
6,163  Other revenues 3¢ 1433 1,778
20,773  Grants and contributions provided for operating purpose e f 30,703 37,994
25166 Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes  3ef 60,804 36,155
Other income:
250 Netgains from the disposal of assets 5 3,017 3,696
MNet share of interests in joint ventures and
— associates using the equity method 4 151 183
154,072 Total income from continuing operations 213882 201,796
Expenses from continuing operations
38,036 Employee benefits and on-costs 4a 37187 43183
3,864  Borrowing costs 4} 5,682 5,215
32,486  Matenals and contracts 4c 32,936 38,940
32,749  Depreciation and amortisation 4d 30407 35,131
13,447  Other expenses de 16,069 18,056
120,582 Total expenses from continuing operations 122,281 140,525
33,490 Operating result from continuing operations 91,601 61,271
33,490 Net operating result for the year 91,601 61,271
Gain on local government amalgamation
—  Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils — 2,266,670
33,490 Net result for the year 91,601 2,327,941
33,490 Met result attributable to Council 91,601 2,327 941
Net operating result for the year before grants and
8,324 contnbutions provided for capital purposes 30,797 25,116
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 3
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2018

13/5/16
$'000 2018 to 30/6/17
Net result for the year (as per Income Statement) 91,601 2,327,941
Other comprehensive income:
Amounts that will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 47 062 122,836
Impairment (loss) reversal relating to IPP&E (255) —
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently
to the operating result 46,807 122,836
Amounts that will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
when specific conditions are met
Mil
Total other comprehensive income for the year 46,807 122,836
Total comprehensive income for the year 138,408 2,450,777
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 138,408 2 450,777
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 4
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2018

$°000 Motes 2018 2017
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6a 36,755 25,752
Investments 61 89068 45138
Receivables 7 21,379 18,198
Inventories 1873 1,876
Other 8 663 463
Total current assets 149,738 91,427

Non-current assets

Investments 6b 108,664 117,235
Receivables 7 629 755
Inventories 8 2025 1,993
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 9 2424 084 2,335,646
Investments accounted for using the equity method 4 1484 1,333
Other 8 495 495
Total non-current assets 2,537,381 2,457 457
TOTAL ASSETS 2,687,119 2,548,884
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 0 12,038 7,688
Income received in advance 0 328 770
Borrowings 0 4922 4 652
Provisions 13,765 15,047
Total current liabilities 31,053 28,157

Non-current liabilities

Payables 0 1 1
Borrowings 0 62434 67,356
Provisions 4 446 2,593
Total non-current liabilities 66,881 69,950
TOTAL LIABILITIES 97,934 98,107
Net assets 2,589,185 2,450,777
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 2 2419542 2,327,941
Revaluation reserves 2 169,643 122,836
Total equity 2,589,185 2,450,777
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 5
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2018

13/5/16
2018 IPP&E to 30/6/17 IPP&E

Accumulated  revaluation Total Accumulated revaluation Total
$'000 MNotes surplus reserve equity surplus reserve equity
Opening balance 2,327,941 122,836 2,450,777 - - -
MNet result for the year prior to correction of
errors and changes in accounting policies 91,601 - 91,601 2 327 941 — 2,327,941
Net result for the year 91,601 - 91,601 2,327,941 - 2,327,941
Other comprehensive income
— Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 9a - 47,062 47,062 - 122,836 122,836
— Impairment (loss) reversal relating to IPP&E 9a — (255) (255) — - -
Other comprehensive income - 46,807 46,807 - 122,836 122,836
Total comprehensive income (c&d) 91,601 46,807 138,408 2,327,941 122,836 2,450,777
Equity — balance at end of the reporting period 2,419,542 169,643 2,589,185 2,327,941 122,836 2,450,777

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 6
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Financial Statements 2018

Original
unaudited Actual Actual
budget 13/5/16
2018 $°000 Motes 2018 to 30/6/17
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:

59,271 Rates and annual charges 56,224 66,266
38,038 User charges and fees 57,957 57,616

4,368  Investment and interest revenue received 6,404 6,163
41,548  Grants and confributions 71,141 66,592

— Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received 216 305

7,824  Other 6,003 8,062
Payments:

(38,052) Employee benefits and on-costs (38,646) (42,612)

(31,074) Materials and contracts (36,109) (47,744)

(3,868) Bormowing costs (3,865) (5,707)
(13,447) Other (17.825) (19,475)
64,608 Net cash provided (or used in) operating activities 130 101,500 89,466

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
19,069  Sale of investment securities 220916 88,594
711 Sale of real estate assets 4 460 4 962
1,744  Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 1672 2,562
— Deferred debtors receipts 579 80
Payments:
— Purchase of investment securities (256,275) (122,268)
(85,309) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (56,062) (52,872)
— Purchase of real estate assets (1,210) (860)
— Deferred debtors and advances made 75 (472)
(63,785) Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (85,845) (80,274)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:
1,500 Proceeds from borrowings and advances — —
Payments:

(4,322) Repayment of borrowings and advances (4652) (5,434)
(2,822) Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities (4,852) (5,434)
(1,999) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,003 3,758

3,956 Pus: cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 132 25752 -

—  Plus: cash transferred on amalgamation of councils — 21,994

1,957 Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 1z 36,755 25,752

Additional Information:

plus: Investments on hand — end of year Eb 197,732 162,373

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 234,487 188,125
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 7
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements
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2(b) Council functions/activities — component descriptions 13
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4 Expenses from continuing operations 23
5 Gains or losses from the disposal of assets 27
6(a) Cash and cash equivalent assets 27
6(b) Investments 28
6(c) Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details 29
7 Receivables 31
8 Inventories and other assets 33
9(a) Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 35
9(b) Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 38
9(c) Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year impairments 39
10 Payables and borrowings 40
11 Provisions 43
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page 8

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 137



APPENDIX NO: 2 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017/2018 |

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

Financial Statements 2018

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

These financial statements were authorised for issue
by Dubbo Regional Council on 10/09/2018. Council
has the power to amend and reissue these financial
statements

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with:

e Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations issued
by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board,

+ the Local Govermment Act 1993 (NSW) and
Regulations, and

s the Local Govemment Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting.

Council is deemed to be a not for-profit entity for the
purpose of preparing these financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in Australian
dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by
Council

There have been no new accounting standards
adopted in this year's financial statements which
have had any material impact on reported financial
position, performance or cash flows.

(ii) Early adoption of standards

Council has not elected to apply any
pronouncements before their operative date in the
reporting period beginning 1 July 2017.

(iii) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for:

+ certain financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-

sale financial assets, which are all valued at
fair value,

+ the write down of any asset on the basis of
impairment (if warranted), and

e certain classes of non-current assets (eg.
infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
and investment property) that are accounted
for at fair valuation.

The accrual basis of accounting has also been
applied in their preparation.
and

(iv) Significant estimates

judgements

accounting

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates (in
conformity with AASBs).

Accordingly this requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Council's
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Council and that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and
conceming the future.

assumptions
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year include:

(i) Estimated fair values of Infrastructure, Property,
Plant and Equipment,

(i) Estimated remediation provisions.

Significant judgements in applying the Council’s
accounting policies

(i) Impairment of Receivables

page 9
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

Financial Statements 2018

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Council has made a significant judgement about the
impairment of a number of its receivables in Note 7.

Monies and other assets

Council

received by

These consolidated financial statements include the
financial position and performance of controlled
entities from the date on which control is obtained
until the date that control is lost.

In the process of reporting on Council's activities as
a single unit, all inter-entity year end balances and
reporting period transactions have been eliminated
in full between Council and its controlled entities.

(i) The consolidated fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1)
of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money
and property received by Council is held in the
Council's consolidated fund unless it is required to
be held in the Council's trust fund.

The consolidated fund and other entities through
which the Council controls resources to carry on its
functions have been included in the financial
statements forming part of this report.

The following entities have been included as part of
the consolidated fund:

= General purpose operations
= Water senvice
= Sewerage service

(i) The trust fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of
the Local Govemnment Act 1993 (NSW) (as
amended), a separate and distinct trust fund is
maintained to account for all money and property
received by the Council in trust which must be
applied only for the purposes of, or in accordance
with the trusts relating to those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Council's
control have been included in these reports.

Trust monies and property held by Council but not
subject to the control of Council have been excluded
from these reports.

A separate statement of monies held in the trust fund
is available for inspection at the Council office by any
person free of charge.

Goods and services tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are all recognised net
of the amount of GST, except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian
Tax Office (ATO).

In these circumstances the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the revenue / expense.

Receivables and payables within the statement of
financial position are stated inclusive of any
applicable GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable
to the ATO is included as a current asset or current
liability in the statement of financial position.

Operating cash flows within the statement of cash
flows are on a gross basis, i.e. they are inclusive of
GST where applicable.

Investing and financing cash flows are treated on a
net basis (where recoverable from the ATO), i.e. they
are exclusive of GST. Instead, the GST component
of investing and financing activity cash flows that are
recoverable from or payable to the ATO are
classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of
the amount of GST recoverable from (or payable to)
the ATO.

New accounting standards and

interpretations issued not yet effective
Certain new (or amended) accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for the curmrent reporting period.

Council has not adopted any of these standards
early.

page 10
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2(a). Council functions/activities — financial information

$'000 Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions/activities.
Details of these functions/activities are provided in Note 2(b).
Income from Expenses from Operating result from |. Grants incmde'.j in. Total assets held
- . - . - . income from continuing (current and non-
Functions/activities continuing operations | continuing operations | continuing operations operations current)
13/5/16 13/5/16 13/5/16 13/5/16
2018 | to 30/6/17 2018 | to 30/6/17 2018 | to 30/6/17 2018 | to 30/6/17 2018 2017
Governance - 200 303 4,565 (303) (4,365) - - - -
Administration 1,715 21,085 1,284 7,184 431 13,901 - 21,018 687,041 591,058
Public order and safety 2,757 1,485 4,021 4,143 (1,264) (2,658) 1,074 1,131 10,551 11,856
Health 13 169 353 332 (340) (163) - - - -
Environment 19,307 13,240 11,023 11,850 8,284 1,390 104 122 202,579 194 295
Community services and education 3,519 5914 4751 5,602 (1,232) 312 2,241 2139 - 882
Housing and community amenities 1,445 1,671 4157 4,366 (2,712) (2,695) - 221 3,356 6,068
Water supplies 30,953 28,488 18,950 19,897 12,003 8,591 121 143 307,866 291,050
Sewerage services 21,627 22,626 12,976 16,213 8,651 6,413 121 206 334,015 321,942
Recreation and culture 18,172 6,003 21,527 22,064 (3,355) (16,061) 12,993 813 26,499 40,326
Mining, manufacturing and construction 1,184 1,170 2,034 2,155 (850) (985) - - 1,012 1,997
Transport and communication 51,575 32,692 31,158 32,963 20417 (271) 22 067 9,658 | 1,067,135 | 1,047,479
Economic affairs 15,001 14,502 9,744 9,191 5,257 5311 2,789 708 45,581 40,598
Share of gains/(losses) in associates and joint ventures
(using the equity method) 151 183 - - 151 183 - - 1,484 1,333
General purpose income 46 463 52,369 - - 46 463 52,369 11,716 16,401 - -
Total functions and activities 213,882 201,797 122,281 140,525 91,601 61,272 53,226 52,560 | 2,687,119 | 2,548,884
page 12
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Financial Statements 2018

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

Governance

Includes costs relating to Council's role as a component of democratic govemment, including elections,
members’ fees and expenses, subscriptions to local authonty associations, meetings of Council and policy-
making committees, public disclosure (e.g. GIPA), and legislative compliance.

Administration
Includes corporate support and other support services, engineering works, and any Council policy compliance.

Public order and safety

Includes Council’s fire and emergency services levy, fire protection, emergency services, beach control,
enforcement of regulations and animal control.

Health
Includes immunisation, food control, health centres etc.

Environment

Includes noxious plants and insect/'vermin control, other environmental protection; solid waste management,
including domestic waste; other waste management; other sanitation; and garbage, street cleaning, drainage
and stormwater management.

Community services and education

Includes administration and education; social protection (welfare), migrant, Abaoriginal and other community
services and administration (excluding accommodation — as it is covered under ‘housing and community
amenities’), youth services; aged and disabled persons services; children’'s’ services, including family day
care; child care; and other family and children services.

Housing and community amenities

Includes public cemeteries; public conveniences; street lighting; town planning; other community amenities,
including housing development and accommodation for families and children, aged persons, disabled persons,
migrants and Indigenous persons.

page 13
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Financial Statements 2018

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities — component descriptions (continued)
Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

Water supplies
Provide safe reliable and cost effective water supply that caters for the sustainable growth.

Sewerage services
Provision of an environmentally responsible sewerage service that maintains the health of the
community cost effectively, and caters for the sustainable growth.

Recreation and culture

Includes public libraries; museums; art galleries; community centres and halls, including public halls and
performing arts venues, sporting grounds and venues, swimming pools, parks, gardens; lakes, and other
sporting, recreational and cultural services.

Mining, manufacturing and construction
Includes building control, quarnes and pits, mineral resources, and abattoirs.

Transport and communication
Urban local, urban regional, includes sealed and unsealed roads, bridges, footpaths, parking areas, and
aerodromes.

Economic affairs

Includes camping areas and caravan parks, fourism and area promotion; industrial development promotion;
sale yards and markets; real estate development; commercial nurseries; and other business undertakings.

page 14
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 3. Income from continuing operations

13/5/16
$°'000 2018 to 30/6/17
(a) Rates and annual charges
Ordinary rates
Residential 17,096 18,842
Farmland 5764 5,527
Mining 2 2
Business 7,964 8,121
Total ordinary rates 30,826 32,492
Special rates
Sewerage services - 1,461
Emergency services — 140
Total special rates - 1,601
Annual charges (pursuant to 5496, s 496A, s 496B, s.501 & 5.611)
Domestic waste management services 5,821 6,425
Stormwater management services - 36
Water supply services 6,364 5,701
Sewerage services 11,867 11,382
Drainage 1,393 1,491
Waste management services (non-domestic) 638 659
Total annual charges 26,083 25,694
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 56,909 59,787

Council has used 2016 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy for rates and annual charges

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions (including developer contnbutions) are recognised as revenue
when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these receipts. Developer contributions may only
be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but the Council may apply contributions
according to the priorities established in work schedules.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating
year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16
$'000 2018 to 30/6/17
(b) User charges and fees
Specific user charges (per 5.502 - specific ‘actual use' charges)
Domestic waste management services - 101
Water supply services 18,515 17,470
Sewerage services 4642 4,804
Waste management services (non-domestic) 3,229 2,381
Total specific user charges 26,386 24,756
Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges - statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)
Planning and building regulation - 95
Private works — section 67 - 76
Regulatory/ statutory fees 2346 2474
Registration fees - 13
Section 149 certificates (EPA Act) - 54
Section 603 certificates - 20
Other — 13
Total fees and charges - statutory/regulatory 2,346 2,745
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16
$'000 2018 to 30/6/17
(b) User charges and fees (continued)
(i) Fees and charges — other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))
Aerodrome 3913 4 356
Caravan park 2,251 2,195
Cemeteries 377 466
Leaseback fees — Council vehicles 334 336
Multipurpose centre - 24
Park rents — 36
RMS (formerly RTA) charges (state roads not controlled by Council) 7,360 9,240
Swimming centres - 81
Tourism 96 132
Water service connections 48 46
Caves entry fees 470 470
Other 107 -
Aquatic leisure centre 425 330
Family day care 341 414
Fodder sales ‘greengrove’ effluent reuse property 450 148
Old dubbo gaol 579 621
Private works 371 735
Public halls 1672 1,618
Rainbow cottage long day care centre 640 727
Regional livestock markets 4097 3,856
Sewer plan drafting fees 128 129
Showground 212 302
Sporting faciliies 180 316
Other 1588 1,833
Total fees and charges — other 25,639 28,411
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 54,371 55,912
Accounting policy for user charges and fees
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16

$°000 2018 to 30/6/17
(c) Interest and investment revenue (including losses)
Interest

— Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 214 236

— Cash and investments 6,147 6,011

— Deferred debtors 14 -

— Other 44 41
Fair value adjustments

— Fair valuation movements in investments (at fair value or held for trading) - (48)
Amortisation of premiums and discounts

— Interest free (and interest reduced) loans provided 75 51
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE 6,494 6,291
Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund) 113 212
General Council cash and investments 3,808 3,264
Restricted investments/funds — external:
Development contributions

— Section 7.11 243 228

— Section 64 41 74
Water fund operations 946 883
Sewerage fund operations 1,343 1,630
Total interest and investment revenue recognised 6,494 6,291
Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is earned.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16
$'000 te 2018 to 30/6/17
(d) Other revenues
Rental income — other council properties 479 600
Fines 182 234
Legal fees recovery —rates and charges (extra charges) — 132
Commissions and agency fees 8 12
Insurance claim recoveries 110 296
Sales — general - 9
Caves / caravan park kiosk — sales 146 133
OH&S training — 9
Other revenues from local organisations — 197
Evocities reimbursement of expenses - 47
Other 508 109
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 1,433 1,778

Accounting policy for other revenue

Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Council and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council's activities
as described below. Council bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Parking fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, or when the penalty has
been applied, whichever occurs first.

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Miscellaneous sales are recognised when physical possession has transferred to the customer which is
deemed to be the point of transfer of risks and rewards.

Other income is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is
received, whichever occurs first.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16 13/5/16
2018 to 30/6/17 2018 to 30/6/17
$°000 Operating Operating Capital Capital
(e) Grants
General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance — general component 3,967 11,381 - -
Financial assistance — local roads component 1,685 4,681 - -
Payment in advance — future year allocation
Financial assistance — general component 4072 - — —
Financial assistance — local roads component 1,697 - - -
Other
Pensioners’ rates subsidies — general component 295 339 — —
Total general purpose 11,716 16,401 - -
Specific purpose
Pensioners’ rates subsidies:
— Water 121 143 - -
— Sewerage 121 134 - -
— Domestic waste management 104 122 — —
Sewerage services - - - 72
Bushfire and emergency services 16 656 119 475
Economic development — - — 177
Employment and training programs — 29 — —
Flood restoration 839 2,598 - -
Heritage and cultural 114 121 - -
Library 164 251 - -
MNoxious weeds 100 84 - -
Recreation and culture - - - 441
Street lighting 196 221 - -
Transport (roads to recovery) 2,855 4 374 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 84 93 10,865 2,270
Local infrast. renewal scheme interest subsidy - - 397 583
Tourism - 4 2,789 161
Mew council implementation fund — 5,000 — —
Stronger communities fund - 1,000 - 9,000
Livestock markets - - - 2,962
Community services 262 432 - 1,929
Family day care 1,392 1,707 - -
Paid parental leave 72 83 — —
Rainbow cottage long day care centre 515 547 - -
Sporting faciliies - - 12,715 -
Other 27 337 7,643 153
Total specific purpose 6,982 17,936 34,528 18,223
Total grants 18,698 34,337 34,528 18,223
Grant revenue is attributable to:
— Commonwealth funding 14,342 19,140 10,574 -
— State funding 4 356 15,197 23954 18,223
18,698 34,337 34,528 18,223
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16 13/5/16

2018 to 30/6/17 2018 to 30/6/17
$°000 Notes Operating Operating Capital Capital
(f) Contributions
Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 — EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
Cash contributions
S 7.11 — contributions towards amenities/services - - - 13
S 7.12 — fixed development consent levies - - - 9
S 7.11 — open space - - 865 1,040
S 7 11 — drainage - - 166 343
S 7.11 — roadworks - - 1,476 1,902
S 64 —water supply contributions - - 2,257 1,967
S 64 — sewerage service contributions - - 1,575 1,864
Voluntary planning agreements — — 136 67
Total developer contributions — cash - - 6,475 7,205
Total developer contributions 2 - - 6,475 7,205
Other contributions:
Cash contributions
RMS contributions (regional roads, block grant) 11,903 3,368 - 45
Oval sponsorship - A7 - -
Sporting faciliies - - 25 22
Infrastructure contributions (non-cash) — water — - 1,011 766
Infrastructure contributions (non-cash) — sewerage - - 1,851 394
Infrastructure contributions (non-cash) — drainage - - 6,464 1,649
Infrastructure contributions (non-cash) — roadworks — — 8,641 6,297
Infrastructure contributions (non-cash) — land
under roads — - 1,750 1,474
Evocities MTB sponsorship - 14 - -
Other 102 228 59 80
Total other contributions — cash 12,005 3,657 19,801 10,727
Total other contributions 12,005 3,657 19,801 10,727
Total contributions 12,005 3,657 26,276 17,932
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 30,703 37,994 60,804 36,155

Accounting policy for contributions
Control over grants and contributions is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) and is valued at the
fair value of the granted or contributed asset at the date of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that
they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period and those conditions were
un-discharged at reporting date, the unused grant or contribution is disclosed above.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite service
has not been provided at reporting date.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16
$°000 2018 to 30/6/17
(g) Unspent grants and contributions
Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:
Capital grants
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 33,385 17,279
Add: capital grants recognised in the current period but not yet spent 29,585 19,824
Less: capital grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (10,867) (3,718)
Unexpended and held as restricted assets (capital grants) 52,103 33,385
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

13/5/16
$°000 2018 to 30/6/17
(a) Employee benefits and on-costs
Salaries and wages 33630 36,484
Employee termination costs (where material — other than vested leave paid) - 74
Travel expenses 300 419
Employee leave entitements (ELE) 3,830 4,208
Superannuation 3770 4154
Workers' compensation insurance 937 1,155
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 167 259
Payroll tax 220 392
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) 516 370
Other 237 282
Total employee costs 43,607 47,797
Less: capitalised costs (6,420) (4,614)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 37,187 43,183
MNumber of ‘full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end 481 432

Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-costs
Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

Retirement benefit obligations
All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to
vanous defined benefit plans and defined confribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

Council participates in a Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Govemment Superannuation Scheme, however,
when sufficient information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council
accounts for its obligations to defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution
plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes payable —refer to Mote 16 for more information.

(b) Borrowing costs

(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on loans 4268 5,150

Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 4,268 5,150

(ii) Other borrowing costs
Discount adjustments relating to movements in provisions (other than ELE)

— Remediation liabilities 11 1414 65
Total other borrowing costs 1,414 65
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 5,682 5215

Accounting policy for borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed.
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16
$'000 2018 to 30/6/17
(c) Materials and contracts
Raw matenals and consumables 18,860 25,166
Contractor and consultancy costs 13485 13,031

— contractor and consultancy costs (internal audit BDO alliance) 65 65
Auditors remuneration ©! 105 179
Legal expenses:

— Legal expenses: planning and development 31 8

— Legal expenses: debt recovery 9 126

—Legal expenses: other 70 69
Operating leases:

— Operating lease rentals: minimum lease payments m 311 296
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 32,936 38,940
Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
not transferred to Council as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1. Operating lease payments are attributable to:

Computers 311 296
311 296

2. Auditor remuneration

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the

auditor of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements 105 104

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 105 104

Total Auditor-General remuneration 105 104

Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements — 75

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services - 75

Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms - 75

Total Auditor remuneration 105 179
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

13/5/16
$°000 Notes 2018 to 30/6/17
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment 3,792 4074
Office equipment 296 209
Furniture and fittings 271 226
Land improvements (depreciable) 305 378
Infrastructure:

— Buildings — non-specialised 429 524

— Buildings — specialised 2202 2218

— Other structures 3434 3,873

—Roads 9,361 12,009

— Airport runways 429 460

— Stormwater drainage 987 1,152

— Water supply network 5,067 4543

— Sewerage network 4902 5,952

— Swimming pools 100 118

— Other open space/recreational assets - 151
Other assets:

— Hentage collections — 1

— Library books - 1

— Other 44 55
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets:

—Tip assets 0&14 169 154
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 31,788 36,098
Less: capitalised costs (1,381) (967)
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 30,407 35,131
TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT /

REVALUATION DECREMENT COSTS EXPENSED 30,407 35,131

Accounting policy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note 9 for IPPE assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss Is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the
class of asset, with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.

Impairment of financial assets

Council assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

13/5/16
$°'000 2018 to 30/6/17
(e) Other expenses
Advertising 683 ar7
Bad and doubtful debts 418 11
Bank charges - 34
Contributions/levies to other levels of government

— Other contributions/levies - 157

Councillor expenses — councillors’ fees/commitiee fees 244 403
Councillors’ and committee expenses (incl. mayor) — other (excluding fe 147 64
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 2858 3,254
Election expenses 303 -
Electricity and heating 3,380 3,637
Insurance 1,814 2,161
Postage 136 214
Printing and stationery 459 480
Street lighting 1,200 1,225
Telephone and communications 410 649
Valuation fees 158 114
Vehicle registration 201 260
Water resource charge 376 371
Contributions to emergency services 1,056 1,036
Credit card merchant fees 18 36
Family day care — fee relief 1,228 1,499
Property rental 48 105
Subscnption shires association 49 41
Other 883 1,428
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 16,069 18,056
Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.
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Note 5. Gains or losses from the disposal of assets

13/5/16
$°000 Motes 2018 to 30/6/17
Plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 1672 2,562
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off (1417) (2,389)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 255 173
Infrastructure 10
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off (583) (705)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal (583) (705)
Real estate assets held for sale :
Proceeds from disposal — real estate assets 4460 4,962
Less: carrying amount of real estate assets sold/written off (1,115) (734)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 3,345 4,228
Financial assets (" 5
Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities — financial assets 220916 88,594
Less: carrying amount of financial assets sold/redeemed/matured (220,916) (68,594)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal - -
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 3,017 3,696

Accounting policy for disposal of assets
The gain or loss on sale of an asset I1s determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the
buyer and the asset Is derecognised.

Note 6(a). Cash and cash equivalent assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and at bank 216 24
Cash-equivalent assets

— Deposits at call 36,539 25,728
Total cash and cash equivalents 36,755 25,752

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value; and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
on the Statement of Financial Position.
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Note 6(b). Investments

2018 2018 2017 2017
$°000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Investments
‘Held to matunty’ 89,068 108,664 45,138 117,235
Total investments 89,068 108,664 45138 117,235
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 125,823 108,664 70,890 117,235
Held to maturity investments
Long term deposits 85,818 94 663 41,138 99,983
NCD’s, FRN’s (with maturities > 3 months) 3,250 14 001 4000 17,252
Total 89,068 108,664 45,138 117,235

Accounting policy for investments

Classification

Council classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity,
re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

Held to maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that Council’'s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to matunty. Assets in this
category are measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date: the date on which Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and Council has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

Impairment of available for sale investments

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below Its cost Is considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.
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Note 6(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details

2018 2018 2017 2017
$°000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents
and investments 125,823 108,664 70,890 117,235
attributable to:

External restrictions (refer below) 36,282 108,664 31,910 80,392
Internal restrictions  (refer below) 86,541 - 35,154 36,843
Unrestricted 3,000 — 3,826 —
125,823 108,664 70,890 117,235
$'000 2018 2017
Details of restrictions
External restrictions — other
Developer contributions — general 13622 11,193
Developer contributions — water fund - 178
Developer contributions — sewer fund — 238
Specific purpose unexpended grants 38 481 21,776
Water supplies 39,548 31,526
Sewerage services 48 036 40,939
Domestic waste management 2429 3,248
Stormwater management 2830 3,204
External restrictions — other 144 946 112,302
Total external restrictions 144,946 112,302
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Note 6(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (continued)

$°'000 2018 2017

Internal restrictions

Employees leave entitlement 3,931 4 351
Financial accounting services - 1
Human resource services - 375
Information management services - 1,762
Governance and risk services - 554
Civic administration building - 1,301
Technical support services - 826
Business support services (technical) - 6
Depot services - 1,001
Wellington caves complex - 43
Works services - 537
Governance 2,300 429
Federal financial assistance grant (advance receipt) 5769 5,466
Sporting faciliies - 1,312
Parks and landcare business support services - 104
Landcare services - 343
Horticultural services - 765
Human environment services - 123
Westem plains cultural centre - 1,007
Cemeteries - 624
Regional theatre and convention centre - 544
Cultural services - 71
Family day care - 276
Rainbow cottage - 200
Social services - 252
Old dubbo gaol - 246
Library services - 164
Recreation planning and programmes - 210
Ranger services - 15
City strategy - 650
Building and development services - 598
Environment and health services - 30
Showground - 72
City marketing and communications - 193
Dubbo city holiday park 673 431
Property development 5,394 2,648
City development - 189
Dubbo city regional airport 20 1,066
Livestock markets 3973 3,183
Fire services - 482
Other waste management services 3737 3,762
Road network — rural roads - 4,578
Emergency management — 94
Road network — urban roads - 5,431
Road network — state roads 2756 1,312
Street lighting - 461
Traffic management - 126
Footpath and cycleways - 567
Environmental sustainability services - 15
(continued on the next page._.)
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Note 6(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (continued)

$°000 2018 2017

Internal restrictions (continued)

Corporate development/strategic management - 135
Animal shelter - 463
Recreation services - 88
Employee overheads — 441
Stormwater - 14
Rates and general revenue - 8,555
Corporate overheads - 2,286
Dubbo aquatic leisure centre - 378
Fleet management services 10,781 10,841
Future Asset Renewal 47 207 —
Total internal restrictions 86,541 71,997
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 231,487 184,299

Note 7. Receivables

2018 2017

$'000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 2,536 - 1,851 —
Interest and extra charges 360 - 402 —
User charges and fees 9,833 - 10,687 -
Private works — — 10 —
Accrued revenues

— Interest on investments 2,026 - 1,969 —
Deferred debtors 434 629 887 755
Government grants and subsidies 3,945 - 899 -
MNet GST receivable 912 - 444 -
Due from other levels of government 29 - 158 —
Other debtors 1,737 - 937 —
Total 21,812 629 18,244 755
Less: provision for impairment
User charges and fees (433) — (46) —
Total provision for impairment - receivables (433) - (46) -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 21,379 629 18,198 755
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Note 7. Receivables (continued)

2018 2017

$°000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Externally restricted receivables
Water supply
— Rates and availability charges 309 - 159 -
— Other 6,770 - 4 585 —
Sewerage services
— Rates and availability charges 1,926 - 401 —
— Other 542 — 1,933 —
Total external restrictions 9,547 - 7,078 -
Internally restricted receivables - - - -
Unrestricted receivables 11,832 629 11,120 755
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 21,379 629 18,198 755

13/5/16
Movement in provision for impairment of receivables 2018 to 30/6/17
Balance at the beginning of the year 46 233
+ new provisions recognised during the year 419 -
— amounts already provided for and written off this year (32) 15
— previous impairment losses reversed — (202)
Balance at the end of the year 433 46

Accounting policy for receivables

Recognition and measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quote
in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the reporting date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in

other receivables (MNote 8) and receivables (Mote 7) in the Statement of Financial Position. Receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment

For loans and receivables the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carmrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an on-going basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written
off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account (provision for impairment of receivables) is
used when there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators
that the receivable is impaired. When a receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised
becomes uncollectable in a subsequent period it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in the Income statement.
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Note 8. Inventories and other assets

2018 2017

$°000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
(a) Inventories
(i) Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale (refer below) 773 2,025 719 1,993
Stores and materials 1,029 - 1,078 —
Trading stock 71 — 79 —
Total inventories at cost 1,873 2,025 1,876 1,993
TOTAL INVENTORIES 1,873 2,025 1,876 1,993
(b) Other assets
Prepayments 663 - 463 —
Shares in unlisted companies — StateCover — 495 — 495
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 663 495 463 495
Externally restricted assets
Water
Stores and materials 168 — 223 —
Trading stock - - - 44
Prepayments 38 44 5 —
Total water 206 44 228 44
Sewerage
Prepayments 12 — — —
Total sewerage 12 - - -
Total externally restricted assets 218 44 228 44
Total unrestricted assets 2,318 2,476 2,111 2,444
TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS 2,536 2,520 2,339 2,488
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Note 8. Inventories and other assets (continued)

2018 2017
$°000 Motes Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
(i) Other disclosures
(a) Details for real estate development
Residential 690 1,247 596 1,271
Industnal/commercial 83 778 123 722
Total real estate for resale 773 2,025 719 1,993
(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)
Represented by:
Acquisition costs - - - 119
Development costs 773 2,025 719 1,874
Total real estate for resale 773 2,025 719 1,993
Movements:
Real estate assets at beginning of the year 719 1,993 622 1,971
— Purchases and other costs 1,210 — 829 31
— Transfers in from (out to) Note 9 - 9) - (7)
— WDV of sales (expense) 5 (1,115) - (734) -
— Transfer between current/non-current (41) 41 2 (2)
Total real estate for resale 773 2,025 719 1,993

Accounting policy

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Raw materals and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on basis of weighted average costs. Costs
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. INet realisable value is the
estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventory held for distribution
Inventory held for distribution is held at cost, adjusted where applicable for any loss of service potential.

Land held for resale/capitalisation of borrowing costs

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific
identification and includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during development.
When development is completed borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if the

expenditure on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while
active development is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.
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Mote 9(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Asset class Asset movements during the reporting period
as at 30/6/2017 as at IWE2018
- Impairment . T =
Gross Accumulated et Addifions Additions sz‘g Depreciation "pla‘oss WIP Adpstments mm‘:“ Mij;mmt:ms h'::‘:?‘ma] inﬂme.ms Gross Accumulated et
N depreciation ; renewals newasssts| . o | expense | (recognised | iransfers | and transfers B infout assets o equity depreciation -
carrying and carrying e in equity) ! et Note 8 (ARR) camying and camying
S 1000 amount impairment amount {Hate 8) amount impairment amount
Capital work in progress 26,917 - 26917 134 - - - (11,328) (40) - (96) - - 15,587 - 15,587
Plant and equipment 50,387 23,962 26,425 42 6,009 (1,417) (3,792) - - - - 45 - - 52,934 25,622 27,312
Cffice equipment 3,084 1,774 1,310 580 - (298) - - - - - - - 3,818 2124 1,694
Furniture and fittings 3,866 24m 1,385 519 - 271) - - - - - - - 4,398 2,755 1,643
Land:
— Operational land 32,258 - 32,258 2 - - - - - (206) - B4 - 3137 35,545 - 35,545
— Community land 35,840 - 35,840 - - - - - - - (148) - - 35,691 - 35,691
_ Land under roads (post 30/6/08) 9,196 - 9,196 589 | 1,162 - - - - - - 1 El - 10,855 - 10,955
Land imp: ts — non-depreci 1,801 - 1,801 - - - - - - - - - - 1,801 - 1,801
Land improvements — depreciable 8,295 4875 3,421 340 106 - (305) - - - - (1,094) - - 6,505 4,037 2488
Infrastructure: -
— Buildings - non-specialised 47,822 32189 15633 245 - - (428) - - (212) - (857) - 10,227 47,360 22,753 24,607
— Buildings - specialised 132,729 66,937 65,792 1473 3,395 - (2,202) - - 212 - 850 - 23,504 151,224 58,200 93,024
— Other structures 109,723 52,674 57,048 10,930 3,932 - (3,434) - - - - 2,958 - - 131,967 60,532 71,435
— Roads 1,277,514 272538 1004975 2482 | 15228 - (9,361) - 3,833 597 - (223) - - 1,301,250 283,719 1,017,531
— Airport runways 32743 16,804 15,939 8314 572 - (428) - - - - o1 - - 42,580 17,793 24,787
— Bulk earthworks (non-depreciable) 344,199 — | 344199 263 274 - - - - (351) - 4 - - 344,709 - 344,709
— Stormwater drainage 219,427 30,536 188,891 639 6,868 - (987) - - - - - - - 226,935 31,524 195,411
— Water supply network 336,801 101,967 234834 869 4,281 (56) (5,067) - 7,485 - - (1) - 4,834 356,343 109,154 247,189
_ Sewerage network 312,082 51496 260,596 416 | 4,800 (527) (4,802) (255) - - - 2 - 5,360 322,766 57,276 265,430
— Swimming pools 6,964 4,077 2,887 402 - (100) - - - - (85) - - 6,933 3,829 3,104
— OCther open space/recreational assets 6,174 3,756 2418 - - - - - - - (2,418) - - - - -
— Quarry assets 1,997 - 1,997 - - - - - - - - - - 1,997 - 1,997
Other assets:
— Heritage collections 33 5 28 - - - - - - - - - - 33 5 28
— Library books 13 13 - - - - - - - - - - - 13 13 -
— Other 2,395 1,157 1,238 - - {44) - - - - - - - 2,395 1,201 1,194
i t ilitation and
assets (refer Mote 11):
— Tip assets 1,044 675 369 436 - (156) - - - (583) - - - 897 831 66
— Quarry assets 465 227 238 591 - (13) - - - - - - - 1,056 240 816
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP. 3,003,780 BGE,134 2 335 646 26504 | 49,389 0 1,788 255 - - (583)| - 9 a7 3,105,692 681,608 2,424,084
Renewals are defined as of exisfing opposed to e f new asseds).
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Note 9(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets Is assessed at each reporting date to confirm
that it is not materially different from current fair value.

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed at each reporting period in accordance with the Rates
Reference Manual 1ssued by Crown Lands and Water (CLAW).

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation reserve. To the
extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the
increase Is first recognised as profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same
class are first charged against revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve
attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years
Office equipment 1to 8 Playground equipment 5to 15
Office furniture 1to 10 Benches, seats etc. 10 to 20
Computer equipment 10 8
Vehicles 5to0 8 Buildings
Heavy plant/road making equipment 5to 8 Buildings: masonry 50 to 150
Other plant and equipment Sto 15 Buildings: other 20 to 100
Water and sewer assets Stormwater assets
Dams and reservoirs 100 Drains 80 to 200
Bores 30 Culverts 50 to 120
Reticulation pipes: PVC 70 Flood confrol structures 80 to 100
Reticulation pipes: other 251070
Pumps and telemetry 15t0 50
Transportation assets Other infrastructure assets
Sealed roads: surface 21t024 Bulk earthworks Infinite
Sealed roads: structure 15t0 90 Swimming pools 5to 50
Unsealed roads 10 to 34 Other open space/recreational assets 15 to 80
Bridge: concrete 100
Bridge: other 80
Road pavements 60 to 90
Kerb, gutter and footpaths 40 to 200
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Note 9(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropnate, at each reporting date.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in the Income statement.

Land under roads
Land under roads Is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature stnps and
median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with
AASB 1051 Land Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Crown reserves

Crown Reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of
the reserves remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for
their maintenance and use in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.
Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council
and revenues relating to the reserves are recognised within Council’s Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets

Under section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW) , “all fire fighting equipment purchased or
constructed wholly or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on
behalf of which the fire fighting equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

Until such time as discussions on this matter have concluded and the legislation changed, Council will
recognise rural fire service assets including land, buildings, plant and vehicles.
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Note 9(b). Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

$ 000 2018 2017
Gross Accumulated . Gross Accumulated .
Class of asset carrying depn. and NE;:;L?‘:"B carrying depn. and Ne;"c‘irur:;ltng
amount impairment amount impairment

Water supply
WIP 5065 - 5,065 12,555 - 12,555
Plant and equipment 2,220 1,052 1,168 2173 955 1,218
Office equipment 41 40 1 41 41 -
Furniture and fittings 21 18 3 20 17 3
Land

— Operational land 2,908 - 2,908 1,614 - 1,614

— Community land 39 - 39 39 - 39
Buildings 801 400 401 8,825 2,430 6,395
Other structures 716 197 519 716 173 543
Infrastructure 355450 108,624 246,826 327,379 99,505 227,874
Roads 3447 558 2,889 3,447 528 2,919
Bulk earthwaorks 746 - 746 746 - T46
Other assets 425 1 424 425 1 424
Total water supply 371,879 110,890 260,989 357,980 103,650 254,330
Sewerage services
WIP 8452 - 8,452 6,809 - 6,809
Plant and equipment 2072 1,030 1,042 1,960 937 1,023
Office equipment 99 67 32 99 66 33
Furniture and fittings 13 g 4 13 7 6
Land

— Operational land 6,757 - 6,757 6,183 - 6,183

— Community land - - - 149 - 149
Buildings 1,336 926 410 5,901 2,387 3,514
Other structures 590 418 172 590 399 191
Infrastructure 318975 55,858 263,117 305,953 48,977 256,976
Roads 3695 1,012 2,683 3,695 979 2,716
Bulk earthworks 830 - 830 830 - 830
Total sewerage services 342,819 59,320 283,499 332,182 53,752 278,430
Domestic waste management

Plant and equipment 2,366 1,084 1,282 1,710 992 718
Land

— Operational land - - - 150 - 150

— Community land - - - 35 - 35

— Improvements — depreciable - - - 88 53 35
Buildings - - - 484 74 410
Other structures 395 342 53 291 286 5
Roads 54 25 29 20 8 12
Bulk earthworks 49 - 49 49 - 49
Other assets — — - 98 26 72
Total DWM 2,864 1,451 1,413 2,925 1,439 1,486
Stormwater drainage
WIP 1014 - 1,014 880 - 880
Plant and equipment 55 27 28 31 25 6

— Operational land 1217 - 1,217 720 - 720

— Community land 49 - 49 31 - 31
Infrastructure 229,003 31,435 197,568 219,091 30,457 188,634
Bulk earthworks 2405 2,405 2,405 - 2,405
Total other restrictions 233,743 31,462 202,281 223,158 30,482 192,676
TOTAL RESTRICTED IPP&E 951,305 203,123 748,182 916,245 189,323 726,922
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Note 9(c). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year
impairments
$°000 2018 2017

Reversals of impairment losses previously recognised
direct to equity (ARR):

— Details of each impaired asset incl. circumstances of reversal (255) —
Total impairment reversals (255) -
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS — DIRECT to EQUITY (ARR) (255) -
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Note 10. Payables and borrowings

Financial Statements 2018

2018 2017

$°000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Payables
Goods and services — operating expenditure 8,819 - 4,566 —
Accrued expenses:

— Borrowings 586 - 625 -

— Salaries and wages 952 - 1,032 —
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 1,681 - 1,465 —
Other — 1 — 1
Total payables 12,038 1 7,688 1
Income received in advance
Payments received in advance 328 - 770 —
Total income received in advance 328 - 770 -
Borrowings
Loans — secured 4,922 62,434 4 652 67,356
Total borrowings 4,922 62,434 4,652 67,356

TOTAL PAYABLES AND BORROWINGS 17,288 62,435

13,110 67,357

(a) Payables and borrowings relating to restricted assets

2018
Current  Non-current

Externally restricted assets

2017
Current  Non-current

Water 1,713 24 865 1,817 25934
Sewer 2,169 17,490 2,208 19,429
Drainage — — 238 3,536
Payables and borrowings relating to

externally restricted assets 3,882 42 355 4263 48 899
Total payables and borrowings relating

to restricted assets 3,882 42 355 4263 48 899
Total payables and borrowings relating

to unrestricted assets 13,406 20,080 8,847 18,458

TOTAL PAYABLES AND BORROWINGS 17,288 62,435

13,110 67,357

T Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council

Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note 17.
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Note 10. Payables and borrowings (continued)

$°000

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-cash changes

QOpening . Other Closing
Class o_f balance Cash flows Acquisition F:::nalu: non-cash balance
borrowings as at 1717 g movements  as at 30/6/18
Loans — secured 72,008 (4,652) — — — 67,356
TOTAL 72,008 (4,652) — - — 67,356
$'000 2018 2017

(c) Financing arrangements

(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the
following lines of credit:

Bank overdraft facilities " 200 200
Credit cards/purchase cards 600 435
Other 10 —
Total financing arrangements 810 635

Drawn facilities as at balance date:

— Credit cards/purchase cards 58 38
— Other 10 —
Total drawn financing arrangements 68 38

Undrawn facilities as at balance date:

— Bank overdraft facilities 200 200
— Credit cards/purchase cards 542 397
Total undrawn financing arrangements 742 597

1. The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
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Note 10. Payables and borrowings (continued)

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Council prior to the end of financial
year that are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the feeis
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where Council, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other short-term and long-term
payables. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases Is depreciated over the asset's useful life or

over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there Is no reasonable certainty that Council
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
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Note 11. Provisions

2018 2017
$°000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Provisions
Employee benefits:
Annual leave 3,729 - 3,937 -
Sick leave 1,069 - 1,303 -
Long service leave 8,806 473 9,751 476
Other leave 161 — 56 —
Sub-total — aggregate employee benefits 13,765 473 15,047 476
Asset remediation/restoration:
Asset remediation/restoration (future works) — 3,973 — 2,117
Sub-total — asset remediation/restoration - 3,973 - 2,117
TOTAL PROVISIONS 13,765 4,446 15,047 2,593
(a) Provisions relating to restricted assets
2018 2017

Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Externally restricted assets
Water 1,180 50 965 33
Sewer — - 113 5
Provisions relating to externally restricted
assets 1,180 50 1,078 38
Total provisions relating to restricted
assets 1,180 50 1,078 38
Total provisions relating to
unrestricted assets 12,585 4 396 13,969 2,555
TOTAL PROVISIONS 13,765 4,446 15,047 2,593
$°000 2018 2017

(b) Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the
next twelve months

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not
expected to be settled in the next 12 months.

Provisions — employees benefits 7,211 8,434
7,211 8,434
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Note 11. Provisions (continued)

$°000

(c) Description of and movements in provisions

ELE provisions

Long service ELE on- Other
2018 Annual leave  Sick leave g employee Total
leave costs
benefits
At beginning of year 3,937 1,303 10,227 - 56 15,523
Other (208) (234) (948) — 105 (1,285)
Total ELE provisions at
end of year 3,729 1,069 9,279 - 161 14,238
ELE provisions
. Other
2017 Annual leave  Sick leave Long service ELE on- employee Total
leave costs
benefits
At beginning of year 3,639 1,356 10,087 - 123 15,205
Other 208 (53) 140 — (67) 318
Total ELE provisions at
end of year 3,937 1,303 10,227 - 56 15,523
Other provisions
2018 Asset Total
remediation
At beginning of year 2,117 2,117
Changes to provision:
— Revised costs 442 442
Unwinding of discount 1,414 1,414
Total other provisions at
end of year 3,973 3,973
Other provisions
2017 Asset Total
remediation
At beginning of year 2,206 2,206
Changes to provision:
— Revised discount rate (154) (154)
Unwinding of discount 65 65
Total other provisions at
end of year 2117 2,117
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Note 11. Provisions (continued)

Nature and purpose of non-employee benefit provisions

Asset remediation
Council has a legal/public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the council tip and quarry.

Accounting policy for provisions

Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlementis
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision i1s recognised even If the likellihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave
expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave
and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other short-term
employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and
periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does

not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of
when the actual settlement Is expected to occur.
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Note 11. Provisions (continued)

Provisions for close-down and restoration, and environmental clean-up costs — tips and quarries

Restoration

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of
residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are provided
forin the accounting period when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs
during the development or during the operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs.

Provisions for close down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to
arise from future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are
calculated annually during the life of the operation to reflect known developments, eg updated cost estimates
and revisions to the estimated lives of operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals

Rehabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of closure,
provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each reporting date and the
cost Is charged to the Income Statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean up obligations outstanding
at the reporting date. These costs are charged to the Income Statement. Movements in the environmental clean
up provisions are presented as an operating cost, except for the unwinding of the discount which is shown as a

borrowing cost.

Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the time the damage, remediation process
and estimated remediation costs become known, but may continue for many years depending on the nature of
the disturbance and the remediation techniques.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in
response to many factors including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new
restoration techniques or experience at other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for
example in response to changes in quarry reserves or production rates. As a result there could be significant
adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and environmental clean up, which would affect
future financial results.

Other movements in the provisions for close down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new
disturbance, updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations and revisions to discount
rates are capitalised within property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the
assets to which they relate.

Close down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the majority of
close down and restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the operations. Although the ultimate
cost to be incurred is uncertain, Council estimates the respective costs based on feasibility and engineering
studies using current restoration standards and techniques.

Self-insurance

Council has decided to self-insure for various risks, including public liability and professional indemnity.

A provision for self-insurance has been made to recognise outstanding claims. Council also maintains cash
and investments to meet expected future claims; refer to MNote 6(c).

page 46

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 174



APPENDIX NO: 2 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017/2018 | | ITEM NO: EDBC18/48 |

Financial Statements 2018
Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments /
decrements of non-current asset values due to their revaluation.

Note 13. Statement of cash flows — additional information

$°000 Notes 2018 2017

(a) Reconciliation of cash assets

Total cash and cash equivalent assets 6a 36,755 25,752
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 36,755 25,752

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result
to cash provided from operating activities

Net operating result from Income Statement 91,601 61,271
Adjust for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 30407 35,131
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assels (3,017) (3,696)
Non-cash capital grants and contributions (17,967) (10,580)
Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:

— Investments classified as ‘at fair value’ or ‘held for trading’ - 48
Amortisation of premiums, discounts and prior penod fair valuations

— Interest on all fair value adjusted interest free advances made by Council (75) (51)
Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions 1,856 (89)
Share of net (profits) or losses of associates/joint ventures (151) (183)

+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:

Decrease/(increase) in receivables (4,021) 7,570

Increase/(decrease) in provision for doubtful debts 387 (187)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 57 23

Decrease/(increase) in other assets (200) 351

Increase/(decrease) in payables 4253 (827)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued interest payable (39) (403)
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable (80) 476

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (226) 294

Increase/(decrease) in employee leave entitlements (1,285) 318

Net cash provided from/(used in)

operating activities from the Statement of Cash Flows 101,500 89,466

(¢) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Infrastructure contributions 17 967 10,580
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 17,967 10,580
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Note 14. Interests in other entities

$°000
Council’s share of net income Council's share of net assets
13/5/16
2018 to 30/617 2018 2017
Joint ventures 151 183 1,484 1,333
Total 151 183 1,484 1,333
Joint arrangements

(i) Joint ventures
Council has incorporated the following joint ventures into its consolidated financial statements.

(a) Net carrying amounts — Council’s share

Nature of Measurement
Name of entity relationship method 2018 2017
Macquarie Regional Library Joint Venture Equity 642 1,333
Total carrying amounts — material joint ventures 642 1,333
(b) Details
Name of entity Principal activity Place of business
Macquarie Regional Library Public library services Branches in Dubbo, Narromine and
Warrumbungle Council area

(c) Relevant interests and fair values Quoted Interest in Interest in Proportion of

fair value outputs ownership voting power
Name of entity 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Macquarie Regional Library n/a 69% 73% 33%

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures
Macquarie Regional Library

Statement of financial position 2018 2017
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,930 1,653

Other current assets 71 85

Non-current assets - 991

Current liabilities

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade

and other payables and provisions) 1,088 a71
Non-current liabilities

Non-current financial liabiliies (excluding

trade and other payables and provisions) 32 29
Net assets 881 1,829
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Note 14. Interests in other entities

$°000

Joint arrangements (continued)

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures (continued)
Macquarie Regional Library
13/516
2018 to 30/6117
Reconciliation of the carrying amount

Opening net assets (1 July) 1,829 1,562
Profit/{loss) for the penod 220 267
Dividends paid (1,168) —
Closing net assets 881 1,829
Council’s share of net assets (%) 72.9% 72.9%
Council’s share of net assets (§) 642 1,333
Statement of comprehensive income

Income 2883 2,921
Interest income 45 37
Depreciation and amortisation (331) (313)
Other expenses (2,376) (2,378)
Profit/(loss) for period 221 267
Total comprehensive income 221 267
Share of income — Council (%) 68.5% 68.5%
Profit/(loss) — Council ($) 151 183
Total comprehensive income — Council ($) 151 183

(e) Summarised financial information for individually immaterial joint ventures

In addition to the joint ventures disclosed individually above, Council has interests in a number of individually
immaterial joint ventures that have still been accounted for using the equity method.

Individually immaterial joint ventures 2018 2017

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial joint ventures 842 -

Accounting policy for joint arrangements
The Council has determined that it has only joint ventures

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB128
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures . Under this method, the investment is initially recognised as a
cost and the carrying '"amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Council’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the joint venture after the date of acquisition.

If the Council's share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Council
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

The Council’s share in the joint venture’s gains or losses arising from fransactions between itself and its joint
venture are eliminated.

Adjustments are made to the joint venture’s accounting policies where they are different from those of the
Council for the purpose of the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 15. Commitments for expenditure

$°000 2018 2017

(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment

Road Infrastructure 8,532 5,187
Other structures 5593 3,667
Water infrastructure 2,259 413
Sewer infrastructure 233 2797
Total commitments 16,617 12,064

These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year 12,557 9,532
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 4 060 2,532
Total payable 16,617 12,064

Sources for funding of capital commitments:

Unrestricted general funds 9639 8,854
Externally restricted reserves 6978 3,210
Total sources of funding 16,617 12,064

(b) Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)

a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the
reporting date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year 132 101
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 173 83
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments 305 184

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
- Computer equipment

Conditions relating to operating leases:

— All operating lease agreements are secured only against the leased asset.
— Mo lease agreements impose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc.
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Note 16. Contingencies and other liabilities/assets not recognised

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their
knowledge and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council's financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:
1. Guarantees
(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Council participates in an employer-sponsored defined benefit superannuation scheme, and makes contributions
as determined by the superannuation scheme’s trustees.

Member councils bear responsibility of ensuring there are sufficient funds available to pay out the required benefits
as they fall due.

The schemes most recent full actuarial review indicated that the net assets of the scheme were not sufficient to
meet the accrued benefits of the schemes defined benefit member category with member councils required to make
significantly higher contributions in future years.

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme however is unable to provide Council with an accurate estimate of
its share of the net deficit and accordingly Council has not recorded any net liability from its defined benefit scheme

obligations in accordance with AASB 119.

Future contributions made to the defined benefit scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be recognised as an
expense when they become payable — similar to the accounting for defined contributions plans.

(ii) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local government.
Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on its past
performance. Council’'s share of the net assets or liabilities reflects Council’s contributions to the pool and the result

of insurance claims within each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result in future
liabilities or benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.

(iii) StateCover Limited
Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.
StateCover Is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry

and specifically Council.
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Note 16. Contingencies and other liabilities/assets not recognised (continued)

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED (continued):

1. Guarantees (continued)

(iii) StateCover Limited (continued)

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital
base as a result of the company’s past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased

prudential requirements from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in
accordance with its licence requirements.

(iv) Other guarantees

Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.
2. Other liabilities

(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including
claims for damages relating to its services.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect
any material liabilities to eventuate.

(ii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council

Council has classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushland.

As aresult, where notified in writing by the various owners, Council will be required to purchase these land parcels.
At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value of any potential liability (and subsequent land asset) from such
potential acquisitions has not been possible.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED:

(i) Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or

controlled up to and including 30/6/08.
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Note 16. Contingencies and other liabilities/assets not recognised (continued)

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED (continued):
(i) Infringement notices/fines

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council issuing infringement notices is followed up and collected by
the Infringement Processing Bureau.

Council’s revenue recognition policy for such income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.

Accordingly, at year end, there is a potential asset due to Council representing issued but unpaid infringement
notices.

Due to the limited information available on the status, value and duration of outstanding notices, Council is
unable to determine the value of outstanding income.
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Note 17. Financial risk management

$°'000

Risk management

Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk
and (4) interest rate risk.

The Council’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council's finance section under policies approved by the Council.

A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Council’s financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised In the financial statements Is presented below.

Carrying value Fair value

2018 2017 2018 2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 36,755 25752 - -
Investments
—"Held to maturity’ 197,732 162,373 - -
Receivables 22,008 18,953 — -
Other financial assets 495 495 - -
Total financial assets 256,990 207,573 - -
Financial liabilities
Payables 12,039 7,689 - -
Loans/advances 67,356 72,008 — —
Total financial liabilities 79,395 79,697 - -

Fair value is determined as follows:

— Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables — are estimated to be the carrying value that approximates
market value.

— Borrowings and held-to-maturity investments — are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
mkt interest rates applicable to assels and liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.

— Financial assets classified (i) ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ or (i) ‘available-for-sale’ — are based upon quoted
market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation.
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Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

$°000

Council’s objective I1s to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.

Council’s finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent
advisors.

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Ministerial
Investment Order 625 This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and its staff and a monthly Investment report
is provided to Council setting out the make-up and performance of the portfolio as required by Local
Government regulations.
The risks associated with the investments held are:
— Price risk — the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices,
whether there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers
or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

—Interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

— Credit risk — the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a
financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council — be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash equivalents and
investments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council’'s Income Statement and accumulated surplus
(for the reporting period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates
2018 Profit Equity Profit Equity
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 2,345 2,345 (2,345) (2,345)
13/5/16to 30/6/17
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 1,880 1,880 (1,880) (1,880)
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Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

$°000

(b) Credit risk

Council’'s major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk — the risk that debts due and payable to Council
may not be repaid in full.

Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
It also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts —that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for
acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

A profile of Council’s receivables credit risk at balance date follows:

2018 2018 2017 2017
Rates and Rates and
annual Other annual Other
charges receivables charges receivables
(i) Ageing of receivables — %
Current (not yet overdue) 71% 91% 57% 74%
Overdue 29% 9% 43% 26%
100% 100% 100% 100%
(ii) Ageing of receivables — value 2018 2017
Rates and annual charges
Current 1,804 1,072
< 1 year overdue 732 779
2,536 1,851
Other receivables
Current 18,188 12,750
0 — 30 days overdue 531 3,319
31— 60 days overdue 481 337
61 — 90 days overdue 114 36
> 91 days overdue 591 706
19,905 17,148
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Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

$°'000

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand
to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this nsk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the nsk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk by borrowing long term and
fixing the interest rate on a 4-year renewal basis. The Finance Section regularly reviews interest rate
movements to determine if it would be advantageous to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council’s payables and borrowings
are set out in the maturity table below:

$°000 Weighted Subject Total Actual
average to no payable in: cash carrying
interest rate maturity £1Year 1-5Years > 5 Years outflows values

2018
Trade/other payables 0.00% 1,681 10,358 - - 12,039 12,039
Loans and advances 4. 50% - 8,958 35,832 54,319 99,109 67,356
Total financial liabilities 1,681 19,316 35,832 54,319 111,148 79,395

2017

Trade/other payables 0.00% 1,465 6,224 - - 7,689 7,689
Loans and advances 4.50% - 9017 35,840 63,269 108,126 72,008
Total financial liabilities 1,465 15,241 35,840 63,269 115,815 79,697
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Note 18. Material budget variations

$°000

Council’s original financial budget for 17/18 was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2017 and is not required
to be audited.

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the original
budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget
on a quarterly basis, so that it I1s able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that
invariably occur throughout the year.

This note sets out the details of material variations between Council's original budget and its actual
results for the year as per the Income Statement — even though such variations may have been adjusted for
dunng each quarterly budget review.

Note that for variations™ of budget to actual :
Material variations represent those variances that amount to 10% or more of the original budgeted figure.
F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation

2018 2018 2018

$°000 Budget Actual ——— Variance” ————
REVENUES

Rates and annual charges 59,306 56,909 (2,397) (4%) U
User charges and fees 38,329 54,371 16,042 42% F
Interest and investment revenue 4,085 6,494 2,409 59% F
Other revenues 6,163 1,433 (4,730) (77%) U
Operating grants and contributions 20,773 30,703 9,930 48% F
Capital grants and contributions 25,166 60,804 35,638 142% F
Net gains from disposal of assets 250 3,017 2,767 1107% F
Joint ventures and associates - net profits - 151 151 0% F
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Note 18. Material budget variations (continued)

2018 2018 2018

$°000 Budget Actual ——— Variance” ————
EXPENSES

Employee benefits and on-costs 38,036 37,187 849 2% F
Borrowing costs 3,864 5,682 (1,818) (47%) U
Materials and contracts 32,486 32,936 (450) (1%) U
Depreciation and amortisation 32,749 30,407 2,342 7% F
Other expenses 13,447 16,069 (2,622) (19%) U

Budget variations relating to Council’s Cash Flow Statement include:

Cash flows from operating activities 64,608 101,500 36,892 57.1% F
Cash flows from investing activities (63,785) (85,845) (22,060) 34.6% U
Cash flows from financing activities (2,822) (4,652) (1,830) 64.8% U
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Note 19. Fair value measurement

$°'000

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
‘level” in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at

fair values:

| Fair value measurement hierarchy |
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

D Quoted Slgnmcant S\gnn‘lcant

Recurring fair value measurements prices in observable  unobservable

active mkts mputs \npufs

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Capital works in progress - - 15,587 15,587
Plant and equipment - 27,312 - 27,312
Office equipment - 1,694 - 1,694
Furniture and fittings - 1,643 - 1,643
Operational land - 35,545 - 35,545
Community land - - 35,691 35,691
Land under roads (post 30/06/2008) - - 10,955 10,955
Land improvements - non-depreciable - - 1,801 1,801
Land improvement - depreciable - - 2,468 2,468
Buildings - non-specialised - 24 607 - 24,607
Buildings - specialised - 93,025 - 93,025
Other structures - - 71,435 71,435
Roads - - 1,017,532 1,017,532
Airport runways/taxiways - - 24 787 24,787
Bulk earthworks - - 344 709 344,709
Stormwater drainage - - 195,411 195,411

Water supply network
Sewerage network

Swimming pools - - 3,104 3,104
Quarry assets - - 1,997 1,997
Heritage collections - - 28 28
Other assets - - 1,193 1,193
Tip restoration assets - - 66 66
Quarry restoration assets 30/06/18 - - 816 816
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 183,826 2,240,258 2424084
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Note 19. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°'000

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at
fair values: (continued)

| Fair value measurement hierarchy |

2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Jate Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable

Recurring fair value measurements

active mkis inputs inputs

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Capital works in progress - - 26,917 26,917
Plant and equipment - 26,425 - 26,425
Office equipment - 1,310 - 1,310
Furniture and fittings - 1,395 - 1,395
Operational land - 32,258 - 32,258
Community land - - 35,840 35,840
Land under roads (post 30/06/2008) - - 9,196 9,196
Land improvements - non-depreciable - - 1,801 1,801
Land improvement - depreciable - - 3421 3,421
Buildings - non-specialised - - 15,633 15,633
Buildings - specialised - - 65,792 65,792
Other structures - - 57,049 57,049
Roads - - 1,004,975 1,004,975
Airport runways/taxiways - - 15,939 15,939
Bulk earthworks - - 344 199 344199
Stormwater drainage - - 188,891 188,891

- 234,834 234,834
- - 260,595 260,596

Water supply network
Sewerage network

Swimming pools - - 2,887 2,887
Other open space/recreational assets - - 2418 2418
Heritage collections - - 28 28
Other assets - - 1,238 1,238
Tip restoration assets - - 369 369
Quarry restoration assets 30/06/13 - - 238 238
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 61,388 2,272,261 2,333,649

(2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair
value measurements.
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Note 19. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

Where Council Is unable to denve fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets

(ie. level 1 inputs) Council instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and
unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)

Level 2 inputs

Plant & equipment

Itis considered that there is a liquid second hand market for Council's plant and equipment, however, there is
subjectivity of prices in this market dependent on the age and condition of the equipment being sold. Council
has determined that the plant and equipment is to be classified as level 2 inputs.

Office equipment and furniture & fittings

There is a liquid second hand market for these types of assets, but the market is not liquid enough to qualify the
assets as valued at level 1. The reason for retaining book value in note 9 is that these assets typically have very
short useful lives, are held to the end of their economic life and have no residual value, and the written down
value reflects their value in use rather than their market value.

Operational land

There is an active liquid market for most of Council's Operational Land, however, the subjectivity of pricing has
resulted in this land to be classified as Level 2.

Quarry assets

The quarry assets are valued on the basis of the price of acquiring the same quality material from commercial
quarries that operate within the Dubbo local government area. The reason for level 2 classification is that there
1s a degree of estimation required to determine the amount of material remaining in the quarry, and also the
potential variation in quality of the material that has yet to be won from the quarry.

Level 3 inputs

Capital works in progress

The valuation method employed is the cost of construction of the asset. As there is no active market for any

of the infrastructure asseis that are partially constructed, the only valuation available is cost, or inputs to the
construction work, which is a level 3 unobservable input.
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Note 19. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)
Community land

Community land was valued using urban and rural average municipal site values. These were determined by
analysing the total rateable value of urban and rural lands, and then dividing the total valuations by the total

area to determine an average rate per hectare or square metre. This was then applied to the areas of

community land. This work was carried out by Council's rating staff. This method has no market observable

inputs as the rating value is the valuation provided by the Valuer General for rating purposes, and may or may

not align with the market value of the land. However, it is not a market valuation of the land. The level 3
unobservable inputs are the valuations provided by the Valuer General on which the value of the land is determined.

Land under roads

Council has elected to only recognise land under roads that have been acquired after 30 June 2008. There are
two methods by which this land is valued, neither of which represent the market value of the land as there is no
market for land that is currently used for road or road reserve purposes. Land which is transferred to Council from
private subdividers is valued using the municipal site value as outlined in valuation of community land above.
Land under roads relating to Council's own subdivisions is valued at the cost of that land at acquisition, on an
area basis. The level 3 unobservable inputs are the average municipal site value of subdividers land vested in
Council, and the cost of the land acquired by Council for subdivision on an area basis.

Land improvements depreciable and non-depreciable

Land improvements - non-depreciable are valued at current replacement cost This is a level 3 unobservable
input as the valuation method does not reflect a market rate as there is no active market for sale of land
improvements - non-depreciable.

Buildings - specialised and non-specialised and other structures (including swimming pools and
open spacefrecreational assets)

Valuations of buildings was carried out by an external valuer, but the valuation was on the written down current
replacement cost of the buildings rather than the market value. Consequently, all buildings are categorised as
level 3 unobservable inputs, as the valuations do not reflect market valuations.

Infrastructure roads, bridges and footpaths

Valuation of roads was undertaken by both an external valuer and Council staff, based on the current written
down value of the road assets within Council's network. As this is based on the current costs of construction
at time of valuation, and not market value, this valuation is a level 3 unobservable input valuation.

Bulk earthworks (non-depreciable)

Valuation of non-depreciable bulk earthworks has two different valuations depending on whether the earthworks
relate to roads or stormwater retarding basins. All earthworks relating to roads were valued in conjunction with
the valuation of the roads by an external valuer and by Council staff, on a current replacement cost basis.

All stormwater retarding basin earthworks were valued on a current replacement cost basis by Council staff

as an internal valuation. The basis of determining the value for internal valuations was a combination of the cost
of similar works carried out by Council, recent similar contract works, and reference rates for construction of
similar earthworks. Both the internal and external valuations are level 3 unobservable inputs valuations due to
the fact that market valuation was not a factor in determining the value of the assets.
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Note 19. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)

Stormwater, water and sewer infrastructure assets

All three asset networks were valued by Council staff using recent Council cost of constructing similar assets,
recent contractor costs to construct Council assets, and then cross validating the costs to construction cost
indexes provided by the NSW Office of Water. The written down value was then assessed by estimating the total
and remaining useful lives of the asset to determine the written down current replacement cost of each asset.
Heritage collection assets

These items comprise historical artefacts that have been obtained generally by purchase through antique dealers
or through private sale. As there is not an active liquid market in the types of items acquired, they are valued at
cost, and therefore have been assessed as being Level 3 unobservable input valuations.

Library books

The library books are reported at fair value in the notes, however, due to the nature of these items they are valued
at cost. There are no major variancse between the fair value and carrying amount of these assets. The cost of these
assets were based on invoices at the time of capitalisation.

Tip and quarry restoration assets

It has been recognised that there will be significant costs associated with the closure and post closure
management of the landfill and quarry assets. Closure of the landfill and quarry sites will involve a wide range of
activities, including final capping of the landfill waste and site revegetation, monitoring of landfill gas, revision of
the surface water management system and leachate management infrastructure to suit post closure operation.

Valuations are based on actual timing of costs and future environmental management requirements.

There were no changes in valuation techniques from prior years.
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Note 19. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Capital works Community Land under Land Land Buildings Buildings Other
in progress land roads improvements improvements non specialised structures
non depreciable specialised
depreciable Total
Opening balance — 13/5/16 7,388 35,841 7,715 1,801 3,622 16,023 65,276 53,725 191,391
Transfers from/(to) another asset class (2,050) - 7 - - - 10 - (2,033)
Purchases (GBV) 21,579 - 1474 - 177 134 2,809 7,378 33,551
Disposals (WDV) - (1) - - - - (85) (181) (267)
Depreciation and impairment - - - - (378) (524) (2,218) (3,873) (6,993)
Closing balance — 30/6/17 26,917 35,840 9,196 1,801 3,421 15,633 65,792 57,049 215,649
Transfers from/(to) another asset class (11,464) (149) 8 - (1,094) (1,069) 1,062 2,958 (9,748)
Purchases (GBV) 134 - 1,751 - 447 245 4869 14,863 22,309
Disposals (WDV) - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation and impairment - - - - (305) (429) (2,202) (3,434) (6,370)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - - - - - 10,227 23,504 - 33,73
Closing balance — 30/6/18 15,587 35,691 10,955 1,801 2,469 24,607 93,025 71,436 255,571
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$°000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) continued

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes. (continued)

Roads Airport Bulk Stormwater Water Sewerage Swimming Other open
runways earthworks drainage supply network pools space
taxiways network recreational Total
Opening balance — 13/5/16 1,003,645 15,785 343 553 188,233 183,837 194 112 2,884 2109 1,934 158
Transfers from/(to) another asset class 655 - - 53 322 985 - 34 2,049
Purchases (GBV) 12,907 614 656 1,757 1,886 2,152 121 426 20,519
Disposals (WDV) (223) - (10) - (83) (122) - - (438)
Depreciation and impairment (12,009) (460) - (1,152) (4,543) (5,952) (118) (151) (24,385)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - - - - 53,415 69,421 - - 122,836
Closing balance — 30/6/17 1,004,975 15,939 344,199 188,891 234,834 260,596 2,887 2,418 2,054,739
Transfers from/(to) another asset class 4208 391 (27) - 7,494 (254) (85) (2,418) 9,309
Purchases (GBV) 17,710 8,886 537 7,506 5,149 5217 402 - 45,407
Disposals (WDV) - - - - (56) (527) - - (583)
Depreciation and impairment (9,361) (429) - (987) (5,067) (4,902) (100) - (20,846)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - - - - 4834 5,360 - - 10,194
Closing balance — 30/6/18 1,017,532 24,787 344,709 195,410 247,188 265,490 3,104 - 2,098,220
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Note 19. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°000
(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) continued

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes. (continued)

Quarry Heritage

Assets collections
Opening balance — 13/5/16 - 29
Depreciation and impairment - (1)
Remeasurement - Income Statement - -
Closing balance — 30/6/17 - 28
Transfers from/(to) another asset class 1,997 -
Purchases (GBV) - -
Disposals (WDV) - -
Depreciation and impairment - -
Closing balance - 30/6/18 1,997 28

(5). Highest and best use

All of Council’s non-financial assets are considered to being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Note 20. Related party transactions

$°000
a. Key management personnel

Key management personnel (KMP) of the Council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
council, directly or indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

Compensation: 2018
Short-term benefits 1,704
Other long-term benefits 804
Temination benefits 608
Total 3,116

b. Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Council has determined that transactions at amm’s length between KMP and Council as part of Council delivering a public service objective (e .g. access to library
or Council swimming pool by KMP) will not be disclosed.

c. Other related party transactions

Nil
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$°000

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 , Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or
improvement of amenities or services) infrastructure in new release areas.

It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND LEVIES

Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Cumulative
internal

PURPOSE Opening received during the year earned during borrowing restricted borrowings
balance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)
Drainage 1,641 166 — 34 (52) 1,789 —
Roads 7,481 1,476 — 165 (17) 9,105 —
Parking 93 — — 2 — 95 —
Open space 1,581 865 - 42 (388) 2100 —
Voluntary planning agreements 92 136 - - - 228 -
$7.11 contributions — under a plan 10,888 2,643 - 243 (457) 13,317 -
S7.12 levies — under a plan 31 - - - - 31 -
Total $7.11 and S7.12 revenue under plans 10,919 2,643 - 243 (457) 13,348 -
S7.11 not under plans 274 _ _ _ — 274 —

S64 contributions 416 3,832 _ 41 (4,289) —

Total contributions 11,609 6,475 - 284 (4,746) 13,622 -
page 69

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 197




APPENDIX NO: 2 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017/2018

| ITEM NO: EDBC18/48

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 21. Statement of developer contributions

(continued)

Financial Statements 2018

$°000

$7.11 CONTRIBUTIONS — UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN (former Dubbo)
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Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Cumulative
PURPOSE Opening received during the year earned during borrowing restricted bolr:rt;‘rvr:%s
balance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)
Drainage 1,641 166 34 (52) 1,789
Roads 7,481 1,476 165 (17) 9,105
Parking 93 - 2 - 95
Open space 1,581 865 42 (388) 2,100
Voluntary planning agreements 92 136 - - 228
Total 10,888 2,643 243 (457) 13,317 -
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S$7.12 LEVIES - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAMN NUMBER 2012 (former Wellington)

Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Cumulative
internal
PURPOSE Opening received during the year earned during borrowing restricted borrowings
balance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)
Public order and safety 5 - - — 5
Community services and education 5 - - — 5
Household and community amenities 5 - - — 5
Recreation and culture 6 — — — 6
Transport and communication 4 - - - 4
Economic affairs 6 — — - 6
Total 31 - - - 31 -
S$7.11 CONTRIBUTIONS — NOT UNDER A PLAN
(former Wellington)
Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Cumulative
internal
PURPOSE Opening received during the year earned during borrowing restricted borrowings
balance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)
Drainage 75 - - — 75
Roads 118 - - - 118
Open space 35 - - — 35
Community facilities 10 - - — 10
Emergency services 36 - - - 36
Total 274 - - - 274 -
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Note 22. Financial result and financial position by fund

Income Statement by fund

$°000 2018 2018 2018
Continuing operations Water Sewer General’
Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 7,043 11,783 38,083
User charges and fees 19460 5,393 29518
Interest and investment revenue 969 1,361 4164
Other revenues 41 55 1,337
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 121 121 30,461
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3,369 3,687 53,748
Other income
INet gains from disposal of assets — — 3,017
Share of interests in Joint ventures and associates
using the equity method — — 151
Total income from continuing operations 31,003 22,400 160,479
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 4 878 3,588 28,721
Borrowing costs 1,633 1,012 3,037
Materials and contracts 4381 2,017 26,538
Depreciation and amortisation 5,280 5,014 20113
Other expenses 2778 1,345 11,946
INet losses from the disposal of assets 50 774 (824)
Total expenses from continuing operations 19,000 13,750 89,531
Operating result from continuing operations 12,003 8,650 70,948
Net operating result for the year 12,003 8,650 70,948
Gain on local government amalgamation
Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils — — —
Net result for the year 12,003 8,650 70,948
Net result attributable to each council fund 12,003 8,650 70,948
Net operating result for the year before grants
and contributions provided for capital purposes 8,634 4 963 17,200
" General fund refers to all Council's activities other than Water and Sewer.

NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross —that is, they include internal charges and recoveries made between

the funds.
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Note 22. Financial result and financial position by fund (continued)

Statement of Financial Position by fund

$°000 2018 2018 2018
ASSETS Water Sewer General'
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents (115) (622) 37,492
Investments 19,500 28,658 40910
Receivables 7,079 2,468 11,832
Inventories 168 — 1,705
Other 38 12 613
Total current assets 26670 30,516 92 552

Non-current assets

Investments 20,163 20,000 68,501
Receivables - - 629
Inventories - - 2,025
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 260,989 283,499 1,879,596
Investments accounted for using the equity method - - 1484
Other 44 — 451
Total non-current assets 281,196 303,499 1,952 686
TOTAL ASSETS 307,866 334,015 2,045,238
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables G644 231 11,163
Income received in advance - - 328
Borrowings 1,069 1,938 1,915
Provisions 1,180 — 12,585
Total current liabilities 2893 2169 25991

Non-current liabilities

Payables - - 1
Borrowings 24 865 17,490 20,079
Provisions 50 — 4 396
Total non-current liabilities 24 915 17,490 24 AT6
TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,808 19,659 50,467
Net assets 280,058 314,356 1,994,771
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 220,889 239,415 1,959,238
Revaluation reserves 59169 74 941 35,533
Total equity 280,058 314,356 1,994,771

" General Fund refers to all Council's activities other than Water and Sewer.
NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross —that is, they include internal receivables and payables between the funds.
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Note 23(a). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts Indicator Indicator Benchmark
$°000 2018 2018 207

Local government industry indicators — consolidated

1. Operating performance ratio

Total continuing operating revenue " excluding capital

grants and confributions less operaling expenses 27,629 18.43% 13.15%
Total continuing operating revenue " excluding capital 149,910

grants and contributions

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue "

excluding ?II grants anq contribution1s 119,207 56.57%  62.54% - 60.00%
Total continuing operating revenue 210,714

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Current assets less all external restrictions *! 103,691 5.52x 3.63x . 15x
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities ©* 18,780 : ' a

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result "’ before capital excluding interest

an_d c!eplecialiom‘impairmerﬂfamonisalian 63,71 6.17x 579 2%
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 10,334

plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and

extra charges outstanding percentage < 10%
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 2,896 4.88% 327% regional &
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 59,376 rural

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents

plus all term deposits : 12 217236 2579 yeehs - 3mihs
Payments from cash flow of operating and 8,425 mths

finanang activities

Hotes

" Excludes fair value adjustmenis and reversal of revaluation decrements, net gain/(loss) on sale of assets and the net
share of interests in joint ventures and associates.

® Refer Notes 6-8 inclusive.
Also excludes any real estate and land for resale not expected to be sold in the next 12 months.

 Refer to Notes 10 and 11.
# Refer to Note 10(b) and 11(b) — excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12
months (incl. ELE).
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Note 23(b). Statement of performance measures — by fund

General indicators ° Water indicators Sewer indicators Benchmark
$°000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Local government industry indicators — by fund

1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue '’ excluding capital grants and contributions

less operating expenses - 13.61%  1043%  31.02%  2204%  26.26%  17.66% - 0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue '’ excluding capital grants and contributions

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue '’ excluding capital grants and contributions

46.24% 53.55% 89.07% 89.37% 84.17% 87.26% - 60

Total continuing operating revenue '

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions ! 5.52x 3.63x 9.22x 755x 14.07x 6.58x
Current liabiliies less specific purpose liabilities © ¥ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’

1.5x

Notes

(-4 Refer to MNotes at Note 23a above.
' General fund refers to all of Council’s activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 23(b). Statement of performance measures — by fund (continued)

General indicators ° Water indicators Sewer indicators Benchmark
$°000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Local government industry indicators — by fund (continued)

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result "’ before capital excluding interest and

depreciation/impairment/amortisation 4.87x 5 35x 0.30x 6.14x% 10.81x 7 43x oy
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus borrowing costs (Income

Statement)

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage

Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 1.63% 3.49% 4.39% 2 08% 16.35% 315%
- 0 - . 0 - - 0 -
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all term deposits 12 25.87 19.53 0.00 496 0.00 5.51 3 months

Payments from cash flow of operating and financing activities months  months months  months months  months

Motes

' Refer to Notes at Note 23a above.
' General fund refers to all of Council’s activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.

END OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 23(c). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

Financial Statements 2018

1. Operating performance ratio : Purpose of Commentary on 2017/18 result
20% | operating
18% | | performance ratio 201718 ratio  18.43%
16% | :
14% -| |
§ 12% | | o
S 0 - | This ratio measures
2 a% | | Council's An increase in the operating performance
achievement of - - -
g ! | | containing aperating ratio this year has_been due to a reduction
4% | | expenditure within in Operating Expendure.
2% | operating revenue.
2017 2018 |
Benchmark: _— Minimum ==0.00%

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Ratio achieves benchmark
Ratio is outside benchmark

]
2. Own source operating revenue ratio : Purpose of own Commentary on 2017/18 result
70% - . L - | operating
| revenue ratio 201718 ratio  56.57%
e i
s0o |
g i
® 40% - || This ratio measures
] || fiscal flexibility. It is
2 30% | |the degree of reliance Own sourch operating revenue ratio has
A | | on extemal funding fallen below the benchmark of 60% this
i sources such as year due to the high level of Grant funding.
10% | | operating grants and
| confributions.
0% |
2018
Benchmark: - Minimum >=60.00%

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Ratio achieves benchmark
Ratio is outside benchmark

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Commentary on 2017/18 result

| ITEM NO: EDBC18/48 |

| Purpose of
6.0 . . . " | | unrestricted current
! ratio 2017/18ratio  5.52x
5.0 |
|
740 | |
‘; J | To assess the
E Y ; adeqt:f:cv;xfigor;\lpg The unrestricted current ratio for 2018 has
a0 | tcc?ggns?ynon‘ng:né:g remained very strong. A result above 1.5
C | | in the short term for indicates a strong ability to meet short term
1.0 | | the unrestricted obligations
|| activities of Gouncil
0.0 J - |
2017 2018 |
Benchmark: —— Ratio achieves benchmark

Minimum >=1.50
Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26 " Ratio is outside benchmark
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Financial Statements 2018

Note 23(c). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

4. Debt service cover ratio

Commentary on 2017/18 result

il Purpose of debt
: service cover ratio 2017M8ratio  6.17x

6.0

5.0
z |
3 4.0 1 This ratio measures o . .
Sy the availability of This ratio result is particularly strong

operating cash to indicating that there is $6.2 of cash to meet
2.0 A service debt including every $1.00 of debt. The benchmark for this
interest, principal and ratio is 2.00
1.0 lease payments
i ; g
2017 2018
Benchmark: _— Minimum =>=2.00 Ratio achieves benchmark

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Ratio is outside benchmark

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage

Purpose of rates

Commentary on 2017/18 result

12% and annual charges
outstanding ratio 2017/18 ratio  4.88%
10% A= -
ag 8% - |
B e To assess the impact
e °':“°°”ec‘mf] rates Although this ratio has increased from last
4% | :rr: ngggﬁ'sﬁiqaur%% year a result of 5% represents an extremely
and the adequacy of strong debt recovery process.
2%
recovery efforts.
0% :
2017 2018
Benchmark: _— Maximum <10.00% Ratio is within Benchmark

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Ratio is outside Benchmark

6. Cash expense cover ratio

30.0 L L " L

Purpose of cash
expense cover ratio

Commentary on 2017/18 result

2017/18 ratio  25.79 mths

This liquidity ratio
indicates the number
of months a Council
can continue paying

The benchmark for this ratio is 3.00. This

10.0 for its Immediate indicates that Council isinavery strong
5.0 | EXpENSES without cash pOSItKJﬂ.
. = additional cash
il inflow.
2017 2018
Benchmark: _ Minimum >=3.00 Ratio achieves benchmark

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Ratio is outside benchmark

| ITEM NO: EDBC18/48 |
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2018

Financial Statements 2018

Note 24. Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
Church Street
Dubbo NSW 2830

Contact details
Mailing address:
PO Box 81

Dubbo NSW 2830

Telephone: 02 6801 4000
Facsimile: 02 6801 4259
Officers

GENERAL MANAGER

Michael McMahon

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Jane Bassingthwaighte

PUBLIC OFFICER
Craig Giffin

AUDITORS

Audit Office of Mew South Wales
GPO Box 12

Sydney NSW 2001

Other information
ABN: 53539070928

Opening hours:
9:00 am to 5:00 pm
Monday to Friday

Internet: www.dubbo.nsw.gov.au
Email: dcc@dubbo.nsw.gov.au

Elected members
MAYOR
Ben Shields

COUNCILLORS
Annemarie Jones OAM
Jane Diffey

Vicki Etheridge

David Grant

Dayne Gumley
Stephen Lawrence
Greg Mohr

Kevin Parker

John Ryan

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 207

page 79



APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017/2018 | | ITEM NO: EDBC18/48 |

Dubbo Regional Councill

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2018

’ DUBBO
"Great community, great council” . REGIONAL
COUNCIL
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Dubbo Regional Council
Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Contents Page
1. Statement by Councillors and Management 2
2. Special Purpose Financial Statements:
Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity 3
Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity 4
Income Statement — Other Business Activities 5
Statement of Financial Position — Water Supply Business Activity 8
Statement of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity 9
Statement of Financial Position — Other Business Activities 10
3. Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements 13

4. Auditor’s Report

Background

i) These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of
Local Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

iy The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a ‘level playing field” between persons/entities
competing in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate
without net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

{iii)  For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to dedlared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activilies with a turnover
of more than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities).

(iv) In preparing these financial statements for Council’s self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined
acfivities, councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent
regime payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing position by
comparison with commercial rates).
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SPFS 2018

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

the NSW Government Policy Statement ‘Application of National Competition Policy to
Local Government’,

the Division of Local Government Guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses —
A Guide to Competitive Meutrality’,

* the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

the NSW Office of Water Best-Practice Management of Water and Sewerage Guidelines.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:

-

present fairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council’s declared business
activities for the year, and

* accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 10 September 2018.

Ben Shields Annemarie Jones OAM

Mayor Councillor

Michael McMahon Jane Bassingthwaighte

General manager Responsible accounting officer
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SPFS 2018

Dubbo Regional Council
Income Statement of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2018

13/5/16
$°000 2018 to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 7,043 7,654
User charges 19,460 16,816
Interest 969 909
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 121 170
Other income 41 81
Total income from continuing operations 27,634 25,630
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 4 878 4770
Borrowing costs 1,633 1,916
Materials and contracts 4,381 5,068
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 5,280 5,002
Water purchase charges - 70
Loss on sale of assets 50 41
Calculated taxation equivalents 131 125
Other expenses 2,778 3,031
Total expenses from continuing operations 19,131 20,023
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 8,503 5,607
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3,369 2,858
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 11,872 8,465
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 11,872 8,465
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] (2,551) (1,682)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 9,321 6,783
Plus opening retained profits 208,886 200,296
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 131 125
— Corporate taxation equivalent 2551 1,682
Closing retained profits 220,889 208,886
Return on capital % 3.9% 3.0%
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax 9,321 6,783
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) (3,369) (2,843)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 5,952 3,940
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 2,976 1,970
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SPFS 2018

Dubbo Regional Council
Income Statement of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2018

13/5/16
$°000 2018 to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 11,783 12,729
User charges 4 687 4,857
Liquid trade waste charges 33 39
Fees 673 317
Interest 1,361 1,678
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 121 141
Profit from the sale of assets - 65
Other income 55 66
Total income from continuing operations 18,713 19,892
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 3,588 3,808
Borrowing costs 1,012 1,252
Materials and contracts 2,017 3,302
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 5,014 6,144
Loss on sale of assets 774 114
Calculated taxation equivalents 242 225
Other expenses 1,345 1,594
Total expenses from continuing operations 13,992 16,439
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 4,721 3,453
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3. 687 2733
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 8,408 6,186
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 8,408 6,186
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] (1,416) (1,036)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 6,992 5,150
Plus opening retained profits 230,765 224 354
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 242 225
— Corporate taxation equivalent 1,416 1,036
Closing retained profits 239,415 230,765
Return on capital % 2.0% 1.7%
Subsidy from Council 1,808 1,922
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax 6,992 5,150
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) (3,687) (2,715)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 3,305 2,435
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 1,652 1,218
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Dubbo City Regional Livestock Markets

Airport
Category 1 Category 1

13/5116 13/5/16
$'000 2018  to 30/6/17 2018 to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
User charges 3,952 4,362 4,098 3,860
Other income 136 187 28 34
Total income from continuing operations 4,088 4,549 4,126 3,894
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 498 459 558 649
Borrowing costs 64 152 - -
Materials and contracts 1,811 1,830 1,229 1,205
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 785 826 1,295 1,280
Loss on sale of assets - - - 293
Calculated taxation equivalents 119 100 12 7
Other expenses 600 254 210 197
Total expenses from continuing operations 3,877 3,621 3,304 3,631
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 211 928 822 263
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 10,193 284 329 2,962
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 10,404 1,212 1,151 3,225
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 10,404 1,212 1,151 3,225
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] (63) (278) (247) (79)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 10,341 934 904 3,146
Plus opening retained profits 27,283 25971 25,050 21,818
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 119 100 12 7
— Corporate taxation equivalent 63 278 247 79
Closing retained profits 37,806 27,283 26,213 25,050
Return on capital % 0.7% 4.0% 4.0% 1.3%
Subsidy from Council 833 - - 229
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Dubbo Regional Council
Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Property Dubbo City Holiday
Development Park
Category 1 Category 2
13/5116 13/5/16
$'000 2018  to 30/6/17 2018 to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
User charges - - 1,909 1,915
Interest 123 26 - -
Profit from the sale of assets 3,359 4,205 - -
Other income 12 12 — —
Total income from continuing operations 3,494 4,243 1,909 1,915
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 159 2 28 4
Borrowing costs - - 13 40
Materials and contracts 193 2,400 1,105 1,146
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment — - 172 200
Calculated taxation equivalents 209 297 63 62
Other expenses 1 — 186 227
Total expenses from continuing operations 562 2,699 1,567 1,679
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 2932 1,544 342 236
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 2,932 1,544 342 236
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 2932 1,544 342 236
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] (880) (463) (103) (71)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 2,052 1,081 239 165
Plus opening retained profits 9,199 7,358 5,443 5,145
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 209 297 63 62
— Corporate taxation equivalent 880 463 103 71
Closing retained profits 12,340 9,199 5,848 5,443
Return on capital % nia n/a 5.7% 5.7%
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Rainbow Cottage

Category 2

13/5/16
$'000 2018  to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
User charges 640 726
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 527 581
Total income from continuing operations 1,167 1,307
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 939 1,004
Materials and confracts 347 374
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 33 35
Calculated taxation equivalents 7 7
Other expenses 26 24
Total expenses from continuing operations 1,352 1,444
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (185) (137)
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (185) (137)
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (185) (137)
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] - -
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (185) (137)
Plus opening retained profits 630 760
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 7 7
Closing retained profits 452 630
Return on capital % -13.2% -21.4%
Subsidy from Council 222 152
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Water Supply Business Activity
as at 30 June 2018

$°000 2018 2017
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents (115) 6,204
Investments 19,500 10,000
Receivables 7,079 4,744
Inventories 168 223
Other 38 5
Total current assets 26,670 21,176

Non-current assets

Investments 20,163 15,500
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 260,989 254,330
Other 44 44
Total non-current assets 281,196 269,874
TOTAL ASSETS 307,866 291,050
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 644 805
Borrowings 1,069 1,012
Provisions 1,180 965
Total current liabilities 2,893 2,782

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 24 865 25,934
Provisions 50 33
Total non-current liabilities 24915 25,967
TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,808 28,749
NET ASSETS 280,058 262,301
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 220,889 208,886
Revaluation reserves 59,169 53,415
TOTAL EQUITY 280,058 262,301
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Dubbo Regional Council
Statement of Financial Position — Council's Sewerage Business Activity
as at 30 June 2018
$°000 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (622) 4. 677
Investments 28 658 8,500
Receivables 2,468 2,334
Other 12 —
Total current Assets 30,516 15,511
Non-current assets
Investments 20,000 28,000
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 283,499 278,430
Total non-current assets 303,499 306,430
TOTAL ASSETS 334,015 321,941
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 231 359
Borrowings 1,938 1,849
Provisions - 113
Total current liabilities 2,169 2,321
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17,490 19,429
Provisions — 5
Total non-current liabilities 17,490 19,434
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,659 21,755
NET ASSETS 314,356 300,186
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 239 415 230,765
Revaluation reserves 74,941 69,421
TOTAL EQUITY 314,356 300,186
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities
as at 30 June 2018

Dubbe City Regional Livestock Markets

Airport

Category 1 Category 1
$'000 2018 2017 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 1 — —
Investments 2819 1,624 5,551 4,192
Receivables 87 250 332 442
Total Current Assets 2,907 1,875 5,883 4,634
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 41,636 26,963 20,616 20,652
Total non-current assets 41,636 26,963 20,616 20,652
TOTAL ASSETS 44,543 28,838 26,499 25,286
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 231 101 88 67
Borrowings 787 163 — —
Provisions 197 120 180 158
Total current liabilities 1,215 384 268 225
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 2226 1,163 — —
Provisions 6 8 18 11
Total non-current liabilities 2,232 1,171 18 11
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,447 1,555 286 236
NET ASSETS 41,096 27,283 26,213 25,050
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 37,806 27,283 26,213 25,050
Revaluation reserves 3,290 - — —
TOTAL EQUITY 41,096 27,283 26,213 25,050
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Dubbo Regional Council
Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities
as at 30 June 2018

Property Development Dubbo City Holiday Park
Category 1 Category 2

$'000 2018 2017 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1 —
Investments 9,393 5,534 1,424 1,002
Receivables - 1,111 - -
Inventories 773 659 — —
Total Current Assets 10,166 7,304 1,425 1,002
Non-current assets
Inventories 2,180 1,895 - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — - 6,174 4,871
Total non-current assets 2,180 1,895 6,174 4,871
TOTAL ASSETS 12,346 9,199 7,599 5,873
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 6 - 9 67
Borrowings — — 121 17
Total current liabilities 6 - 130 184
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings — — 125 246
Total non-current liabilities - - 125 246
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6 - 255 430
NET ASSETS 12,340 9,199 7,344 2,443
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 12,340 9,199 5,848 5,443
Revaluation reserves — — 1,496 —
TOTAL EQUITY 12,340 9,199 7,344 5,443
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities
as at 30 June 2018

Rainbow Cottage

Category 2

$'000 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Investments 37 199
Receivables 13 13
Total Current Assets 50 212
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 1,406 640
Total non-current assets 1,406 640
TOTAL ASSETS 1,456 852
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 32 13
Provisions 214 197
Total current liabilities 246 210
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 17 12
Total non-current liabilities 17 12
TOTAL LIABILITIES 263 222
NET ASSETS 1,193 630
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 452 630
Revaluation reserves 741 —
TOTAL EQUITY 1,193 630
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Dubbo Regional Council
Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements
Note Details Page

1 Summary of significant accounting policies 14

2 Water Supply Business Best-Practice Management disclosure requirements 18

3 Sewerage Business Best-Practice Management disclosure requirements 20
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 1. Significant accounting policies

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Special
Purpose Financial Statements (SPFS) for National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the
purposes of these statements, the Council is @ non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in these Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the recognition and measurement criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting
Interpretations.

The disdosures in these Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), the Local Government (General) Regulation, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into
account changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current values of non-current assets.
Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National
Competition Policy.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the National
Competition Policy which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government.

The framework for its application is set out in the June 1996 NSW government policy statement titled
'Application of National Competition Policy to Local Govemment'.

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office of
Local Government in July 19397 has also been adopted.

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process for identifying and allocating costs to activities and
provide a standard for disclosure requirements.

These disclosures are reflected in Council's pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include taxation
equivalents, Council subsidies, return on investments (rate of return), and dividends paid.

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, Council
has declared that the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1
(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million)

a. Water Supply Service

Comprising the whole of the water supply operations and net assets servicing the city of Dubbo, the town of
Wellington and the villages of Wongarban, Ballimore, Brocklehurst, Geurie, Mumbil and North Yeoval.

b. Sewerage Service

Comprising the whole of the sewerage reticulation and treatment operations and net assets system servicing
the city of Dubbo, the town of Wellington and the villages of Wongarbon, Brocklehurst, Geurie and Mumbil.
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (centinued)

c. Dubbo City Regional Airport
Comprising the whole of the airport operations and net assets located on Coreena Road.

d. Dubbo Regional Livestock Markets
Comprising the whole of the livestock markets operations and net assets located on Boothenba Road.

e. Property Development

Council's property development function competes with other private land developers in Dubbo in the
development of both industrial and residential land for purchase.

NB. The surplus on disposal of land is disclosed in the Income Statement of the Business Activities as
operating revenue. In the General Purpose Financial Statements this is disclosed as gain/(loss) on disposal of
assets.

Category 2
(where gross gperating turnover is less than $2 miifion)

a. Dubbo City Holiday Park
Comprising the whole of the holiday park operations and net assets located on Whylandra Street.

The park offers accommodation for caravans, cabin accommodation and tent sites. The Dubbo City Holiday
Park is in direct competition with other caravan parks within Dubbo.

b. Rainbow Cottage Long Day Care Centre
Rainbow Cottage, located in Mitchell Street, provides day care for children aged between 0 and 5 years.

Several other long day care facilities operate within Dubbo, and Rainbow Cottage is in direct competition with
these centres.

Monetary amounts

Amounts shown in the financial statements are in Australian currency and rounded to the nearest thousand
dallars, except for Note 2 (Water Supply Best-Practice Management Disclosures) and Note 3 (Sewerage Best-
Practice Management Disclosures).

As required by Crown Lands and Water (CLAW), the amounts shown in Note 2 and Note 3 are disclosed in
whole dollars.

(i) Taxation-equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost
of operations just like all other costs.

However, where Council does not pay some taxes which are generally paid by private sector businesses, such
as income tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities
and are reflected in Special Purpose Financial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent, the following

taxation equivalents have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities (this does not include
Council's non-business activities):
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Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate — 30%

Land tax — the first $629,000 of combined land values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in excess of
$629,001 up to $3,846,000 the rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value that exceeds
$3,846,000 a premium marginal rate of 2.0% applies.

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries and wages in excess of $750,000.

In accordance with Crown Lands and Water (CLAW), a payment for the amount calculated as the annual tax
equivalent charges (excluding income tax) must be paid from water supply and sewerage business activities.

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred to in the NSW Office of Water Guidelines to as a
‘dividend for taxation equivalent’, may be applied for any purpose allowed under the Local Government Act,
1993.

Achievement of substantial compliance to the NSW Office of Water Guidelines is not a prerequisite for the
payment of the tax equivalent charges, however the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

Income tax
An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the business activities.

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into
account in terms of assessing the rate of return required on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before
capital amounts, as would be applied by a private sector competitor. That is, it should include a provision
equivalent to the corporate income tax rate, currently 30%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been
achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is payable to Council as the ‘owner’ of business operations
- it represents an internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council. Accordingly, there is no
need for disclosure of internal charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 30% is the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges payable on all category 1 businesses has been applied to all
land assets owned or exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that council business activities face true’ commercial borrowing
costs in line with private sector competitors.

In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the differential borrowing rate would
have been between the commercial rate and Council’s borrowing rate for its business activities.
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(i) Subsidies
Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be
explicitly disclosed.

Subsidies occur when Council provides services on a less-than-cost-recovery basis. This option is exercised
on a range of services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations.

Accordingly, ‘subsidies disclosed’ (in relation to National Competition Policy) represents the difference
between revenue generated from ‘rate of return’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set by Council in
any given financial year.

The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the Income Statement of each reported business activity.

(iii) Retum on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected to generate a
retumn on capital funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a
similar field'.

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies.

The actual rate of retum achieved by each business activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective Income
Statement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of I,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate
which is 2.66% at 30/6/18.

(iv) Dividends

Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any extemal
entities.

Local government water supply and sewerage businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend from its
water supply or sewerage business surplus.

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with the DPIW guidelines and must not
exceed:

(i) 50% of this surplus in any one year, or

(i) the number of water supply or sewerage assessments at 30 June 2018 multiplied by $30 (less the
payment for tax equivalent charges, not exceeding $3 per assessment).

In accordance with the DPIW guidelines a Dividend Payment form, Statement of Compliance, Unqualified
Independent Financial Audit Report and Compliance Audit Report are required to be submitted to the DPIW.

END OF AUDITED SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 2. Water supply business
best-practice management disclosure requirements
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2018

1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local government local water utilities must pay this dividend for tax equivalents]

U]
(i)
(i)
(iv)

Calculated tax equivalents
Mumber of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
Amounts payable for tax equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

Amounts actually paid for tax equivalents

2. Dividend from surplus

M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)

50% of surplus before dividends
[calculated in accordance with Best-Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

Mumber of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
charges/assessment

Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2018, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2017 and 12 May 2016

2018 Surplus 5,952,100 2017 Surplus. 3,939,900 2016 Surplus
2017 Dividend |  —| 2016 Dividend

Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i}, (i} and (iii) above]

Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment criteria]

Are the overhead reallocation charges to the water business fair and reasonable? a

3. Required outcomes for 6 criteria
[to be eligible for the payment of a ‘dividend from surplus’, all the criteria below need a “YES']

U]
(i)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan)

Full cost recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[refer item 2 (a) in table 1 on page 22 of the Best-Practice Guidelines]

— Complying charges [item 2 {b) in table 1]
— DSP with commercial developer charges [item 2 () in table 1]
— If dual water supplies, complying charges [item 2 (g) in table 1]

Sound water conservation and demand management implemented
Sound drought management implemented

Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September each year)

a_ Integrated water cycle management evaluation

b. Complete and implement integrated water cycle management strategy
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Note 2. Water supply business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2018
National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
NWI F1 Total revenue (water) $'000 30,034
Total income (w13) — grants for the acquisition of assets (w11a) — interest income (w3)
— Aboriginal Communities W&S Program income (w10a)
NWI F4 Revenue from residential usage charges (water) % 79.24%
Income from residential usage charges (w6b) x 100 divided by the sum of
[income from residential usage charges (wba) + income from residential
access charges (wGb)]
NWI F9 Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (water) $'000 259 821
Written down current cost of system assets (w47)
NWI F11  Operating cost (OMA) (water) $'000 11,909
Management expenses (w1) + operational and maintenance expenses (w2)
NWI F14 Capital expenditure (water) $'000 869
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16)
NWI F17  Economic real rate of return (water) % 4.97%

[total income (w13) — interest income (w9) — grants for acquisition of assets (w11a) -
operating costs (NWI F11) — current cost depreciation (w3)] x 100 divided by
[written down current cost of system assets (w4T7) + plant and equipment (w33b)]

|

NWI F26 Capital works grants (water) $'000
Grants for the acquisition of assets (wi11a)

MNotes: 1. References to w (e.g. w12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules 3 and 4 of Council's Annual Financial
Statements.

2. The NWI performance indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework Handbook for Urban Performance
Reporting Indicators and Definitions.

a referto 3.2 (2) on page 15 of the Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines, 2007
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Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2018

1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local government local water utilities must pay this dividend for tax equivalents]

(M)
(i)
(i)
(iv)

Calculated tax equivalents
Number of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
Amounts payable for tax equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

Amounts actually paid for tax equivalents

2. Dividend from surplus

®

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)

50% of surplus before dividends
[calculated in accordance with Best-Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

Mumber of assessments x ($30 less tax equivalent charges per assessment)

Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2018, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2017 and 12 May 2016

2018 Surplus 3,304,700 2017 Surplus 2,435 100 2016 Surplus
2017 Dividend |  —| 2016 Dividend

Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (i) and (iii) above]
Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment criteria]

Are the overhead reallocation charges to the sewer business fair and reasonable? @

3. Required outcomes for 4 criteria
[to be eligible for the payment of a ‘dividend from surplus’, all the criteria below need a “YES']

@M
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan)

Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[refer item 2 (a) in table 1 on page 22 of the Best-Practice Guidelines]

Complying charges (a) Residential [item 2 (c) in table 1]
(b) MNon-residential [item 2 (c) in table 1]
(c) Trade waste [item 2 (d) in table 1]
DSP with commercial developer charges [item 2 (e} in table 1]
Liguid trade waste approvals and policy [item 2 (f) in table 1]
Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September each year)

a. Integrated water cycle management evaluation

b. Complete and implement integrated water cycle management strategy
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Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2018

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators

NWI F2

NWI F10

NWI F12

NWI F15

NWI F18

NWI F27

Total revenue (sewerage) $'000
Total income (s14) — grants for acquisition of assets (s12a) - interest income (s10)
— Aboriginal Communities W&S Program income (w10a)

Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (sewerage) $'000
Written down current cost of system assets (s48)

Operating cost (sewerage) $'000
Manageme nt expenses (s1) + operational and maintenance expenses (s2)

Capital expenditure (sewerage) $'000
Acquisition of fixed assets (s17)

Economic real rate of return (sewerage) %
[total income (s14) —interest income (s10) — grants for acquisition of assets (s12a)

— operating cost (NWI F12) — current cost depreciation (s3)] x 100 divided by

[written down current cost (i.e. WDCC) of system assets (s48) + plant and equipment (s34b)]

Capital works grants (sewerage) $'000
Grants for the acquisition of assets (12a)

21,041

782,457

6,924

416

3.2

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)

NWI F3

NWI F8

NWI F16

NWI F19

NWI F20

NWI F21

Total income (water and sewerage) $'000
Total income (w13 + s14) + gain/loss on disposal of assets (w14 + 515)
minus grants for acquisition of assets (w11a + s12a) — interest income (w9 + s10)

Revenue from community service obligations (water and sewerage) %
C ity service obligati (NWI F25) x 100 divided by total income (NWI F3)

Capital expenditure (water and sewerage) $'000
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16 + s17)

Economic real rate of return (water and sewerage) %
[total income (w13 + s14) — interest income (w9 + s10) - grants for acquisition of assets

(w11a + s12a) — operating cost (NWI F11 + NWI F12) — current cost depreciation (w3 + s3)] x 100
divided by [written down replacement cost of fixed assets (NWIF3 + NWI F10)

+ plant and equipment (w33b + s34b)]

Dividend (water and sewerage) $'000
Dividend paid from surplus (2 (v) of Note 2 + 2 (v) of Note 3)

Dividend payout ratio (water and sewerage) %
Dividend (NWI F20) x 100 divided by net profit after tax (NWI F24)
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Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2018

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)

NWI F22 Net debtto equity (water and sewerage) % -7.10%

Overdraft (w36 + s37) + borrowings (w38 + s39) - cash and investments (w30 + s31)
x 100 divided by [total assets (w35 + s36) — total liabilities (w40 + s41}]

NWI F23 Interest cover (water and sewerage)
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) divided by net interest

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT): 22148

Operating result (w15a + s16a) + interest expense (w4da + sda) — interest income (w9 + s10)
— gain/loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15) + miscellaneous expenses (wdb + wdc + s4b + sdc)

Net interest: 320
Interest expense (wda + sda) — interest income (w9 + s10)
NWI F24 Net profit after tax (water and sewerage) $'000 20,657

Surplus before dividends (w15a + s16a) — tax equivalents paid (Note 2-1 (iv) + Note 3-1 (iv))

NWI F25 Community service obligations (water and sewerage) $'000 242
Grants for pensioner rebates (wl1b + s12b)

Notes: 1. References to w (eg. s12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules 5 and & of Council's Annual Financial
Statements.

2. The NWI performance indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework Handbook for Urban Performance
Reporting Indicators and Definitions.

a referto 3.2 (2) on page 15 of the Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines, 2007
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Note 19. Fair value measurement

$°'000

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
‘level” in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at

fair values:

| Fair value measurement hierarchy |
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

D Quoted Slgnmcant S\gnn‘lcant

Recurring fair value measurements prices in observable  unobservable

active mkts mputs \npufs

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Capital works in progress - - 15,587 15,587
Plant and equipment - 27,312 - 27,312
Office equipment - 1,694 - 1,694
Furniture and fittings - 1,643 - 1,643
Operational land - 35,545 - 35,545
Community land - - 35,691 35,691
Land under roads (post 30/06/2008) - - 10,955 10,955
Land improvements - non-depreciable - - 1,801 1,801
Land improvement - depreciable - - 2,468 2,468
Buildings - non-specialised - 24 607 - 24,607
Buildings - specialised - 93,025 - 93,025
Other structures - - 71,435 71,435
Roads - - 1,017,532 1,017,532
Airport runways/taxiways - - 24 787 24,787
Bulk earthworks - - 344 709 344,709
Stormwater drainage - - 195,411 195,411

Water supply network
Sewerage network

Swimming pools - - 3,104 3,104
Quarry assets - - 1,997 1,997
Heritage collections - - 28 28
Other assets - - 1,193 1,193
Tip restoration assets - - 66 66
Quarry restoration assets 30/06/18 - - 816 816
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 183,826 2,240,258 2424084
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